POLK CITY
City Commission Meeting

November 19, 2024 Polk City Government Center 6:00 pm
123 Broadway Blvd., SE

e
CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Joe LaCascia

INVOCATION — Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Mayor Joe LaCascia

ROLL CALL — Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT - ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit
comments to 3 minutes)

AGENDA
1. Grand Marshal — New person(s) selection
2. GameTime Playground Equipment Presentation

3. Potable Water Intra-System Interconnect Improvements
a. Contract with Odom Contracting
b. Polk City Purchase of parts and supplies from Empire Pipe

4. Cardinal Hill WWTF Plan Proposal — Stantec

5. Request for Proposal of an Independent Auditor
CITY MANAGER ITEMS
CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

COMMISSIONER ITEMS

Vice Mayor Charles Nichols
Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen
Commissioner Rick Wilson
Commissioner Michelle Pettit
Mayor Joe LaCascia

ANNOUNCEMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

Please note: Pursuanl lo Section 286.0105, Florida Statules, if a person decides lo appeal any decision made by the Cly Commission with respact 1o any matler considered during this meeting, he or she will need
10 ensure that a verbatim record of the di is made, which record includes the leslimony and evidence upon which the appeal is lo be based. In accordance with the Amarican with Disabiiilies Act, a persan
with disabilities needing any special i lo ic| in city i should cantad the Office of the City Clork, Polk Cily Government Center, 123 Broadway, Pofk City, Florida 33883 Telephone
(863) 984-1375, Polk Cily may take action on any matier during Lhis meeting, including items thal are not set forth within this agenda. Minules of the City C: i gs may be ob d from Ihe City
Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but are not transcribed verbalim. Persons requiring a verbalim transcript may arrange with the City Clerk lo duplicate the recordings, or arange (o have a court reporier
present at the meeling, The cost of duplicalion and/or court reporier will be al the expense of lhe requesting party.




CONSENT AGENDA
November 19, 2024

MAY ALL BE APPROVED BY ONE VOTE OF COMMISSION TO ACCEPT CONSENT
AGENDA. Commission Members may remove a specific item below for discussion and add it
to the Regular Agenda under New or Unfinished Business, whichever category best applies to
the subject.

A. CITY CLERK
1. October 15, 2024 — Regular City Commission Meeting
2. October 15, 2024 — Budget Hearing — Second and Final Reading

B. REPORTS

Building Permits Report — September/October 2024
Code Enforcement Report — October 2024
Financial Report — October 2024

Library Report — October 2024

Polk Sheriffs Report — October 2024

Public Works/Utilities Report — October 2024

Utility Billing Report — October 2024

NoOOA~WON =

C. OTHER
1. CFRPC PAS Agreement for FY 2024-2025



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for:

1. October 15, 2024 — Regular City Commission Meeting
2. October 15, 2024 — Budget Hearing — Second and Final Reading

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval

ATTACHMENT:

1. October 15, 2024 — Regular City Commission Meeting
2. October 15, 2024 — Budget Hearing — Second and Final Reading

ANALYSIS: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes




CITY COMMISSION MINUTES

BUDGET HEARING
October 15, 2024

#
Mayor LaCascia reconvened the meeting at 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL - Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Commissioner Charles Nichols, Commissioner
Micheal T. Blethen, Commissioner Michelle Pettit, Commissioner Rick
Wilson, Attorney Kristie Hatcher-Bolin (Sub for City Attorney Thomas
Cloud) and City Manager Jackson

Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud

ORDER OF BUSINESS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

ORDINANCE 2024-06 - AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA,
ADOPTING THE (TENTATIVE/FINAL) LEVYING OF AD VALOREM TAXES FOR POLK
CITY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second
and Final Reading.

City Manager Jackson stated based on discussions with the Commission during the
Budget Workshops on Saturday, August 17, 2024; she has prepared an Ordinance
reflecting a 5.25 Millage Rate.

City Attorney Hatcher-Bolin read Ordinance 2024-06 by title only.

City Manager Jackson advised that Polk City’s certified value is $252,619,657. The FY
2024-2025 operating Millage Rate for Polk City is 5.25000 mills. The Rollback Rate
computed for Polk City for FY 2024-2025 is 5.1234 mills; therefore, the percentage by
which the above specified final Millage Rate to be levied by Polk City is 2.47 percent of
the Rollback Rate.

Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke for or against this
Ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing.

Motion by Vice Mayor Nichols to approve Ordinance 2024-06 on Second and Final
Reading reflecting a 5.25 millage rate; this motion was seconded by Commissioner
Pettit.

No discussion from the Commission or Public.

Roll Call Vote: Mayor LaCascia - aye, Commissioner Blethen - aye,
Commissioner Pettit — aye

Motion carried unanimously.



ORDINANCE 2024-07 - AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY OF POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025, PROVIDING
FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS BUDGET;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading

City Attorney Hatcher-Bolin read Ordinance 2024-07 by title only.

City Manager Jackson advised the total budget for FY 2024-2025 is $9,599,687.
Various revenues accruing to Polk City and set aside for the purpose of paying
expenses and maintaining the Government of Polk City for FY 2024-2025.

Mayor LaCascia opened the Public Hearing.

Vice Mayor Nichols stated as he had discussed with City Manager Jackson previously
to amend the budget to reflect a 5% COLA instead of the 4%.

Lengthy discussion ensued regarding a salary survey and the long-term effects if given
a 5% COLA increase versus a 4%.

Mayor LaCascia closed the Public Hearing.

Motion by Vice Mayor Nichols to approve Ordinance 2024-07 on Second and Final

Reading reflecting a 5% COLA increase; this motion was seconded by Commissioner

Pettit.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Nichols — aye, Commissioner Pettit-aye,
Commissioner Blethen - nay, Commissioner Wilson — aye, Mayor
LaCascia - nay

Motion carried 3/2.

Meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

Patricia R Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES
October 15, 2024

]

Mayor LaCascia called the meeting to order at 6:22 pm.

Sheandolen Dunn, gave the invocation.

Those present recited the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor LaCascia.

ROLL CALL — Assistant City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Commissioner Charles Nichols, Commissioner
Micheal T. Blethen, Commissioner Rick Wilson, Commissioner Michelle

Pettit, Attorney Kristie Hatcher-Bolin (Sub for City Attorney Thomas Cloud)
and City Manager Patricia Jackson

Absent: City Attorney Thomas Cloud

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by Commissioner Wilson to approve the August 13, 2024 Regular City
Commission Meeting, Department Reports, and other items on the Consent Agenda; this
motion was seconded by Commissioner Pettit.

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

ORDER OF BUSINESS

PRWC Conservation Project Agreement

The Conservation Project Agreement provides for the PRWC (the “Cooperative) to act
as the representative of its Members Governments with regard to the implementation of
Conservation Projects pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement.

The Cooperative has developed an initial scope of work for the Conservation Program
which describes the initial scope of the Conservation Program and which may be
modified from time to time.

The Conservation Program cost shall be limited annually to a maximum aggregate
budget amount of $150,000 from all sources, and the Program cost will be split each
year between Member Governments and other funding sources with Member
Governments obligated to pay no more than fifty percent (50%) of the same up to a
maximum annual collective amount of $75,000 (the “Members” Cost).

Mayor LaCascia provided a brief history on the PRWC and how we have come to this
point today.

City Manager Jackson stated Polk County previously ran the conservation through the
cities, but now done through the PRWC.



Motion by Vice Mayor Nichols to approve the PRWC Conservation Project Agreement;
this motion was seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Motion carried unanimously.

Mt. Olive Road Force Main Extension

City Manager Jackson and Vaughn Leer (Engineer with Chastain-Skillman) discussed
the City Commission approved a force main on Mount Olive Road for The Landings at
Mount Olive and, also agreed to upsize the line for any future connections.

There were two bids received, and the Award Recommendation is attached. The
apparent low bid is Cathcart Construction Company in the amount of $2,603,624 (There
was a mathematical error that did not affect their bid price).

The project was to be paid by the following:

e ARPA money, which was approved by the Commission ($565,896)
e Sewer Impact Fees ($473,725.04)
e Investments Sewer Impact ($1,820,279.97)

It was anticipated to use the Sewer Impact Fees that were invested as well. There is
enough money to use ARPA money and Sewer Impact Fees, which include the
investments, without having to borrow any money. This will also leave $246,177 in the
Sewer Impact Fees and we will be collecting Sewer Impact Fees from The Landings at
Mount Olive for approximately 383 homes, which would be approximately $1,690,945.

It is the staffs recommendation to approve the low bid of $2,603,624 to Cathcart
Construction Company, and to fund this project with Sewer Impact Fees, as that is what
pays for the growth of the sewer system.

The City Commission provided consensus for City Manager Jackson to sign the
agreement.

Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the Mt. Olive Force Main Extension
project to be completed by Cathcart Construction; this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Nichols.

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote.

Voyles Loop Lift Station Bid

City Manager Jackson and Craig Fuller (CivilSurv) discussed a phone conference held
with DEP regarding Cardinal Hill Project. During this phone conference, DEP stated they
are not amenable to granting an extension for the In-Kind Project. If the approved project
cannot be completed by the deadline of January 22, 2025, then the assessed civil penalty
of $17,000 shall be paid to DEP by that same date. If the current approved In-Kind

2



Project is no longer viable, Polk City must submit a new proposed In-Kind Project for
DEP’s approval that can be completed by January 22, 2025.

The Voyles Loop Lift Station is the In-kind Project that the City Commission selected and
DEP approved, regarding the Consent Order, which comes with a deadline of January
22, 2025.

There was one bid received from Hinteriand Group in the amount of $394,760. The bid
came in $150,000 higher than the Engineer’s estimated budget of $210,000 to $250,000.
The Engineer recommends rebidding Voyles Loop Rehab as the difference in price is
significantly greater ($150k) than the penalty ($17k). Even if a rebid came in at $300k -
$350k, that would be a large savings. Additionally, with time being what it is, this
presents a challenge to order and receive items as quickly as needed for any decent-
sized project. Attorney Cloud concurs with the Engineer.

City Attorney Cloud spoke with each City Commissioner prior to this meeting in regards
to the single bid. Because of the hurricane, Polk City can do this project as an
emergency. It is the recommendation to not approve this Bid. Waive the bid
requirements, have an emergency quote and have another company do the project.

Motion by Vice Mayor Nichols to authorize the City Manager to negotiate a contract
not to exceed $275,000; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Pettit.

Roll Call Vote: Mayor LaCascia—aye, Commissioner Blethen—aye, Vice Mayor
Nichols—aye, Commissioner Wilson—aye, Commissioner Pettit-aye

Motion carried unanimously.
CITY MANAGER ITEMS

Centennial Update — To date, between T-shirt sales, flags, challenge coins, Polk City
has collected $9,010.

Overpass /SR 33 — Erosion during Hurricane Milton (Freedom Park) - FDOT team is
coming to do the repairs.

Freedom Park Playground damage - will have on November Agenda.

Agenda Packets - In the future, Agenda Packets will be distributed no later than
Wednesday before the meeting. This will give Commissioners the opportunity to ask
questions prior to the meeting.

Polk City did not lose power during Hurricane Milton. The Public Works and Utilities
team pumped water to relieve flooding in some areas. Rick, Kathy and City Manager
Jackson did Damage Assessment and took pictures. Also met with some of the residents
during the ride throughout the City.

The Donald Bronson Community Center was open during Hurricane Milton. There were

3



thirty-five (35) people, plus four PCSO Deputies that worked two (2) twelve-hour shifts.
There were also six (6) employees that swapped infout working in pairs.

Safe Haven Halloween will still be at Freedom Park.

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS - None

COMMISSIONER ITEMS

Vice Mayor Nichols — Thanked everyone for their thoughts and prayers during the loss
of his wife. He also mentioned something that is done at Polk County — a Disaster Relief
Addendum which allows staff to sell back up to two weeks of vacation time.
Commissioner Blethen — None

Commissioner Wilson — None

Commissioner Pettit — Thanked the Deputies that staffed the DBCC during Hurricane
Milton.

Mayor LaCascia — None

Deputy Poindexter — Complimented the staff for their work at the DBCC and City Hall
during Hurricane Milton.

ANNOUNCEMENTS - None

ADJOURNMENT - 7:12 pm

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports

____INFORMATION ONLY
_X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

Monthly Department Reports for:

Building Permits Report — September/October 2024
Code Enforcement Report — October 2024
Financial Report — October 2024

Library Report — October 2024

Polk Sheriff's Report — October 2024

Public Works/Utilities Report — October 2024

Utility Billing Report — October 2024

NOORWN=

ANALYSIS:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda




COMMERCIAL
Permit Number
BC-2024-1055

ELECTRICAL
Permit Number
BT-2024-15818
BT-2024-15952
BT-2024-16734
BT-2024-17007
BT-2024-17095

FENCE WALL
Permit Number
BT-2024-16698

MECHANICAL
Permit Number
BT-2024-15668
BT-2024-16746
BT-2024-16747
BT-2024-16942

PLUMBING
Permit Number
B8T-2024-17084

POOL
Permit N r
BT-2024-15997

PRE-PERMIT
Permit Number

BP-2024-285

Polk Clty Permits

Polk City Permits Added
From: 10/01/24 To: 10/31/2024

Address Declared Value  Date Added
125 CARTER BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 2,500.00 10/03/2024
Subtotal: $2,500.00
Address Declared Value Qaig Added
126 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,695.00 10/04/2024
126 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,695.00 10/09/2024
605 SAYGE DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 10,000.00 10/23/2024
525 ORANGE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 800.00 10/28/2024
225 N COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,000.00 10/29/2024
Subtotal: $15,190.00

Address Declared Value Date Added

8818 FOX DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 2,715.00 10/23/2024
Subtotal: $2,715.00

Address Declared Value  Date Added

398 NOLANE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 11,875.00 10/01/2024

8585 RINDGE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 15,795.00 10/24/2024

726 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 12,750.00 10/24/2024

204 TRAIL VIEW WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 12,468.00 10/28/2024
Subtotal: $52,888.00

Address Declared Value  Date Added

225 N COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,700.00 10/29/2024
Subtotal: $1,700.00

Address Declared Value ate Added

559 NARROW POND LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 60,000.00 10/02/2024
Subtotal: $60,000.00

Address . Declared Value Date Added

416 1ST ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868 0.00 10/22/2024
Subtotal: $0.00

Page 1 of 2 11/5/2024 6:30 AM



RE-ROOF

Permit Number
BT-2024-16712
BT-2024-16716
BT-2024-16809
BT-2024-16993
BT-2024-17039
BT-2024-17092
BT-2024-17213
BT-2024-17233

RESIDENTIAL

Permit Number
BR-2024-8115
BR-2024-8231
BR-2024-8488
BR-2024-8659

Polk Clty Permits

Address

551 NARROW POND LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

729 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868

321 ABBEY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868

125 IVYLAND RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

683 MEANDERING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868

228 TRAIL VIEW WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868

447 MARKLEN LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868

132 SW COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Address

520 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

740 SW COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868
714 1ST ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

614 GORDON RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:

Grand Total:

2 SFe. To Dude
Mk by Mp

Page 2 of 2

Declared Value Date Added
22,500.00 10/23/2024
23,300.00 10/23/2024

5,600.00 10/24/2024
4,400.00 10/28/2024
50,825.00 10/29/2024
14,250.00 10/29/2024
10,000.00 10/31/2024
18,575.00 10/30/2024
$149,450.00

Declared Value Date Added

850.00 10/01/2024
10,000.00 10/08/2024
15,400.00 10/22/2024

8,800.00 10/29/2024
$35,050.00
$319,493.00
11/5/2024 6:30 AM



Polk City Permits Added
From: 09/01/24 To: 09/30/2024

RE-ROOF
Permit Number Address Declared Value Date Added
BT-2024-14629 266 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 25,350.00 09/11/2024
BT-2024-15536 144 HONEY BEE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 6,500.00 09/28/2024
Subtotal: $31,850.00
RESIDENTIAL
Permit Number Address Declared Value  Date Added
BR-2024-7855 126 LAYNEWADE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 3,499.00 09/20/2024
BR-2024-7948 5520 OTTAWA ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,550.00 09/24/2024
BR-2024-7950 734 1ST ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868 125,000.00 09/24/2024
BR-2024-7983 190 LAYNEWADE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 38,000.00 09/25/2024
BR-2024-8054 110 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 34,000.00 09/30/2024
Subtotal: $202,049.00
) Grand Total: $233,899.00
= See o Wode
% ﬂ,Utlj M{)
Polk Clty Permits Page 1 of 1 10/8/2024 2:53 PM



~ Code Enforcement fiﬁépéfrt'-

~ OCTOBER 2024
SNIPE SIGNS REMOVED 32
LIEN SEARCHES 12
INSPECTIONS 58
CLOSED OUT CASES 11
SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 7
CLOSED OUT SPECIAL MAGISTRATE CASES 1
CASE SUBJECTS

Pool 0

REFERRED TO COUNTY 13
DISABLE VEHICLES 2
BUILDING WITHOUT PERMIT 2
OVERGROWTH 5
HOUSE NUMBERS 0
FENCE/INSPECTIONS 4
JUNK AND DEBRIS 6
RV/TRAILER PARKING 1
PHONE CALLS 48

OPEN STRUCTURE 0
MET WITH CITIZEN 9
NOISE 0

PLACE LIEN 2

CLOSE OUT LIEN 0
YARD SALE 0
ANIMAL 2
POSTINGS 11
EXTENDED CASES 5
ACCESSORY USE 1
DEMOLITION 0
BUSINESS LICENSE 0
MINIMUM STANDARD HOUSING 1




CITY OF POLK CITY

;l'éﬂf%ﬁ‘.;:,ﬂob No: 26557 Simple Balance Sheet D SOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2025 thru Month: Oct
Fund: 01 OPERATING FUND

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
01-101-100 Cash - Checking 3,228,931.47
01-101-990 Library Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 859.09
01-101-995 City Centennial 9,895,00
01-102-100 Cash on Hand 875.00
01-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 43,545.17
01-115-120 Bccounts Receivable - Local Bus Licenses 3,540.00
01-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 230,932.55-
01-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 131.83-
01-131-500 Due from Enterprise Fund 31,844.15-
01-133-100 Due From Other Governmental Units 55,408.15
01-133-101 Due from Others (Franchise & Public Serv. 59,124.23
01-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE GF 1,230,152.76
01-151-902 Investments - FL SAFE GF Reserves B6,965.11
01-153-302 Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 373,489.64
01-155-100 Prepaid Expenses 12,327.76
01-160-3902 Reserve Account 100,000.59
01-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 62,924,00

*%* TQTAL ASSET*~* 5,005,129.44
01-202-100 Accounts Payable 70,586.62-
01-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 69,274.28
01-202-900 Customer Deposits 6,760.,00
01-202-950 Other Deposits 150,000.00
01-208-300 Due to County - Impact Fees 18,416.96
01-208-310 Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 4.22-
01-208-320 Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 87.93-
01-208-330 Due to PCSO - Police Education Revenue 335,79
01-217-200 Accrued Sales Tax 49,60
01-218-100 Payroll Taxes Payable 79.89-
01-218-200 FRS Retirement Payable 1,110.51
01-218-300 Health Plan Payable 2,590.46
01-218-320 Supplemental Insurance Payable 2,642.,12
01-218-400 Dental Plan Payable 145.31
01-218-410 Vision Plan Payable 812.08
01-218-700 ICMA-RC 120.00

% TOTAL LIABILITY** 181,498.45
01-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 3,210.00
01-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 3,210.00-

*% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00
01-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 5,092,961.94

** TOTAL EQUITY**

++ TOTAL REVENUE*#*

** TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

5,092,961.94

107,562.97

376,893.92

5,005,129.44




% 00°0 00°0 00°Q 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0ET SaanjTejiod IO/pue sS8UTd IBYJ0 00T-6SE-TO
% 00°0 (s6°z2) s6°¢e s6°¢ 00°0 00°0 2L LSE'9L SaUTd JUSWSDIOIUH SPOD O00E-TSE~TO
% 00°0 00°000'6 00°0 00°0 00°000°6 00°000'6 T6°'69L'TT njregiod pue ‘saT]TRUDd ‘SIUTH SOTTOod 00Z-TSE-TO
% It'¢ 0T €ELE'S 06°92T 06921 00°005'S 00°005'S ZE'P96°¢E swooul AxeiqrT 00T-LPE-TO
$ 00°0 00°%0€E'9T 00°0 00°0 00 %0€’'9T 00°H0E'ST €E°9€0'8T Juswesaby soueuajuTe LOJd 006-%%E-TO
% ES°8 7€ 060°EE 99°980°¢€ 99°980'¢€ 00" LLT'9E 00°LLT'9E Z6°9L6'9¢€ s34 A3TTTIN I23emwIolg Q0L-0PE-TO
$ 0E°6 62 6EC'0FY TLLST 'GP TL LST'SY 00" LE6E'SBY 00°L6E'S8Y LL*S0L'BES 23SBM PITOS 00%-0%€-T0
% 00°0 00°T9T'8% 00°0 00°0 00" 13T '8¥ 00°T9T'8¥% 0T "T9T'8¥ futpung doop AxeaqrT Q0T-LEE-TO
% 0070 00°9%%'LECZ 00°0 00°0 00°9%%'LTT 00°9%% LT 29'850°SET XeJ, S9Tes JuaD-JT[BH 08T-SEE-TO
% 00°0 00°S82T'T 00°0 00°0 00°§S2T°'T 00°'S2T'T £8°L20°T osuaoT] abexsasg OTTOYODTVY O0ST-SEE-TO
% 86°C 97°89% 'S YLLOT ¥LTLOT 00°9€9'S 00°9€£9'S 6T°T20'8 9SUSDTT SWOH STTIOW O¥%T-SEE-TO
% €6°L 00°6€2'T2Z 00°0€8°T 00°0€8°T 00°690 ‘€2 00°690'€Z 2% 16622 xXeJ, Tend IO0J0W "JUsD UY3Ig - SUS TTT-SEE-TO
% €6°L 0€°95L'96 0L"9€€£'8 0L"9€EE’8 00°€60°5S0T 00°€60'S0T TE'9LS'SOT xe] S9TeS 93815 - SAW 0CI-SEE-TO
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 SLTEBT'OT £Z0Z eTTepPI - "quTtay 21e35 VWAL Z0¥%-PEE-T0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 L0'592'89 Zz0z uel - "QWTSY TeIspsd YWAd TOP-TEE-TO
% 00°0 (00°049) 00°08 00°0§ 00°0 00°0 000 s TOYODTY - JTWIdd 00E-6ZE-TO
% 00°0 00°059'T 00°0 00°0 00°059'T 00°059'T 00°528’'¢e SMITASY ueld 93TS 02Z-6TE-T0
% 00°0 00°669°95 Q00 0070 00°669 95 00°669'95 T 9€€'29 91seM PTIOS 00E-tZE-TO
% 0070 00°000'8S 00°0 00°0 00°000'8S 00700085 6T°'9%8'L6 OTI3D9TH 00T-€ETE-TO
% 68°6 SL°BLT'T6T ST 166 0T G§2°166°'0C 00-oLT'2TIC 00°0LT'TTT PEETT' TV suotjoadsur - 3twisd BpTE 80T-ZZE-T0
% 00°0 00°08% 00°0 00°0 00°08% 00°08% 00° 08V Aouednoop 7o 319D - 3Twisd BPTE LOT-TZE-TO
% Ct'S 00°05%'% 00°08T 00°05¢ 00°00L'Y 00°00L'% 00°SLE'E TeoTueydsy - JTwied Bprd S0T-Z2€-T0
% 8E°¢t 00°5LS'€ 00°92T 00°821 00°00LE 00°00L'E 00°005'T Butqunid - 3Twisd BPTE $0T-ZTE-T0
% 00" %1 00°00E'¥ 007004 00°00L 00°000'S 00°000°S 00°528'¢€ TeoTI309TH - ITWisd BpTE €0T-22E-TO
% 00°9 00°008'€E 00°00¢C 00°00¢ 00°000'% Q0" 000'% 00°90T'€E 994 uTtwpy - JTwasd bprag Z01-2ZE-T10
% 8BSt 00 €9% '¥L 00°LES 00°LES 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 95" €0L'ST Butsoayp ueld - 3ITwisd Bprd TOT-ZZE-T0
% Ly T 0% SET'PE 09°¥%98 09°998 00°000'SE 00°000'SE €0'50L'TEC sjtwiag PutpiIngd 00T-2TZE-TO
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 aoo 00°0¢t¢E weiboxd xes ‘sng jusnburiad T4 €0T-9TE-T0
% 00°0 00°SLL 00°0 00°0 00°SLL 00°SLL 60°€82°'¢ xel, sssursng Ajunop zOT-9TE-TO
% 08°6¢€ 00°%LZ'® 00°9z8'¢ 00°928°'2 00°00T L 00°00T 'L €7 687 €T S9SU8DTT SsBUTSNg Te20T 00T-9TE-TO
% 00°0 00°68T°0LT 00°0 00°0 00°68T'0LT 00°68T'0LT 79950 'THT Xel S9OTAISS SUOTJEDTUNWWO) QOT-STE-TO
% 00°0 00°8%6 ‘€T 00°0 00°0 00°8¥%6'€C 00°8¥%6'€C 6%°GEL'TE xel, A3TT130 - S89 00%-HTE-T0
% 00°0 00°2TZ'9 00°0 00°0 00°2TZ'9 00°2TZ'9 69°€ST'T 95 01 ssaurpesy - XelL AIT(TIN - I31eM TOE-FTE-TO
% 1T°8 €5°665 TL L% 00%’9 LY 0079 00°000 ‘8L 00°000°8BL SLTLLL'8L xel A3TT1TIN - I93eM 00€-¥TE-TO
% 00°¢C €L°9%L°9CT LT ¥8S'T Lz %85°¢ 00" TEE'6TT 00" TEE'6CT €T €97 'SPT xel A3TTT13IN - 2TIIDSTH 00T-$TE-TO
% 00°0 00°BTT'69 00°0 00°0 00°8TT 69 00°8TT'69 2L LTO'89 xe], sep uorldo [eD0T MON 0TH-TIE-TO0
% 00°0 00°8%L ‘80T 00°0 00°0 00°8%L'80T 00 8%L'80T Z6°6€2'90T xeg, sep uorido Te20T 00%-TIE-TO
% 00°0 00°T08'8T 00°0 00°0 00°T0B'8T 00°T08'8T 69°8T% LT XeJ SeH Jus) Y6 00€-CiE-TO
% 00°0 00°8p5'66€°1 00°0 00°0 00°8%5'66€"T 00°8%5'66€"T €L°0S6'8€E’T SEXVYL WHNOTYA ¥ O00T-TTE-TO
qIZITVIY LIDI4Aa/ (8880XH) HONIATY QLR AONAATY LNIWIOD QELYAIDILNY HOANTATY ASLY4IDILINY | SANIASY JX YOIN¥E NOILAINOB8IA INOODDY
FOVINEDYAG | 920C 14114 §202 raqv S202 ) 2414 /9

MVNNVOr -¥3sn
81 40 | abed

01 / SZ0T :183A [e9S1d JoJ 9191dwo) JA % E€8
S3NN3IAIY ANN TVHENID

ALID M170d 40 ALID

65592 :ON qor/dyd-Bd~|ogeqb
S16) $20Z/TLIL




% 00" € €0 P97 ’'1I8Y ‘€ L6°29G5'LOT L6°29S'LOT 00°L20'68S'¢ €9°0SL'E6V'E STVLOL LNIWIYYdId
% 00°0 00°000°0ST 00°0 00°0 00°000‘0QST 00°000°0ST 00" 0 pPIeMIOq Aized ysed Q06-T8E-TO
% 00°0 00" 0 [s] o1} 000 Qo0 00" 0 5.°909°T xel, sen 331els JO punisay 005-69¢-TO
% 00'0 000 00" 0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 9T L68'9 sSpos00oIg 2urINSUI 00¥-69E-TO0
% 0070 (00" 0€E) 00" 0¢ 00°0E 00°0 Q00 Q0" 0 SAdd ASN #0T-639€-T0
% 9T°1T 2E*599°'C 89°VEE 89 FEE 00°000'€E 00°000'€ 95 112’2 SOUBMOTTY UOTIDSTTOD - SWODUI IJSTW Z0T-69t-10
% 0070 00" 0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 ¥9°0 saxeg pue saTtdoD - 3wodUl OSTW TOT-69€-T0
% 2ZL'9C 0% " 99¢E 09 €ET 09 EET 007008 00° 008 sg zLe’z awodul "ISTW 00T-69€E-TO
% L9VEST (00"0T9 T} 00°0T9'¥% 00°0T19°% 00°000'€E 00°000'€ 00°6L8'S TYINNIINED ALID - SNOILYNOQ HLVAINd S0T-99€-T0
% 00°52 0070SL Q0°0s2Z 00" 08T 00°000'T 00°000'T 00° 009 UISMOTTBH - SUOT3RUO(d 33BATId ZO0T-99E-TO0
% 00°09 00°00S 00°00& 00° 00§ 00°000°T 00°000'T 00 00¥% SBWISTIYD - SUOTIBUOQ SIPATId TOT-99E-TO0
% 00°0 (00°29) 00°2¢9 00°29 000 00°0 00°0 suotTleuod 3]eaTid 00T-99¢-TO
% 0070 Q0" 0 00" 0 Q00 00°0 Q00 sg-o8z‘e Ajzadoag snidans 3o s3T®S 00T1-S9€-T0
% 9g°0¢ 00°052'% 00°00T'T 00°00T'T 00°05€E’S 00°0SE’S 00°0S89°0T 'Iusdy I33UL8D >uﬂESEEOU uosuolg pPIRUCd (00C-Z9E-T0
% P9°ET 00°008'€E 007009 00°009 00°00%'% 00°00%'% 00°008'% sTe3usy I83U3D A3TATIDY Q0T-Z9€-T0
% FI°ET 90" €£8%'9¢E ¥6°9168'S ¥6°915'S 00°000'2¥% 00°000'2% p1 %E9’B9 FAYS f1d - SPUSPTATQ/IS8I83UI 00CZ-T9E-TO
% 00°0 00°0S% 'L 00°0 00°0 00°0S%'L 00°0S8% 'L 0T 66%'E QWodUI 3IS3IS3UI Q0T-T9E-TO
% 0%°LS 0S"18 05°89T 05°89T 007052 00°052 00" LO0C S934 ®1€7T 00E-6SE-TO
qQEZITVIEY LIDIJ=d/ (SSTOXH) HONSASY aLX SONIATN INITIOO AILVIIDILINY ANNTASY HIVAIDILNY | SONIATY IX WOI¥d NOILII¥OEEA LNOODDY
FOVILNEDYAL | ST0Z s202 SZ0T Falen 4 g202 yzozZ 1/
01 / SZ0Z :1eaA [E9SI] 104 813]dwoD A % £€'8
S3INNIATY NN TVHINTD
MVYNNVOP -d3sn 65592 :0N qor/dyd-6d 05896

8| 0 Z abed

ALID M10d 40 ALID

Sb:G1 yeozT/ziiLL




% 00°0 00°005°¢C go‘'o 00'0 00°005'2 00°005‘2 00°005'¢2 NxaTDd A3TD - s83d I9UI0 ¥ BuTpaooay Z6%-C¢IS-10
% 00°0 00°000°€E Q0" 0 00" 0 00°000°€ 00°000°€E 00°0 SATINOSXH - ssbary) jua1Ind I9YA0 06%-ZTS-T0
% 00°0 00°000°'T Q00 00" 0 00°000°T 00°000°'T 00" 0 nosxyg - SpY TebsT ® SSTJTATIOV Oword 0B%-CZTS-T0
% 0070 00°000°'S 0070 Q00 00°000°'S 00°000'S L0'66C L BATINDSBXT - EOﬂuuﬂGOHnmm pue putqurid 0LP-ZTIS-TO
% 00°0 00°006 000 00°0 Q0006 007006 €E"69S SATINDAXH - SS8OTAASS UOTILDTUNUMOD 0T%#-215-TO
% 00°0 00°006'T Q0" 0 00°'0 00°005'T 00°00S8'T 66 98% DATINOSXHE - IBDUBMOTTIVY asuadxy Buriseaw 80%-2T1S-TO
% 00°0 00'000'¥% 00°0 00" 0 g0 000'% 00'000'% Q0" ¥LS SATINOSXH - bututeil S0¥-ZTS-T0
% 00°0 00'000°S go°Q go° o 00°000°'S 00°000°'S ZE'S05°¢2 SATINOSXH - sasusdxy [3ABIL 00%-CIS-TO
% 00°0 ooocLz 00°0 00°0 00'0LeZ Qo*oLe QT 01S SATINOSBXH - so..nuMmdmeOU S!{gEHIIDYIOM O0%Z-ZTS-T0
% S0°T ZT"TES ‘9T 88 " SLT 88°'SLT 00°L0L'9T 00"LOL 9T G9°ZSE’ET SATINOSXT - SdueiInsul YiTesH 3 SIT7T 0EZ-215-T0
% 99°F€T z29 TS¥ ‘LS 8E°€00‘6 8€' €006 00°S5%’'99 00°55¥%'99 69°9TT°23 SATITMOSXF - UOTINGTIIUOD JUSWSIATIBDY 022~2TS-TO
% 80°0T zZ1°888°2¢C 88°695°2 88°595°¢ 00" %#S¥ S92 00" %S5¥ 'S¢ €8°0€L 02 DATINOSBXH - Saxel BOTA 01Z2-2T1S5-10
% 00°0 00"'8BFPT'TH 00°'0 00°0 00 'BFPT 1V 00°8%T'1I¥ ZE 668 °LE nooaxy - Aed ITISW UON pue Keg untwaxd 09T-2TIS-TO
% 00°0 (€5°L0%'S) €5°LOV'S €5°LOF'S 00°0 Q0’0 00'0 SATINDSXY - SWTIISA0 0FT1-ZT5-T0
% $S°IT pL 9%’ % 9B €S§ 98 €99 00°008'% 00°008'% Z1°008'% SATINOSXH - sabey pue S9TIE[BS I9YI0 O0ET-ZIS-T0
% ¥6°0T 6T°9LL'8TT T8°L98'9¢ T8'L98°92 00'¥%9°'S¥T 00°'¥%9°'592 ZL'566'€TT SATINOSBXT - sabem - Axetres Tetnbsy 0ZT1-2IS-T0
dATIADAXT
% ¥8°S Z8'8LL'LE 00" ETT ‘0¥ 00 €2T’0% 8% L88'22 TYLOL INHWILIYdHA
% 9979 00°0S2'% 00°0S¢ 00° 092 00°008'% 00°00S8'¥ 9L 86T ¥ o7 - sdTysIaqueW ¥ ‘- qns ‘qng ‘sjood 0vS-TTIS-TO
% 99761 2S5 ER9 87991 8% 95T Q0008 00°008 00" 0 m>ﬁumﬂmﬂqu - SwIoJTun SZS-TTS-T10
% 00°0 00°000°'T 000 00" 0 00°000°T 00°000°'T 09" E¥PT m>..nuMHmﬂmm§ - mo.:mmdm m:a.u.mummo 0CS-TTS-TO
% 00°0 Q90" 00¢E [eJal1] a0° 0 00" o00¢t 00°00¢€ 00°0 m>._”um.mmﬂqu - mw..nﬁmm:m IDTFIO OIS-TTIS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T 69°'56C w>..num.mmﬂmmq - sabaeyp jJuaxaIND ASYI0 06%-TTS-TO
% 0070 Q0°000'¢C 00°0 Q00 00°000'2 00°000'2 00°06L°T 1sThoT - SpY TebaT1 ®» SSTATATIOY owoid O08F-TLS-T0
% 00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 g0°'00S 00°00S 00" 0 ﬂum.mm._”mwa - uoﬂuu:@oummm pue BuTtjutaxd OLP-TIS-TO
% 00°0 Q0" 00S Q0°'0 Q0" 0 00" 008§ 00°' 00§ 00°0T2Z ._”um.mmﬂqu - 2ouemOTTY =suadxd m:._”umwz 80%-TIS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°€E 00°0 000 00°000'€ 00°000'€E 00’0 HAIIVISIDAT - DNINIVIL SOP-TTS-TO
% 00°0 00°000'% 000 000 00°000°'F% 00°000'% Q0°' 09 w>ﬂuMHm,.nmw_.H - Bututeil pue [2ABIL 00%-TTIS-TO
% 0070 Q0 €T 00°0 g0 0 Q0" €T Q00" €C 0E"FE ..numam..nmmq b ﬁoﬂummsmmEou S!GEHVABHIOM 0PZ-TTS-T0
% 89°L 0E"$59°T 0L LET OL LET 00°26L'T 00"26L'T €0°8%T'T w>ﬂum.mm._”mmq - saxe], edTd 0TZ-TT1S-TO
% 0070 00°80L'T 00" 0 00" 0 00°80L°T 00°80L'¢ 0T L0L'C s1697 - £93€DTITIA®D 3IITH PuE S|8snucd (09T-TIS-T0
% 00°0T 00°'00Z'9T 00°008°1T 00°008'T 00°000'8T 00°000'8T 00'00€'2T m\:.”...m.ﬁmﬂmmq - sabey - Azeres zeinbsy 0ZI-TTIS-TO0
JAILVYISIOAT
qIzZITvIy I35a09 TIVAY SHISNAIXE QLA SHSNIAXT AIKW IIOAng rav 132Dand qIEIdoav SITYOLOY NOILAINOEEA INOODDY
FOVINIDYEA | G202 5202 5202 §Z02 S202 vZ02 1/9
01 / SZ0Z :4ea |eosid 104 a391dwiod JA % €€°8
sainjipuadxg pund |e1audn)
MVNNVOCP :¥3sn 65592 :oN qor/dyd-6d—|058q6
g8l 40 ¢ ebed

ALID M10d 40 ALID §1:Sl vToTeiL)



% 0070 00°0SL 00'0 00°0 00°0SL 00°'0SL zZL'seT ooy ¥ uTd - uoTionpoadsy pue BuTqUTId 0LY-9TS-TO
% 00°0 00°0s8 000 000 00° 0S8 007058 Z9°LOE Bu3onoy 3 UTJ - S90TAISS UOTIBDTUNWWOD OT¥-STS-TO
% 0070 00'000'e 0070 00°0 00°000°2 00°000'2 00°'66% soueutd - bututeil S0%-91S-T0
% 0070 00°005'2 00°0 000 00°005'C 00'005°C 08°602°T Pujooy 3 utrd - sssuadxy [8ARIL 00%-9T15-T0
% 0070 00°000'% 000 00°0 00°000'% 00°000'% 00°000'2 bulooy ® UTH - S9DTAILS TPUOTSS9I0Id 0TE-9TS-TO
% 00°0 00" %2T 00'0 000 00" ¥ZT 00°%2T 8T 9% ooy ® urd - uorjesusdwoD S!EEHTISHIOM 0%Z-9TS-TO
% zT'0 PT TTL TE 98'89 9889 00°08L'TE 00°08L'TE LE'TZS'ST U300y ¥ UTJd - SOUBANSUI YITLIH I SITT 0€Z-9T5-TO
% v0'E€L LY GSE'ET €5°200°¢C €£5°200°'¢C 00'85€’'ST 00°85€’ST 90°ZS¥'vT ujooy ¥ UTd - UOTANQTIIUOD JUSWSITIAA 0ZZ-9TS5-T0
% 68701 T0"T89°L 66°8E6 66 8E6 00°0Z9°8 00°0Z9°8 88°50L’S Builooy % urd - So9Xel eOTd 012-9TS-T0
% 65°€6€ (767969 'T) ve‘vLZ'T v6 vLT'T 00°8LS 00°8LS z9'HLE BulooyY ® UTd - SWIIABAO 0FT-9TS-TO
% 0070 (€9°6T) £9'6T £9°6T 00°0 000 000 spueutrg - sobep pue ssTIeTeS ISYIO O€T-9TS-TO
% 00°TT 6%'T82Z 00T 15'L6E'2T TS L6E'CT 00°6L9°2TT 00°6L9'2TT 70°88L‘TOT Bujooy % utd - gabem - Axeres rernbey 02T1-9T5-T0

ONTINAODDY aNY HINUNIA

TYLOL INIWLIYEHA
% 00°0 00°000°S€E 00°0 00°0 00°000°SE 00°'000'SE 00°000'S€E Butuued dwo) - SIOTAISIS TEUOTSSDIOAd OTE-STS-TO

ONINNVId AISNIHIYIWOD

00°0 00°'000°9L 00°000°9L €L %87 T3 TYLOL INARLEYIHIA
% 0070 00°000°TT 000 000 00°000'TT 00 000°'TT §2°599'0T TebsT - spy TeboT 3 SOTITATIOY owoid 08%-%TS-TO
% 0070 00°000'S9 00°0 00°0 00°000°S9 00°000°S9 8% 618°'05 Tosuno) {ebaT - SSOTAISS T[PUOTSSdFoad OTE-PIS-T0

TISNAOCD TYDIT

it = ama= S — EEESEsssEES EEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSS SESAEESEESSSSSSSSS SSSISCONEEEEESSSSS sSssSscossmammmEss

% 8T°2T SE EBLISLE S9°%¥60°TS G9°'%60°CS 00°8LB'LZY 00°8L8'LZY B6 €55°69¢€ TYIOL INIWLIYAEA
% Z0°9LE (T€°025°S) TE 0ZS'L TE'0ZS'L 00°000°C 00°000°'2 otT°9vz’t xg - sdrysasqueW 3 ‘"qns ‘-‘qnd ‘sjyood 0vS-ZTS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T P S0E aaTInooxyg - satrddns Burieasdo 025-215-10
% 00°0 00°00S°'T 000 00°0 00°005°T 00°00S8'T 05°299 saTinoexy - sat1ddng 85TIF0 0TS-2TS-10
aRZITYEY 1S5a09 TIVAV SHSNIAXH QLR SAGNAIXT QLK 1E0aas rayv 1I0aNg qgLJoay STYOLOY NOILATHOEEA INOODDY
FOVINHAOUEL | §20Z §ZT0Z 5202 5z0Z [14:14 ¥Z02Z 1/

01 / SZ0Z 123 |eosl] 104 2)91dwo) IA % £€°8
saln}ipuadxy pund |eJauds)
MYNNVOr :¥3sn 65592 ‘0N qof/dyd-Bd—)058q6
81 jo ¢ abed

ALID X10d 40 ALID

GL:Gl veoz/eliLl




% 0070 00°00€E 00°0 00'0 00°00€ Q0"00¢€ T8°'68C butuoz = bptg - mm._”dwmsm 80T3IJ0 O0T5-¥ZS-TO
% 0070 Q00 Q0°0 00°0 00" 0 00°0 00°09 Burprtng - buturtexl S0¥-$zS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00°'0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 000 Butuog ® Bplg - $90TAI9s burissutbum TTE-$2S-T0
% LL°O 00'990°8%C 00 PE6'T 00°%E6’T 00°000°056¢ 00°000°08C 8% ' 99€°18 mn..EON ® bpTd - S9DTAISS TeUOTISS®JOId QTE-%C5-TO0
% 0070 007908°T a0’ 0 Q0" 0 00°908'T 00°908°T YL S8%'C oz 3 bprd - :o..nuanmeoo S!{GEHNIINIOM 0%2-%25-TO
% LETO ZS LEB'TE 8%°BTT 8%°BTT 00°956°T¢E 00°996'TE 98" 5%¥¥ ‘LT TuozZ % bpig - Soueansul YITeSH ¥ 2ITT 0€T-%CS-10
% 0Z°¢€T $9°80L €T 9¢'¥80°2 9£°%80'¢ 00°€6L'ST 00 €6L'ST 8% S¥0'ST Tuoz =® BpTE - UOTINQTIIUOD JUBWSITISY (CT-¥CS-TO
% B6'ZT TE ETL'L 69°'0ST'T 6970ST’'T 00°'%98°'8 00 v¥98‘8 L6 8ZE'D Putuoz 3 bp1g - soxel eSTd 0TZ-%ZS-10
% T9'v6T (9%*212'T) 9% "SEB'T 9% "SEB'T 00 £Z9 00°€29 98°¥vL mn._EON ¥ Bplg - SWTIISAQ 0PT-¥Z5-T10
% 89°1TT 86°98L°T0T ZO0TLSTET 20T LST'ET 00 ¥%2Z’'STT 00 %%C'STIT ST %29°90T uTucz » Bpta - sobeym - Azeres zernbay 0ZT-%#2S-TO

ONINQOZ OGNV ODONIJTIING

% 9.L°ST 00°00Z'S8T 00°0%9'¥%E 00 0%¥9'¥E 00°0%¥B’61C 00°0%8'6TC SL°'T8Z'%0¢ TYLOL INIWLIVARA
% 00°0 Q00 Q0" 0 00" 0 00°0 00°0 00 00L’S Jug meT - Juowdtnby ® A19UuTyo®W 0%9-125-T0
% L0°2¢E 00°09€E’'€EL 00°'0%9°'F%E 00°'0%9'¥pE 00°000'80T 00°000°80T SL°vE6'88 Jug MEeT - SS9DTAISS TPUOTSS3J0Id O0TE-TCS-T0
% 00°0 00" 0%8'TTIT Q0" 0 00°0 00°0¥8'TTT 00°'0F8 ' TITT 00°L¥9’'60T Jug meT - I0QeT ]10eIjuo)d S0€-T1CS-TO

INHNIDYOINT MYT

% EE"8 6.°928'60T T2 986°6 TZ %86°'6 ZS 018’611 TYLOL INIWLAYIHA
% LS8 L9 6LT'9C EE PSTT EE"HSV'T 00" %E£9'82 00 ¥E9'BT 68 €£08'TE Squd 890TAISS 1430 IXRED - 3IS8ILJUT  0ZL-LTS-TO
% 9Z°8 ZT LP9'€E8 88°625°L 887628 L 00 LLT'T6 00 LLT'T6 €9°900'88 Sjug SOTAISS 3q=d L3 - Tedroutad OTL-LTIS~TO

HDIAY¥ES 1"3d

% TI9°6 $5°9€5°99T 9% ZOL'LT 9% '20L’'LT 00°6€Z'¥8T 00°6€Z'%8T 6% €66 EST TYLOL INHWINYdIA
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00" 0 00°0 00°000°'T 00'000°T 88°'68¢€ T4 - sdrysasquaW ¥ ‘-qng ‘-"qnd ‘syoodg 0%S5-91S-TO
% 0070 00°000°€ [efe o] Q0’0 00°000'€E 00°000°€E ET°92¥% Pujooy ® UTd - mm.:nmmzm Butjeasdo 0z5-915-10
% 00°0 00°000°T Q0°'0 00°'0 00°000'T 00°000'T 6T €96 Bujooy 3 utd - mm..n._”&mﬁm ®DTIJ0 O0TS-915-T0
QEZITVEA ILIDaNg TIVAY STANAJXE ALX SESNIIX ALK Igpane ray 1IZDaNg aILIoqy STYALOVY NOILJI¥OBHEA LNOODOY
EOVLNADYAS | §202 5202 s20¢2 41} 4 S202 »202 1/

01 / SZ0Z 183 [e9sld 104 2391dwo) JA % £€°8
mw;::v:wnxm pung jeJausn)
MVNNVOF :¥3SN 65592 :ON qorydyd-6d—0c8q6
81 0 g obed SLiS)L P20T/TLILL

ALID M10d 40 ALID



% 00°0 00°000'SZ 00°0 00°0 00°000°S2 00°000°'S¢e 00°6€2'62 193BMWIO}S - Sa0TAISS Burxsautbug 1T€-8ES-TO
% 0070 000 0070 00'0 00°0 0070 00°SLY'¥ YIITMWIOLS - SHOIANAS TYNOISSHIONd OTE-8ES-TO
AALYMWNIOLS
R EEEsisis EEEEEEESSEsEEEEENS SEEEEESEEEEESSSESN SEEENESESESSSNNENE ERSSSSSISSSINSSSSS SSSSsEEEEESSSSSSSS SEEmEEEssssssssaas
% 2Z°S 90 TTL'9TH $6°6%6°'CZ $6°6%6°'T2 00°199°'6€E% 00°T99'6€E¥ €1°782'82% TYLOL INIWLIVAAA
% BPEPT 90 EOT'LET $6°6%6°'CT $6°'676°CT 00°£50°09T 00'€5009T 0L 6%E'EET ssngay - Teroaswwop - [esodsTq 9SnIvY ZHE-PES-TO
% 00°0 00°809 ‘6LT 00°0 00°0 00°809°'6L2Z 00°'809°'6LT €V TE€6 V6T sngsy - TerIusprsay - [esodsTd 9snyoW TPE-¥ES-TO
NOILVIINYS/ZSNdqd
5 61°0T Z6°L00'9% 80°12Z'S 80°'12Z'S 00'622'1S 00°622'1S 06° LG9 LY TYLO0L INAWINYAHEA
% 00°LT 00°ST¥ 00°58 0058 00°00§ 00°00S LT°92¢ op - sdrysasqusi 3 '-qns ’'‘qnd ‘S}OOH 0¥5-625-T0
% 00°0 00°009 00°0 00°0 00009 00009 €1'6¥%S jug 9pop - gor{ddng Butjeasdo 025-62S-T10
% 00°0 00002 00°0 000 00° 002 00002 0v" 69T Jug spop - sa17ddns SOTIIO 015-62S5-10
% 00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°Q 00°00S 00°00S T6°TLE Jug ®poD - S9OTAIDS UOTIBOTUNWWOD 0TH-62S5-T0
% 00°0 Q0°000°T 900 000 00°000'T 00°000°T 00°0TL INIWAOYOANT HA0D - ONINIWEL S09~625-TO0
% 0070 00°00§ 0070 00°'0 00°'00S 00° 005 69°56€ Jug 9poD - sesuadxd T[IARIL 00%-625-10
% LS8 00°00%'9 00°009 00°009 00°000°L 00°000°L 68°9LB'L Jug Spop - S9DTAISS [RUOTSSaTOId 0TE€-6Z5-T0
% 00°0 00° %08 aoo 00’0 00°%08 00" %08 9€°950'T Jug =apop - uorjesusdwo] sS!EEHFIINION 0¥Z-6TS-TO
% S0°LT 75 8ET 8 82 85 8¢ 00°'L9T 00°L9T (zL°826) Jjug opoD) - @PouUeANsSul YITeSH ¥ 9ITT 0€CT-6TS-T0
% 62°TT 96 €86 '€ 0 LOS %0°L0S 00°T6¥%'% 00 T6%'¥ 0z'562'% Jug 8po) - UOTINQTAIUOD JUSWIITISY 02Z-6TS-TO
% ET°TT vy 6ET'T 95082 957082 00°0T5°¢ 00'o0es‘e LB FBE’'T Jug 9pop - S9XBL BITJ 01Z-6¢S-T0
% 62°TT 00 LzT'6T 00°02L’E go'ozL'E 00°L¥6'CE 00" L¥6'CE 00"ELS'0€E Jug ®pop - sabey - Axeres aeTnbed 0zZI-625-T0
INIWADAOINT HA0D
EemmEEEESSm EEEmE—mEmEEEEESSSSs SESsssssssESSSSISS SECCCEEEESSSSSSSSS SSoSsmSSEREEESSSS SSSSSsEssssssEasss SSRSSSSSSCEEEnasEs
% €8°% 66°50L'S0% T0'085'02 T0'085'02 00°987°92% 00°982'92% SE°TLT 2T TYLOL INAWLYYIHA
% 00°0 Q0 00€ 000 00'0 00°00€ 00°00€ TE 89T 19 - sdrysxequeW ¥ ‘"qns ‘‘qnd ‘SA00" 0¥S-¥ZS5-TO
% 00°0 00°00% 00'0 000 00°00% 00°00¥% 66" TI8€E Butuoz ® bprdg - se11ddng Burjeasdo 025-%2S5-10
QAZITVEY 1E5a08 TIVAY BIINEIXE QLA SEgNIAXE dIN lapdnd oay ISDANE AILJOaY STYALDY NOILJI¥NDSEQ INOQODDY
HOYINIOYEd | 6202 5202 §202 §202 5202 202 1/9

MVNNVOr -¥3sn
81 4o 9 abed

01 / §20Z :1ea [e2sld Jog a19|dwo) JA % £€°8
sainypuadxg pund [eJauan

ALID ¥10d 40 ALID

65592 :oN qorydyd-6d—L0s8q8
SLiS) ¥ZOZ/ZLILL



Esss= EEEaEEDSSSESEE—ENEER SSSSSESSESENESSS

ZS: SENEEENESSSSSSESSER SESSSSSSHEEAERSSSEE =S

srEEsTsssEssssan

SLEHYIS ANV Savoyd

5 %279 €€ PT0'PTIC L9°G€Z'%T L9 GEZ'FT 00°05Z'822 00°0SZ ‘822 99°96L'502 IYLOL INIWLAY4EA
% 00°0 000 Q0" 0 00°0 000 00°0 LL*VOL'9 o uen - juewdinbm 3 "YOoRW - TTEH A3ITD 1¥9-6€S5-T0
% 00°0 00°000'0S 0070 000 00°000°0§ 00°000°08 00°0 o usn - sbpiE 1/0 "acidur - TT®H A3TD TE9-6€5-T0
% 0070 00°000°T 00°0 00'0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00518 1tng - satrddng ¥ sTetzejen adedspueT TES-6£S-T0
% SS°€ 00°626'T 00°TL 00" TL 00°000°T 00'000°C 65'TC9'T p-set11ddns buriexado-a23us) AJTUNMWOD ¥TS-6ES-TO
% 00°LT 00°59¢€ 00°GET 00°SET 007005 00° 00§ 65°9T¥ 1ddns Butjeaadp - pring 2s0odind-TATNW €25-6€5-T10
% LT°0T ¥0°2ZLS'T 96" LLT 96 LLT 0070SL'T 00°05L'T EP ZT65°T sat1ddns Butjexsdo - x93us) AITATIOVY CZG-6ES-T0
% 62°5 8T TLY'6 z8° 8¢S z8°8¢2S 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 2 EBO’E usp - sarrddng Butjeaado - TTBH A1TD T1ZS-6E5-T0
% 0070 00°00S Q0" 0 000 00°00S 00°00§ 00'0 3! 6E#3A0D USD - sSabieyd IUBIAND IBYIO 06%-6E£S5-TO
% 00°0 00°000'0S 00°0 00°0 00°000'0S 00°000'0S LG 8LE'E usp-juTten 3 satedsy-193us) AJTUNMWOD $IF-6£S-T0
% 00°0 00°000°2 00°0 000 00'000°2 00°000°'¢ 9L'TTI9'¥ INIVA 3 SY¥IV4EY -4TINd FS0ddNd-TILOW €9%-6€S-T0
% 00°0 00°005'% 00°0 00°0 00°005'% 00°005'% YETECTO'F D - jureW ® satedsy - 193U AJTATIOY T99-6€S5-T0
% €L7% T7°9L0'1C 65°€26'9 65°€26'9 00°000°82 00°000'82 S0°LB%’'08 A0H usp - Jurey ¥ satedsy - TTeH AITD T9¥-6€5-T0
% vE°9 €L TET L LZ"LOS LT LOS 00°000'8 00°000'8 9E ¥S6°9 1€ 1!6EHIACD USH - SISEIT pue STEIUI 0¥ F-6€5-T0
% SS°% PP TLL'Y 957122 95°LET 00'000°'S 00°000°S 19°122'9 EH#7A0D USD-SSTATTTIN-ASIUS) AJTUNWWOD HEF-6EG-TO
% 80°8 S LSL'T 9% Z¥T 9% Z¥e 00°000'€ 00°000°€ St 860°€ NAD - SHILITIIA - QIINg ¥50d¥0d-ILTOW €E¥-6€ES-TO
% L6°S 94°05¢€'C $Z'6%T $Z 69T 00-005’2 00° 005’2 v°zZvs’e AOD USD - SITITTTIN - I23u9d AJTATIDY ZEP-6ES-TO
%5 968°8 S6°%0% 9T 50'G65°T G0°S65°T 00°000°8T 00°000°8T TO"I9% ‘6T 3/ GE#INOD UWSD - SIOTITTTIN ~ TTeH A3ITO TEP-6€S-TO
% 2T°6 ZLOT9E'T 82 8ET 8T 8ET 00°005'T 007 0058'T 80°T25'T 09 USDH-UOTIeDTUNUWOD-I3FUD) AJTUNUMO) HT¥-6€S5-10
% 9°0T 95°5€6°8 Py ¥90'T PP $90°T 00°000°'0T 00°000°0T 8T°L59°0T #3400 U2H - uoTjedTUNWWO) - TTeH A3TD TTv-6£5-T0
% 00°0 (00°50T) 00°S0T 00°S0T 000 00°0 00°0 5 usp - IIY3I0 - SIOTAIDG [RUOTSSIFOId CTIE-6ES-TO
% 06°L 00 0E9°LEZ 00'0LE’'T 00°0LE’T 00°000°0€E 00°000'0E ZZ°909'9¢ 1!6EH#IAOD USH - SIDTAIDS TPUOTSSJOAd OTE-6ES-TO
SONIQTING L, AOD TYYENID
e cmemsaE EEESEESEEsSEsEEEEE SERSSSEASEEEEENEEE SSSEsESESsSEEEEEES SESSSSSSSENEEENESS SESSSSSSSSSIIENENE SSSSSsssSSaEEEESwE
% 00°0 00°'056°'9€ 000 00°0 00°0S6'9¢€ 00°056'9€ 98 €€V’ BE IYI0L INIWIAYAIA
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00°00§ 00°'00S 00°'00§ as - sdrysiequwsW ¥ '-qns ‘'qnd ‘9x0od 0¥S-8ES-TO
% 00°0 00'0ST 00°0 00°0 00°'05T 00052 00°0 I97eMUIO]S - 994 ISYI0 ¥ BuTproosy zev-8ES-T0
% 00°0 00°000°0T 00°'0 00°0 00'000°0T 00'000'0T 88 EVE’E I33BMUIO3S - SouBUSUTE pue siTedsy 09%-8E5-TO
% 0070 00°00Z'T 00°0 00°0 00°00Z'T 00°'00Z'T 00°'9L8 Io3emwrols - Bururteir S0%-8ES-TO
aQIAZITVEY I99a0€ TIVAY SHSNIIXE QLX BHONIAIXZ ALK 182pans Lav 1350049 QEIJ0TY STYNLOY NOILII¥DSHA LNAODOY
AOVINIONEA | ST0Z sz0Z sz02 SZ0T 44114 12414 1/p

MYNNVOP :¥3sn
g1 Jo . abegd

0l / GZ0Z :1eaA |eIsly 104 aajdwo) IA % €8
sainjipuadxg pund |eJaudn)

ALID M10d 40 ALID

65592 ‘oN qor/dyd-6d—|oseqb
SLGL ¥20Z/ZLLL




% 12°5%¢ (88°288) 88°06%'T 88°06%'T 00°809 00°809 00°0 Azexqr - SWI3IALA0 0FT-TLG-TO
% 9% 1T 69°L9V'T8 TE 6%5°0T TE 67501 00°LT0'Z6 00°LT0'Z6 90°5L0'S8 Azeiqrr - sobem - AzeTes zernbey 0ZT-TLS-TO
AUVEEIT

RS B ————————— e SRR PP S LEE LSS PR ERE RS S

% ST°L HE°TF9 095 99 8T 'E¥ 99 8T 'E¥ 00°928°€09 00°928°€09 0T'095'92S TYLOL INAWINYAAA

% 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 05'218'1 35 % speoy - ssaaBboid WY UOTIONAISUOD 0G9-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°000'%T 00°0 00°0 00°000'%T 00°000"'%T €€ TTB'0T 99135 ¥ speoy - Juswdinby 3 AzsuTydoeW 0%9-T¥S-TO
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 00°000°'T 8L 6ET T oy - BurTpTTng weyl z8yl0 SjuswaAoxdur 0€9-THS-TO
% 00°0 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 05°1€2'T s19913s 3 speoy - sButpTINg 029-TI¥S-TO
% 00°0 007009 00°0 00°0 00009 00°009 18°'TSL oy - sdryszasquay ¥ ‘'qns ‘‘qnd 'sSyo0od 0%S-T¥S-TO
% 00°0 00°005°'T 00°0 00°0 00°00S'T 00°005'T 00°0 peoy - sorpddng 3 sTetx23en sdedospueT TE€5-T1HS-10
% 00°0 00°000°SL 0070 00°0 00'000°SL 00°000'S¢L 99°0€€ ‘8T s 3 speoy - sst1ddng 3 STRTASIEW PEOY 0£S5-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00°005 00°00§ 00°0 $399138 R Speoy - STEedTWSYD $ZS-T¥S-T0
5 90°¢C 00°660'9 00°82T 00°82T 0022’9 00°.22°9 $T°85%'S s390135 3 speoy - satrddns butiexsdo 0z5-T¥S5-TO
% 00°0 00°00S 00" 0 00°0 00°005 00005 ££°682 s399135 3 speoy - soT11ddns 30TIFO 0TS-TIPS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°'2 00°0 00°0 00°000°'2 00°000'T 00°0 s399135 ¥ speoy - Tejuay juswdrnby €67-THS-TO
$ 00°0%2 (00°008°2) 00°008'% 00°008'% 007000t 00°000'T £9°18% doy - A3TTTOo®Rd SOTITTTAN/SHIOM OTTANd 99%-THS-T0
% 00°0 00°000'9 00°0 00°0 007000'9 00°000°‘9 6V 0TL'E S399135 3 SPEOY - SDUBRUSIUTEN STDTUYSA §9%-T¥S-T0
% 00°0 00°000°€T 00° 0 00’0 00°000'€T 00°000°€T £9 EPEET 5399135 ¥ Speoy - Tong STSTYSA #9¥-T¥S-T0
s 11702 $Z 686 "L 9L°0T0'2 9L° 010’2 00°000'0T 00°000'0T 1S5°955 BT eoy - juswdrnbg-soueusjutew 3 sxtedsy T9%-T1¥S-TO
% 00°0 00°000'S 00°0 00°0 00°000°S 00°000’S 60°T08'E 135 3 speoy - =oueusjutrey pue satedsd 09%-THS-T0
% 00°0 (00" ¥1€) 00°'%TE 00°%TE 00°0 00°0 69°9%T'T s39919S ¥ SpeOY - S9S5eIT pue STRIUSY O0P¥-THS-TO
% 60°T 95°9ZL'%T Y ELT ¥HELT 00°000°SZ 00°000°Se 6T°T65'8C s3@9135 ¥ Speoy - S3TATTTIN 0€P-TPS-TO
% 62°L 06 TLT'¥ 0T"82E 01" 82€E 00°00S'¥ 00°005'¥ 9 TEQ0'¥ 2135 7 SPROY - SIDTAIDIS UOTIEDTUNUWMOD OTH-THS-T0
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000'T 00°se s39913s - buTuTRil S0%-T¥S-10
% 00°0 00°000'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°‘T 00°000'T 89°89 s329135 ¥ Speoy - sosuadxd [PABIL 00%-T#5-TO
% 00°0 00°000°0T 00°0 00°0 00°000°'0T 00°000'0T 62°G6L'9T 799135 ¥ Speod - S20Taxag burassurbum TTE-THS-TO
% B0€ 00°0€£Z'%2 00" 0LL 00°0LL 00°000°S2 00°000°ST L1°981’8L 29115 ¥ SpEOY - SIDTAISS [PUOTSS2IOAd O0TE-THS-TO
% 00°0 00°6ST'6T 00°0 000 00°6ST'6T 00°'6ST 61 €L°T9%'LT CCEMIS 3 SQYOM - NOILYSNAJWOD SYMIAOM 0%Z-THS-TO
% 8E°0 ZE T9T 6L 89" H0E 89°%0€ 00°99%'6L 00°99% ‘6L 0L°ZLL'SS 11§ 7 Speoy - @dueINSUI YITesH 3 °FTT 0€Z-THS-T0
% 26°TT 09" v%¥% '8¢ 0% 8%8’€E 0% 8%8'€E 00°€6Z°2E 00°£62'Z€ 0T°59%'92 I35 3 Speoy - UOTINQTIJUOD JUBWSITIDY 0ZZ-THS-T10
3 LT TI 94°€26'9T $2T°LTT'T $Z°LTT'T 00°TS0'6T 00°TS0‘6T 98°550'%T s799115 ¥ SpEOY - SOXeL ©dTd 0TZ-T1§S-TO
% 7L 08 0L°6T0'T 0g£'0LT’ ¥ 0Eo0Le'v 00°062'S 00°062'S 8L 8LE'¥ §399135 3 SPEOY - SWTIIAA0 0FT-TPS-TO
% 00°0 (59°%9) 59°%9 S9° %9 00°0 00°0 99°00% 15 % speoy - sobeyM pue S9TIRTRS IBYI0 O0€T-THS-T0
% 286 16 ¥6L'61T 60°S¥6'€T 60°S¥6'€T 00°0%L EVT 00°0¥L'EHT TZ2°ZSh €8T 517s ® speoy - sebeM - Axeles xernbay 02I-THS-T0
qIZITVEY | 1294008 TIVAY SASNAIXE QLK BIASNIIXI QALK 1I5a08 Pav¥ 18pane qIII0qv STYOIOV NOIILdI¥NOS2d INDODDY
FOVLNIONEA | $T0Z sz0Z 5207 S202 (1414 $202 1/9

MVNNVOr -¥3sn
84 4o 8 abed

01 / GZOZ 1eBA |e9S1] 104 9331dwo) JA % £€°8
sainjipuadx3 pung [eJauag

ALID X10d 40 ALID

65592 :oN qor/dyd-6d~Los8qb
SLiGL P2OZIZLILL




=zssssmE===

szzspmmmEsSsSssDse SESSSSSSESEESSSSSS =

EEpEETCoSsSSSSSIE FNESSSSSSSEIEEESSS

EEasSsCCEEEESESSSS EANSCESSESSSSEIERS

SINAAT TYIDI4S

% €8°€ 8L 166 'T¥H 2z 86L'T zz'96L'T 007000 ‘L% 00°000'L¥Y SET9L'9E IYLOL INAWINYIHEd
% 0070 00°000'0T 00°Q 00'0 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°0 ®d - BurprIng ueyl I9Yylo sjudwaroidul 0€9-TLS-TO
% 89°T 0T°8S%'z 06° 1% 06 T¥ 00°005°2 00'005°2 8€°120°C syaed - sa17ddng Buriexado 025-ZLS-TO
% 00°0 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00°00S 00'005 00°0 syaed - Te3jusy juswdtnba €6%-2ZLS5-TO
% 0070 00°06L°C 00°0 00°0 00°000°9 00°000'9 95 9EE‘¥ s)zed - SoueusjuTel pue sIATedsy 09¥-TLS-TO
% 16°S 89 €50°ST ZE 976 ZE'9%6 00°000°9T 00°000°9T VLOPPS'PT s)Ied - SOTITITIN 0EP-CLS-TO
% SL°9 00°06T'TT 00°0T8 00°0T8 00°000°'2T 00°000'TT L9°8G8'ST syI1Bd - SIOTAXIS [RUOTISSIOAd OTE-TLS-TO
SAYd
i iimsiss SEmEsSE EEEESEESSs SESEEESSSSSESSSEEE EEESSSsSSSSssaSESs SSSoSssSsEsssEssss SSSSSSIssaszssosss SsssssaaTsoosssses
% £1°8 96 " TTO'6LT 0 L¥B8'ST %0 LPB'ST 00°658'¥6T 00658761 T8 PI€’SLT TYIOL INIWLIVAHA
% 1I8°T ¥8°09€ ‘8T 9T 6€E 9T 6EE 00°00L"8T 00°'00L'8T 0€'8E% ' 9T aqTT - stetisieW AxeiqrT 3°qnd ‘9300 099-TL5-TO
5 0S8°T 00°0L6'T 00°0€E 00°0€ 00°000'2 00°000'2 9L°Z8S 11 - sdrysisqusy ¥ ‘-"qns ‘-qnd ‘siOod 0¥%¥S-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00'0 0070 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°ST8 1qt1 - sotrddng 3 sTeTI=ajen adedspueT TeS-TLS-TO
% €ECT°T 96°296°'C 0" LE $0'LE 00°000'€ 00°000'€ ZI'9ET '€ Areiqr - setddng burjexado 02S-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 0070 00°000'T 00°000°T 8Z°8S¥ Axeaqr - s911ddng 90T3IFO 01S-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°002 000 00°0 00°002 007002 €9°LYT Azeaqrl - ssbIeyd JusrIND ILSYI0 06%-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00'009°2 0070 0070 00°009'c 00°009°2 002V Texqt] - spy T[ehaT 3 SSTITATIOV owoad 08%-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°00€ 00°0 00°0 00°00€ 00°00€ 00'0 AxeaqrT - uoTionpoxdsy pue BUTIUTIA OLF-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°’S 00°0 0070 00'000°S 00°000°S LY 985’6 Azeiqrl - 9oueusjureW pue siTedsd 09%-TLS-T0
% 8L'€ 9,°8%8'€ %2 TIST 2 TST 00°000'¥% 00°000'% 99°862'€ AzeaqTT - SOTITTTIN O0EP-TLG-TO
§ LE'B $ETS99'€E 99 BEE 99" VEE 00°000% 00°000'% 0S"9LL'E AaRIQTT - SOOTAISS UOTIEDTUNWWOD QTH-TLS-TO
% 0070 00°00L 0070 00°0 00°00L 00°00L 00°0 Axexqr - Bututeial SOv-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°009 000 000 00°009 00°009 0€'vT Axezqry - sesuadxy [2ABIL 00%-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°€E 00°0 0070 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 55'¥2S ‘e eIQTI - I3Yl0 - SIDTAIDS [PUOTSSDIOAd ZTE-TLSG-T0
% T6°% 00°0€T'S 00°0LT 0o‘oLe 00°005’S 00°'005°S 92 ETT L A1eiqrl - S®DTAI9S [euUOTSsajoxd 0TE-TLS-TO
% 00°0 00°'z0T 000 00°0 00°20T 00°2Z0T LT T9% Azexqr - uotiesusdwo) S!EEHTVIINION 0%Z-TLS-TO
% T€°0 €' €L TE 89°L6 89" L6 00°TZ8'TE 00°TZ8'TE z8'08T'ST Axeaqry - ®oueINSUI YITeSH ¥ 9ITT 0£¢-TLS-T0
% 00°€T Z6°€86°0T 80°T¥9 T 80°TH9'T 00'529’¢1 00°5z9'2T €' £00°2T AzeaqrT - UOTANGTAIUOD IUSWRITIDY 0ZZ-TLG-TO
% 6L°TT T0"0BT'9 66506 66'506 00°980°L 00°980°L 0% 0%9'9 AzeaqrT - sexel eOTd 0TZ-TLS-TO
qEZITYEY 1g0a09 TIVAY BESNZAXd QLX BISNEGXE QIH Ipans LAY 1gpaNg gEIJOaY STVALOY NOILJIINOSHA INOODDY
HOVYINIOYAL | S2T0Z 5202 5202 sz0zZ 5202 124114 1/9
0L / GZ0Z :Jed, [easld 104 939jdwo) JA % €€°8
sainjipuadx3 pung |eiauds
MVNNVOF :¥3sn 65592 :oN qor/dyd-Bd | 058qb
g8l jo ¢ abed S-Sl veoerelivL

ALID M170d 40 ALID



% $6°0 00°80L'€E 00°S€E 00°S€E 00'EBL'E 00 EVL'E z9°'TIE'€ g-uoN - sabxeyp burjeasdp-uoN - ISYIO 666-065-T0
%(8T°L) €0° 116 (€0°T9) (€0°19) 00°098 007058 {LE"SOT) 3dsg-uoN - 3990 Ped 966-065-T0
% 0070 00°000'€ 00°0 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000'€ 000 1dag-uoN - swrel) JjuswAordwsun zT66-065-TO
% 0070 00°000°€ 00°0 0o 0 00°000'€ 00°000'€ 00°000'T Q-uoN - suotiezTuebio 93BATId O3 SPTV 166-065-T0
% 00°0 00°28E’S 000 00°0 00°28E’S 00°ZBE’S 0070 ON - S9AIISSY POIOTIASSIUN - SSAISSIM 0%6-065-T0
% 0070 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0SE'9 og-uoN - BprE ueyl 19y3lo sjuswssoxdwr 0£9-06S-TO
% 00°0 00°000'2 00°0 00°0 00-000’¢2 00°000°C TLEOV'T aauutq AepTroH ®aAotdwg $55-06S5-T0
% 0070 00°000°T 000 Qo0 00°000'T 00°000'T $5°8T€ spaemy/Buriosn eofoTdwd €55-065-TO
% 00°0 00° 00§ 000 000 00' 00§ 00°'00§ 000 Butisal 104 TSS-065-T0
% 00°0 00°009 000 000 00°009 007009 00°€50'T sesfordwd - SUOTIBZTUNWWI TSS5-065-TO
% 0070 00008 00°0 00°0 00008 00008 000 aser Bnag/wexy juswhiordug-914 05§5-065-TO
% 00°0 00°005°'CT 00°0 00°0 00°005'2T 00°005°2T 8y €€2' BT NON- sdTysisquwsW ¥ ‘-qns ‘°"qnd ‘S}0od 0%S-065-T0
% 0070 00°0SL 00°0 000 00°0SL 00°05L 8z 692 ajdeg-uoN - ®beisod 875-065-T0
% 9%°6 $8°00€’'% 91 6%¥ 9T 6%¥ 00°0SL'¥ 00°0SL'Y 88 188 'Y a3dsg UON - SwaoFTun §ZS-065-T0
% 09° €% £5°9%9°2C LY %05 LT LY %05 LT 00°0ST’'0% 00°0ST'0% $1°052'¢2 1iexedo - S9TOULBUTIUOD B SITOUSLASWH TES-065-TO
5 P % 55°585'6 SY PTY SH PTY 00°000'0T 00°000'0T 91" %5501 adeg-uoN - satrddng Huriexado 025-065-T0
% 00°0 00°000'T 000 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°T T6'LV0'T Tejuswizedsg-uoN - soT7ddng 99TIJO 0T5-065-TO
% 0070 00°002'T 00°0 000 00°00Z'T 00°002'T 00°000°T aqdeq uoN - sabBreypd JuRIAND IBYIO 06¥-065-T0
% 00°0 00°006'T 00°0 000 00'005°T 00°00§°T TL'6€9 ejuswiredsg-uoN - SduUBPUSIUTEN STOTYSA S9%-06S-T0
% 0070 00058 000 00'0 00°058 00058 LE BLS Tejuewjzedag -UON - T9Nd ITOTUIA $9¥-065-TO
% ¥6°28 0S €L%'0T 05°925'66 05°925'66 00°000°0TT 00°000°'02T 05°840'90T 3deg-uoN - eoueinsul AITTIGETT 0S§%-065-T0
% LETE EL FIE'S LT S8T LT S8BT 00°00§'S 00°'005’S 9% LBO'E ade@-uoN - S9sEB9T pue STRIUSY 0%F-065-T0
% 8E°T €L %82'6C LT STL LT STL 00°000'0€E 00°000'0€E Z%°'289 0T adag-uoN - Buritpny pue Burjunooov 0zE€-06S-T0
% 00°0 00°000’8 00°0 00°0 00°000°8 00‘000°8 000 g-uoN - I9YJ0 - SODTAIDS [RUOTSSIFOAI TTIE-065-T0
% 86°€ 00°900°'%2C 00" %66 00° 766 00°000'S2 00°000°'S2C 99°261'92 1dsg-uoN - S82TAISg [RUOTSSI30Id 0TE-065-TO
TYININLEYdEd - NON

e emEaEEEE EEEfEsEEEEEEESEeeS SEESsEEEENEEEESSEN CEEEENAESSSESEESES IEEEEEEERESSSSSSSS AESRSSSSSSSSSSSSEN EEERSSSSSSsssssses

3 0% 6 627 TS¥'65T TL°8%5'9T TL 8%5'9T 00°'000°9LT 00°000'9LT Ze 129’59 TYLOL INIWLIVIEA

g €6°T 65°590'86 TP PE6'T Ty 7E6'T 00°000°00T 00°00000T L6°0T0'S 570z TeTuutiua) - so11ddng Burjerado 125-¥LS-TO
% 00°0 00°000°'0T 000 00°0 00°000°0T 00°000°0T TE ¥9€’8 sjuasg 29ds - setrddng burijexado 02S5-7LS-TO
% 00°0 00'000°L 00°0 000 00'000°L 00°000°L v9 E€TE squoayg oads - sebaeyD JuOIAND I9YI0 O06¥%-VLG-TO
% 00°0 00°000'T 00°0 00'0 00°000°'T 00°'000°T 00'0 g oads - spy TeBeT 3 SITITATIOY owold 08%-¥LG-TO
% 00°0 00° 00§ 000 000 00°00§ 00°00§ 000 usag oedg - uotionpoadey pue burjutad 0LY-PLS-TO
% ¥8°LT 0L°SB8'LE 0E'$TI9'%T 0E'$T9'%T 00°006’¢2S 00°005°'eS 0€'TTE’'0S squaag oodg - sosed] pue sTeIudd 0¥v-¥LS-TO
% 0070 00°000°S 00°0 00°0 00°000°'S 00°000'S 00°£429'T sjuoag oads - S8OTAISS TEUOTSS9JOId O0TE-¥LS-TO
EZITVEY lEOand TIVAY BISNIAXE CLX EIENAAXE GQIK lgpand ray¥ 18500 OELI0qY S§TYOLOY NOIL4THOSHA LNOODDY
IOYINIDYES | 5202 5202 §202 5202 5202 vzoz 1/9

MVNNVOS -¥3asn
81 jo 01 ebed

0l / SZ0Z :1e3A [edSld Jo4 8)13|dwoD JA % ££°8
sainypuadxg pund |eiauan

ALID X10d 40 ALID

65592 ‘oN qor/dyd-6d—L0s8qb
SL:GL $ZOTIZLILL




T0 " T8E“2%C TO"T8E ‘962— S6°0EE ‘HIT~ 00°'¢ 00" ¢ 5L 9ZHh‘HSS saaal] Lpuadxy ' sA snu3a=)] [E30)

351" 06 20°'€E8D’CEZ'EC B6 CH5ESE Z6'€E60’9LE 0p°*czd‘s@2YC 00°'C20°6B5°E O CZ0°BES’E Teq0l s33njipuadyy pung [U12Ts0
200° L6 ED PP T8RP ‘E LG TA5‘L0T L6°T9S5°LOT 00 LEO’68S7E 00" LZO’685"E €92 0SL’S6¥P’E TE3C] Fenueaey PUnj TeILus)
% 9% Th 16°TTE'29T 60 E9L'6TT 60 €9L'6TT 00°5.0°28¢ 00'5L0'282 6%°80T‘S0C TYLOL LNIWLIVIEA
qEZITYEE | 139Q0d TIVAY SABNSIXE QLA SEENEAXS QI igeand 0oy 1F00n€ gELE00¥ 2TVALOV NOILAT¥DSEA INQODDY
HOVINZOHEL | 6202 §202 $202 5202 [$4}4 ¥20% 1/6

0l / 6Z0Z :1e3 [e9sld 104 839|dwo) JA % £€°8
sainjipuadxy pung |eJausn

HYNNVOP :u3sh 65592 ;0N qopjdyd-6d™405890
8140 1} ebed ALID S10d 50 ALID S1:6) Y20ZZLILL




11/12/2024 15:11
gb614_pg.php/Job No: 26557

. CITY OF POLK CITY
Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2025 thru Month: Oct
Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND

Page 2 of 5
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 3,152,365.00
05-101-913 DEP Loan - Sinking Fund 14,517.30
05-101-916 US Bank - Sink Fund 287,418.79
05-101-917 US Bank - Renewal & Replacement Series 205,524.29
05-101-918 DEP Loan WW531400 - Sink Fund 164.25
05-101-919 DEP Loan WW531402 - Sink Fund 16,700.79
05-101-3920 Cash - Customer Deposits 368,881.20
05-101-930 Restricted Cash - Reclass 1,364,325.00
05-101-936 FDEP 531402 Sinking Fund 11,917.80
05-101-999% Restricted Class - Reclass 1,364,325.00-
05-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 232,230.51
05-115-130 Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 26,312.87
05-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 327.41-
05-117-200 Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 38,370.95-
05-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE EF 670,992.41
05-151-902 Investments - FL SAFE EF Reserves 140,228 .45
05-155-300 Prepaid Insurance - Deferred Bond Series 2017 26,413.35
05-159-100 Deferred Outflows - Related to Pension 121,152.22
05-159-200 Deferred Outflows - Loss on Refunding 572,721.48
05-160-902 Reserve Account 100,000.00
05-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 48,044.00
05-161-900 Fixed Assets - Land 2,762,913.00
05-164-100 Utility Plant in Service 16,625,958.21
05-165-900 Acc.Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 5,469,060.53-
05-166-900 Equipment & Furniture 968,701.15
05-167-900 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 540,263.83-
05-168-900 Furniture & Equip - Right to Use Leased Assets 9,972.92
05-168-950 Accumulated Depreciation - Right to Use Lease 1,672.75-
05-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 95,333.71
*% TOTAL ASSET** 20,408,768.23
05-202-100 Accounts Payable 30,197.32
05-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 32,014.84
05-202-900 Customer Deposits 368,881.20
05-203-100 Accumulated Interest Payable 47,954.17
05-203-600 SRF Loan WW51201P 1,539,866.35
05-203-610 SRF Loan WW53140/SG531401 Effluent Disposal 28,753.70
05-203-615 SRF Loan WWS531402/SG531403 751,015.82
05-203-710 US Bank 2017 Bond Note 7,135,000.00
05-203-760 Right to Use Leased Assets B,455.61
05-203-910 Unamoritized Bond Premiums - US Bank 426,208.06
05-207-400 Due to General Fund 31,844.15-
05-208-305 Taxes Payable 2,380.81-
05-210-800 Compensated Absences - Current 12,907.80
05-223-100 Deferred Revenue 1,364,325.00
05-225-100 Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 19,359.90
05-234-100 L-T-D - Current Portion 446,754.26
05-234-901 Less: Current Portion of LTD 446,754,.26-
05-235-800 OPEB Liability 18,155.80
05-235-900 Net Pension Liability 400,283.46
#*#% TOTAL LIABILITY*=* 12,149,154.07
05-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 12,832.50
05-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 12,832.50-

*% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE**




CITY OF POLK CITY

11122024 15:11 n Page3of 5
gb614_pg.phplJob No: 26557 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2025 thru Month: Oct
Fund: 05 ENTERPRISE FUND
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-250-100 Contributed Capital 598,715.40
05-255-100 Change in Fund Balance 36,514.20
05-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 6,969,286.97
05-271-150 Fund Balance - Restatement 12,428.57-
05-271-200 Net Asset Adjustment Account 10,071.23-
05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734,552.82

** TOTAL EQUITY**

** TOTAL REVENUE**

*%* TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

8,316,569.59

218,288.79

275,244.22

20,408,768.23




3 L6°F TZ €LS'SLT ¥ 6L°882°'81C 6L°88T°'81C 00°298'€6E'% 00°298’'E6€’ Y €V 9VZ'6LL'T STVYILOL LNIWLIYdIA
% 00°0 00'€91°289 00°0 00°0 00°€£91°2Z89 00°€£91'2Z89 Q0" 0 zdwul 19mMS§ ZVJUY - pIemIog Kixep yse) ¢06-I8E-S0
% 00°0 00°968°'599S 00" 0 00" 0 00°968°59S 00°'968'69S a0'0 W 90104 8 TYddVY - PABMIO] Azzep ysep T06-T8€-50
% 00°0 00°000°'0S¢ 000 00°0 Q0°000°0S2 00°000'0SC 00'0 YdWI JIMIS/JAIVM - QEEMI0S A¥EYD HSWO 006-T8E-S0
% 00°0 (057°9T) 05" 91T 05" 91 00°0 00°0 Q0" 0 9DTOAUI - JUSBWISINQUEIDY - JWODUT IOSTW 00L-69E-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°049L JwAdIsAQ JO PuUNIay IOPUSA ETII-69E-S0
% 00°0 00005 '€ 00°0 00°0 00°00G°€E 00°00S8'€ (I8 L29'LT) sjudiaaQ JO PUnNzay IdwWO3sn) 0TT-69E-50
% E€°L 00°006'ET 00°00T'T 00°00T'T 00°000'ST 00°000°ST 0L'VE9'ET SWOoDUI "OSTW 00T-69¢E-50
% 90°8 60 "PEL'BE I6°L6E'E 16 L6E'E 00°2ET'2¥ 00°CET'TY 6T"2LT'CY FIYS Td - SPUIPTATA/ISSIDJUI 00Z-T9E-SO
% L6 6 00°T8L'8T 00°6L0°'T 00°6L0°T 00°098°02 00°'098°'02 00'BST’'S2 s934 33T 00£-6SE-S0
% 06°F 00°8%9°'T 00°se 00°s8 00 €EL'T 00°€EL'T 00'S0T‘2 spung JUSTOTIINS UON 00T-65€E-S0
% TZ2°?1 00°STT'6T 00°69T'€E 00°S9T'€E 00°08Z‘22 00°'08¢'2Z 00°585'%¢ S2IN3T93I04 I0/pue SSUTI ISYI0 00T-65E-S0
% L9°L G8°6LB'9VC'T ST 9€9'€E0T ST 9€9°€E0T 00°9T5'0S€E’'T 00°915°05€'T $Z 0T9'60E’'T snusaay AJTTTIN ISMIS 005-0%€-S0
% L9 L 29'LZ0°8€T’T 8€°0T6 20T BE 0T6 20T 00°8€6°0%E'T 00'BE6'0PE'T 69°'6S6°'¥¥E’T snuaasy AJTTTIN ISIBM O00E-0%E-S0O
5 P11 9€E"TES ¥9°89 $9°89 0070089 00" 009 kAR 4T siTwiad/s=a94/ 'OTT1 ISYI0 00T-62€-50
% $8°T CTE"LEG6'QOT 807902 80°50¢ 00 E€PT'TT 00 EFT'1T 98 9LT'TT Is3eM - sbxeyp aAI9S O] SFBUTPEdY ITZ-SCE-SO
% €9°% 09°0LS°8 0%*"9T¥% 0% 91¥ 00°L86'8 00°L86°'8 0L'950'6 Iemes - 9baeyDn 9aI195 031 sSssutrpesy 0TC-SZE-SO
% #S°T BL"TTI8'SL 22 88T'T zZz 88T'T 00°000'LL 00°000°'LL LL°GS69'TT sTsed Yse) - I93eM - S934 UOTIDIUUOD TTIT-SZE-S0
%2 ¥68°T 6% €60'T TSs'0¢C TS 02 00" $TIT'T 00 BIT'T T8 LTT'T I AIN %0T A3TD - SId TO0E-%T1E-SO
qIZITVIS LIDIZIq/ (89IDOXI) IONIATY QLR SONFASY INIJIND JLVIIOILNY HONSASRY QIIV4AIDIINY | SONIASY ¥X YOI¥d NOILAI¥DSEQ LNAODDY
HOVINSIDYEId | §202 S202 §202 oray szZoT | 24114 /0
0L / SZ0Z :1eaA [e9S1d 104 2)3|dWo) JA % £€'8
ANNIAIY ANN4 ISRIKYILINT
MYNNVOF :N¥3SN 65592 :oN qor/dyd'Bd~}058qb
8l Jo zZ| obed S1iSh ¥20ZiTL/LL

ALID M70d 40 ALID




% 00°0 00°000'0T 0070 00°0 00°000°0T 00°000’0T €0°B6T'L ado I93EM - SOTITITIN - dIM SATIO "IW TEP-€£5-50
3 €7V zZT°L98'T 88°Z€T 98°2Z€T 00°000'€E 00°000°€ YET9S'T JeM AJTTTIO®BA SOTITTTIN/MA - SSTATITIN OE€P-E£E€5-S0
3 BE°T TT°LI6’S 68728 68'28 00°000°9 000009 sT°8L9'T 19do I93jeM - SSOTAISS UOTIBDTUNWMOD 0TP-££5-50
% 00°0 00°0SL‘T 00°0 00°0 00°0SL'T 00'0SL'T 05" LE 19dp xs3eM - ButuTreil S0¥-€££S-S0
% 00°0 00°052°T 00'0 00°0 00°0S2'T 007052"T 91°698 xodo x27eM - sosuadxy T2A®IL 00%-€E€5-50
% 0Z°2T 00°06€E'% 00°0T9 00°0T9 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°TT9'€ sordwes - S9DTAISS TRUOTSSSIOId PIE-E€ES-SO
$ SZ'vC LLTO0P8'T £2°606 £2°606 00°0SL'€ 00°0SL'E L6°LT8'T Teuoiboy Y[0d - SOOTAISS [PUOTSSDIOId ETE-EES-SO
% 8S'¥T 05°2Z€’0¢€ 05" LLT'S 0G°LLT'S 00°006'SE 00°005°S€E S0°L09'09 I93BM - I2Yl0 - S9OTAISS TRUOTSS3JOoId ZTE-€£5-S0
% ¥5°0C 00°529°SS 00°SLE’'FT 00°SLE'¥T 00°000'0L 00°000°0L SLUEVL'T 1ado zo3eM - s9ofazeg burxssutbug TTE-E££S-SO
5 00'0 00°000°ST 00°0 00'0 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 98°'86L"'E saEd AINJIOLIY - SHOIANES TYNOISSHIONd O0TE-£€5-50
% 00'0 00°88% '€ 00°0 00°0 00°88% '€ 00°88%'¢€ 6T°220'L sdo z23em - uorlesuadwo) S!EEHPIDYIAOM 0FZ-££5-50
g Z€'0 06°0%9°'L¥ 0T°2ST 0T"2ST 00'E6L'LY 00‘t6L LY 95826 '8¢ 18do I93EM - SOURINSUT YITEOH ¥ 23ITT 0€C-€£5-50
% BL'LT SH'TOS'ET SS°6T6'T SS5'6T6°2 00°1Z%'9T 00"T2H'9T 85°E€0€E'ST z9do I93eM - UOTINQTIIUO) JUBWSIATIDY 0ZZ-£E€5-50
s LT'ET LT %2901 €8°TT9'T €8'TT9'T 00°9£2'21 00°9£2’21 Tv°596'0T 12do 193eM - S9XeL BDTA 0T1Z-€E€S5-S0
% LE'6V 66°899'¢ TOLLS'E T0°LLS'E 00°9%2'L 00°9%2'L T T9S'L 18dp I93EBM - BWTIASAQ OFT-££5-50
% 0070 (sT'2%) ST 2% ST'ZY 00°0 0070 ££°002 xedo zejey - sofey pue SSTIRIRS I9Y3I0 O€T-EES-S0
% L9'TT ZLTELB'FET 82°£28°LT 82°€28°LT 00°L69'2ST 00°L69'2ST 6T 0SL'LET xedo zejey - sebey - Axeres Jeinbey 0ZT-€€£5-50
TYLOL INAWIYYdAd
% 00°0 00°52Z% 00 0 00°0 00°SZ¥ 00°52% £9°20% ey - sdryszaqusy ¥ ‘"qns ‘-qnd ‘sS}ood 0%5-815-50
% 0070 00°005'T 00°0 00°0 00°005'T 00°00S'T €€°852'T utwpy xs3ep - sa717ddns Butierado 0zS-BT15-S0
% 00°0 007009 0070 00°0 00°009 00°009 9T T¥E utwpy I123ep - so17ddng 90110 015-815-50
% 00'0 00°005§ 00°0 00°0 00005 00°00S 00°0 utwpy IsjeM - s9bIPY) JUSIIND ASYI0 06¥-8TS-S0
% 00'0 00°'00% 00°0 00°0 00°00% 00°00% TS HLT wpy Is7em - uorionpoidsy pue BUTIUTAd O0LP-8TS-50
% 00°0 00°000'T 00°@ 00°0 00°000'T 00°000T 00°66% uoTjeIISTUTWPY I97eM - BUTUTRIL S0$-815-50
% 00°0 00°000°C 0070 00°0 00°000'2 00°000°'2 00°'66T'T utwpy I97eM - BUTUTEXl PUB T2ARIL 00%-8TS-S0
% 0070 00700092 00°0 00°0 00°000°92 0000092 6e LSL'TT Is3eM - I9YI0 - SIDTAISS TRUOTSS230Id ZTIE-BTS-G0
$ 0070 00°%¥%T 00°0 00°0 00" 5%T 00" %5T 00°0 wpy xo3ey - uorjesusdwoD S!EEHIISAION 07Z-8TS-S0
5 T€'0 86°LBS LY 20°L¥T 20°L¥T 00°SEL'LY 00°SEL'LY 12156 '6€ utwpy I93eM - SoueINSUI YITESH ¥ SITT 0€Z-8TS-S0
% S0°€ET LFTEPS ‘ST €5'€EE’T €5 €€€’2 00°LLE LT 00°LL8'LT L9 LST'TT uTWpY A93BM - UOTINQTIIUOD JUSWRITISY 0ZZ-8T5-S0
% 9L°2T 06" €SL'8 0T'082'T 0T°082'T 00°¥€0°0T 00 %€0'0T GE'T65'6 uTWpY I93eM - SIXeL ®OTd 0TZ-8TS-50
% 28'9ze (ez's2e’T) 2T 0LE’'T ZZ 0LE'T 00°SP0'T 00°S¥0’T 00°0 uTWpy I93eM - SWIIISA0 0%T-815-50
% PETT LS'S9€’STT £%°0SL 7T €% 05L T 00°9TT'0ET 00°9TT'0€T $T°609'6TT utupy xojeM - sobem - Axeres xetnbsu 0Z1-8TS-S0
I93%eM
QEZITVEY | 1EPa0d TIIVAY SASNIIXS QLA EISNIIXT ALK 1Zpang Lav 130008 AILIOqY STVOLOV NOIIJTHOERq INNODDY
FOVINIONES | §202 5202 5202 5202 sT0Z $202 1/

MVNNVOT -¥3sn
81 Jo ¢| ebed

01 / SZ0Z :JedA |edsld 104 919|dwoD JA % £€°8
sainyipuadx3y pund asudiajuz

AL1D M170d 40 ALID

65592 :ON qor/dyd-6d™Loseqb
SLiSL ¥20Z/ZLILL




$ £€°0 6B°999 LY TT°LST TT°LST 00°¥Z8’LY 00'¥28°LY Zh°'90z'8T 1adp Tom3s - douUeINSUI YITERH 3 SITT 0€Z-S€5-S0
% ¥0°BT 6€°028°'%T 19°192°€ T19°192'¢€ 00°280'8BT 00°280'8T 26 19L'8T 1sdp I8M3S - UOTINGTIIUOD JUSWSIATISY 0TZ-S€S-S0
% g8 €T T9°8%E'TT 65°6T8'T 65°6T8'T 00°'89T €T 00"89T €T zs°se8’0T zado zoMB8S - S9XEL BOTA 0TZ-SES-SO
% SL°E9 zZ5°L98°C 8% €¥0'S 8% E¥0’S 00°TT6'L 00" 1TT6'L TL 615’8 1ado I9M9S - BWTIIIBAQ 0FT-5€5-50
% 00°0 (S1°2%) ST 2% ST 2% 00'0 00°0 ZE' 002 zado xomas - sobem pue seTIRTES I9Yl0 OET-SES-S0
% 6%°TT 75 SSE'STT 8% 998'8T 8%'998'8T 00°222'%91T 00°222'%91 L9 WLL'6ZT 1ado zomas - sabem - Axeres aeinbay 0¢I-SE€5-S0
I5MB8

e emEiiee SeSSEEEEESSSSnSSoE smSSSsSs—sSmmsssos SSSSSSINEENESSSSSS SOSSASSRESSSSSSSSE ANSSSSSSSSssssssas SSsssSsssssasmmsass
5 018 $0 S¥T'768 9% €16 6L 9% €16 6L 00168986 00° 168986 S6°ZL8TVL TYLOL INIWIAVAZA

00°'THL €S 00°0 00°0 00'2¥L'€9 00°2%L'EY $8°859'G9 zadp I93eM - 1SSISIUI 0TL-EES-SO
% 00°0 00°8LT'99 00°0 00°0 00'8LT'99 00°BLT'99 00'968'€9 12do a93ep - Tedroutad OTL-££5-S0
% 00°0 00°000'€T 00°0 00°0 00"000’ET 00'000'€T 08°'08€’'S 1odo x93eM - juswdinbg 3 AISUTYOeW 0%9-€£E£5-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 0070 00°0S2'% eM - Burpring ueyl xsYyjo sIuswsaoxdur 0E9-£€£5-S0
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00°0 00°0SL 00°0S¢L S5 LSS em - sdTysasqusW ¥ ‘‘qng ‘°qnd 'sS300d 0%S-€E£5-G0
% 25°¢ 08 TB% ‘L6 0Z'815°T 0Z'815'T 00°000°00T 00°000°00T €0 EEE'8T oueuajurel ¥ sitedsy - sa11ddns I918W LZS-€€5-S0
% 00°0 007000001 00°0 00°0 007000001 00°000°00T 00°0 xo3eM - STTeIsul meN - soTi1ddng I839W 9TS-£ES-SO
P-4 0% Z€T'9T 09°L9L 09°L9L 00°000'LT 00°000°LT €1°220'¢€T 1ado I93BM - STROTWAUD HZS-£€5-50
% 00°0 00°000°2 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 00°000°2 L6°1T 1ddng Burtjezado - 4IM SWeTTTTIM 3IJBW'A ETS-EES-SO
% 00°0 00°000'T 00°0 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°'T 00°0 sa71ddng futiexado - 4LM UITBSMUOUWWOD ZZS-EE£5-50
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T 00°000'T 00°8€ES M - sortddng Burjeaado - dIM SATTO 3N TES-EES-SO
% 6L°0 02 ZB8'¥T 08°LTT 08°LTT 00'000°ST 00'000°ST LS 612°ST xedo xs3eM - saT11ddns butiexado 02Z5-€£5-50
% 0070 00" 005 00°0 00°'0 00°00S 00°005 S0°6LY aadp I93eM - soTTddng 90TFFO O0TS-EE5-SO
% 00°0 00°0%%'¥ 00°0 00°0 007 0¥% ¥ 00°0%% ‘¥ 00°002'2 19dp I93eM - S334 I9YI0 ¥ PBUTDIODW ZEH-EES-50
% 00°0 00°007% a0 0 Qo0 Q0 00¥% 00 00% 000 2do x@3eM - Eo.wuuﬂvo.nmmm pue Butjutid 0LP-EES-SO
% T1°0C £9°%66 '€ LETS00'T LETS00'T 00'000°S 00°000’S 52°890°'€T Jjem - juswdinbg-soueusjuten ¥ satedsy L9F-£ES-5S0
$ 00°0 00°000°€ 00°0 00°0 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00T dey - A3TTTOo®BA SSTIATITIAN/SAIOM OTIqNd 99%-£€5-50
3 00°0 00°000'0T 00°0 00°0 00°000°'0T 00°000°'0T 82°825'8 1edo 183eM - SOUPUSIUTRW DTOTYSA S9%-€ES-50
% 00°0 00°000°0T 0070 00'0 007000°'0T 00°000°0T € ST8'ET aadp x23eM - [90d 3TOTYSA P9P-€EG-S0
% E£€°S8T {E%°992'%) £7°99Z°6 €7 992'6 Q0°000°S 00°000°'S 09 €EST'TT TeW pue mua.m&wm - dIM SWeTTTTM JIeW A E€9%-tES-S0
% 00°0 00°000°'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 00°000°'T 00°009°'61 Jquten pue siTedsy - 4IM YITeSMuOWwod Z9¥-££5-50
% ST'6TT (L8 26°T) LB %26 TT L8 ¥Z6TT 00°000°0T 00°000°0T LS'TE0'9T M - qurey pue giTed9y - 4IM SATIO "IW T9P-€€5-S0
% 09°% £L°L9Z'0€ET LL'668'9 LL'668'9 00°000'0ST 00°000°0ST EL°6TL'B8 zedp a93epM - Soueusijuten pue siatedsy 09%-£€5-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 00°6ZE’€E 12dp I93eM - SISV pue STRIUDY 0¥P-€E€S5-50
% 00°0 00°000°‘€T 00°0 00°0 00°000'€T 00°'000°€T 9L°59T'6 JeM - SOTITITIN - 4IM SWeTTTTM JIBW'A E€E€P-EES-S0
% 00°0 00°06L"'T 00°0 00°0 00°0sL'e 00°05L'T 9¢° 8ET'¥ Io3eM - SSTITTTIN - 4IM YITESMUOWWOD ZEP-££5-50
QEzZITVEN | IE5a0d TIVAY SEENEAXT QLA SHSNEAXE QIN 130008 rav 1E5008 QIILIOqV 8TYALOV NOIL4TNOSHA INAODDY
HOVINIONId | §202 5202 §202 5202 3414 12414 /0

01 / GZ0Z :Je3\ |edsld 104 31a|dwod A % £€°8
salinjipuadx3z pun4 asudiajug

MVYNNVOF 838N 65592 :0N qorydyd-6d~|0s8qb

g8l jo p| abed G1:Gl ¥T02/TL/LL

ALID AT0d 40 ALID




% 00°0 00°66%'T 00°0 000 00°66%°'T 00°66%'T 08°085'T ueo] TesodsTtd JUsSNTIIE 4UA - ISIASIUI  TZL-SES-50
% 00°0 00°92L'8%Z 00°0 00°0 00°S2L'8%C 00°seL'8ve TT1°995'85C xadp I9mMag - 389183UI 0ZL-SES-50
% 0070 00 TET'LZ 00°0 000 00 TET'LE 00 TET'LZ $6°890'LT vop TesodsT@ 3usniIIE 43d - TedTOUTId TTIL-S€5-S0
% 0070 00°L58'99€E 00°0 000 00°L58'99€E 00° LS8 '93¢E ZT Z8L’'SSE aedo aemas - Tedroutad O0TL-SE€5-50
% PEO SL7 656 €95 ST 9E6'T 52°9€6°T 00°968'595 00°968'595 20°909°'12 12dp 1emM35 - Ssoaboxg Ul UOTIONIISUOD 0G9-SES-SO
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 000 08°08€°L zado xsmag - jusudinbzm 3 AxsurtudeW 0%9-SES-S50
% 0070 00°0TO0‘0T 00°0 00°'0 00'0T0'0T 00°0T0'0T 00°0 z2dp x9mds - walsAS ¥AYDS P$E9-SES-SO
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0070 00'0 BL 6ET'T 9 - Burpring ueyl I9y3jo sjuswasoxdul 0€9-SES-5S0
% 0070 00°00S 00°0 00°0 00° 005 00°00S 56 LES as - sdrysaequsw 3 ‘‘qns ‘-qnd ‘SAO0E 0¥5-5€5-50
% 00°0 00°000'S 00°0 00°0 00°000'S 00°000°S 00°'0 odo zamag - goTTddng ¥ STETISIBW PO 0€5-SES-SO
g 96°TT 08°GLE'SE 0T %29'% 0Z°%29'¥ 00°'000°0% 00°000°'0% 06°ZSh €€ 25d0 I9MOS - STEDTWIYD ¥ZS5-SES-50
% SLL 00 0TZ'€E 00°06L°2 0o0'o6L'Z 00°'000'9€E 00000 '9€ 00" €55'8T futiney sBpnis - 4IMM TTTH TBRUTPA®D ZZ5-5€5-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°'0 00°0 00°'0 LT 0TE 11ddns Burjexsdo - 4IMM TTTH TRUTPA®D TZS-SES-S0
% 00°0 00°000°02 00'0 00°'0 00°'000'02 00°000°02 15°286 2T aodo z9mss - sa71ddns buriersdo 0Z5-S€5-S0
% 00°0 00°00§ 000 000 00°00§ 00005 (2728114 xadp zomads - s9TTddng S5TIIJO 015-SE€5-S0
% 00°0 00°000°'€ 000 000 00°'000'€ 00°000'€ 000 1edo zemas - Tejudy Juswdrnbd €6%-5€5-S0
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00°00§ 00°00§ 00°009'2 1odp 19Md5 - S84 I9Y3l0 ¥ BuTpIonay Ze¥-SE€5-S0
% 00°0 00°000°2 Qoo 00°0 00°000'2 00°000’T 007005 1adp asmasg - ssbieyp JuLIIND ISYI0 06¥%-GES-S0
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 L9 6%E zomas - SpPY TeH9T 3 SSTITATIOY owoad 08%-SES-50
% 0070 00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°00T 00°00T 00°0 odp 1emas - uotjonpoxadey pue Butjutad 0LP-S€5-S0
% ¥6LT 9 €T6'% 9£°9L0'T 9€°9L0'T 00°000°9 00°000'9 8 ESV'6 mag - juswdrnbg-soueusjutew ¥ saTedsy L9¥-5€S5-S0
% 00°0 00°000'S 00°0 00°0 00°000'S 00°'000°S 00°0 doy - A3TTToed S9TATTTIN/SIIOM 2TTqnd 99%-5€G-SO
% 00°0 00°000'0T 00°0 0070 00°000°0T 00°000'0T PE VEL'6T 19dp ISMBS - SDUPUSJUTEW STOTUSA §9¥-S€S5-50
% 00°0 00'00€’'eT 000 000 00°00£'CT 00°'00€’CT 15°'550°8 13dp I9MIF - 9N STOTUSA $9¥-GES-G0
% 00°0 00 000'0€Y 000 000 00°000'0E¥ 00°000'0€d £2°L69'LY § - jutey pue sateday - TTTH TRUTPABD T9%-5€S-S0
% T0°0 €L°LYL'9SS LT LS LT LS 00°508°9SS 00°508°95S £0°'008°S8 xadp xomeg - IdUPURJUTERN pue sATedsy 097-SES-S0
% PI°S 0z 0%9°9 08°6S€ 08°6SE 00°000°L 00°000°L SS BLT'6 dp x@Mes - SSTITTTIN - JIMM SATIO "IN EEV-S€5-S0
% 0270 8T 129 '6E z8 8L 78 8L 00°00L'6€E 00'00L'6€ TO 858 '6€E amMas - SOTITTTIN - dAIMM TTTH TRUTPA®D TEVP-SES-S0
% 9z°¢2 68°8BE'TT 1T €92 1T €92 00°2S9'TT 00°259'TT LS LSE'S ma§ AJTTTO®R4 SOTATITIN/MA - SSTATITIN O0EP-SES-SO
% 0070 00°000'€ 000 000 00°000'€ 00°000'€ 08°€50'2 O I8M®S - SOAIS WWOD - AIMM SATTO "IW CIP-SE€G-SO
% 22§ 67 E¥B'T TL°9ST TL°95T 00°000°€E 00°000°€ v¥6'89L'T MBS - SOAIS wwoD - JIMM TTTH TeUTPIED T1¥-S€S-G0
% 99°¢€ S8 EVL’Y ST'95Z 5T°952 00°000'¢L 00°000'L 6L 9ET ¥ z2dQ I9M3S - SVOTAIDG UOTILITUNUMOD OTH-5€5-S0
% 00°0 00°000'Z 00°0 0070 00°000°T 007 000'e 0 LS zado 1emsg - Bututeil S0¥-SEG-S0
% 0070 00°00S°T 0070 000 00°00S5'T 00°005’T 88 12T aado xomeg - sosuadxd [IABIL 00H-SE£5-50
% 05°0C 00°6Z6°'TT 00°GLO'€E 00°'SL0’€ 00°000°ST 00°000°ST €L ELS'FE sordwes - SOOTAISS [PUOTSS®FOId HTE-SE€5-G0
% 9§°T SB 8TIZ 6% ST T8L ST 18L 00°000°'05 00'000°0§ E ELY'PTT IaM35 - I9YJ0 - SOOTAIBS [PUOTSEDJOId TTE-5E€5-5S0
% 00°0 00°000'06 00°0 00°0 00'000°06 00'000'06 ST 957’ 9% 1odp 19mM35 - S90TAI9g Butassutbud TTE-SE€5-S0
% ¥8°L 00°0GL ‘8BS 00°000'S 00°000'S 00 05L’€9 00°'05L’'€9 9% E9L LY SATA AINNOLIY - SHDIAYHAS TYNOISSAA0Nd 0T£-S€5-SO
% 00°0 00" PLL'E 000 00°0 00°BLL'E 00 bLL'E 000 adp zemag - uoriesuadwo) S!EEHPISHIOM 0FZ-S£5-S0
QaZITVEY 139a0d TIVAY SASNEAXE LA SHBNAAXE QLK Iaoang oay IFOqNE aILIOqY gTVALOY NOILATHDSHA INOODDY
HOVINIOUSd | 6202 5202 6202 (44114 szo0z 1 24114 1/

MVNNVOr -¥3asn
81 40 G} obed

01 / GZ0T 11894 [e9sld Jod 3)31dwo) A % €8
sainjipuadx3y pung asudiajuz

ALID M10d 40 ALID

65592 :0N qor/dyd-6d~o58qb
G161 ¥202/TLiLL




€% "556 29 £€F°5G66 ‘96~ €666 95— on-z nn°z NE°"ZTT'SLT ssan)IpuadxXg ‘sA DNUSASY TR0

$92°9 BL LT9’81T1'B- 22 bz ’SLT-  ZZ HbT'GLZ— 00 DIB’E6E’b— DB 098 EGE’ - TET'BED’BDS Z-  TE30l S3anjipuadxy pund osradisiug
sL6'P T2 SLSSLT'® 6L"8BZ ‘8T2 AL"882°8T¢ DD*ZIB'ERE’E DN"Z38 ‘ERE‘T EH OFT'HLLT Te30] sonusasy pung 2511disjug
enemSememm EEESS—sEEsEEEEEAE SENEENSEEEEESSSEEE SESSSSESEEEEEENSTS SESSEEENNESESSSSSS EEESSSSSSsssSaEEEEs SSSssssssEEsssse=s
% 20 9% 8L"¥BE'9VT 22 %08 'veT 22 %08 '¥eT 00°68T'TLZ 00°'68T'TLT VE PHESOT TYLOL INIWINYAIA
% 00°0 00°'005°2C 00" 0 000 00°005'T 00°005'2 69°06L g-uoN - sebreyd Butieaado-uoN - I9YI0 666-065-S0
% (07" €) 21°985°T (z1°58) (z1°58) 00'005°C 00°00S'T 50°95% 1d9g-uoN - 3920 PeRE 966-065-50
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°0 00'0 00°000°T 00°000°T TL TES adeg-uoN - sjuswAedi®aQ JO Punidy S66-065-S0
% 00°0 00°000°T 0070 00°0 00°000°T 00°000°T 00° 0§ 3deq-uoN - 9394 JURH ¥66-065-50
% 00°0 00°000'€ 00°0 00°0 00°000'€ 00°000'€ 00°0 3dsg-uoN - Swrteld JuswAordwsun Z66-065-S0
% 00°0 006889 00°0 00'0 00°688'9 00°688'9 00°0 -NON S®AI9S8Y Ppa30TI3gaxuf - SOAIISIY 0¥6-065-50
% 00°0 007009 00°0 00°0 00°009 00°009 000 syessy peseaT 3sn 01 IYBTY - I99IBIUI  SZL-06S-50
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 05°2ES’€E sg-uoN - Bp1€ ueyl 19Yylo siuswasordul 0£9-065-50
% 00°0 00°000’'2 0070 0070 00'000°‘2 00°000'2 00°0 sy paseaT 2sn 03 IYyBTY - uoTieroaidsg 509-065-50
% 00°0 00°0SL'T 00°0 00°0 00°0S§L'T 00°'0SL‘T 18°L20°T xouutqg AepTToH o9fordud $S55-065-S0
% 00°0 00°0SL 00°0 00'0 00°0SL 00°0SL 0€°926 spaemy/Burisen e9fordwd €55-065-S0
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00°00S 00°005 000 Burasel 10d TSS-065-50
% 00°0 00°00S 00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°19 seskotdug - sSuUOTIEZTUNWMI TS5-065-50
% 00°0 00°00§ 00°0 00°0 00°00S 00° 008 00°0 3soL bnig/wexy juswhoTdwg-91d 055-065-S0
% 0070 00°000°9T 00°0 00°0 00°000°9T 00°000’9T 79°7L8'TT NON- sdTysIaqusi ¥ ‘‘qns ‘-"qnd ‘s30od 0%5-065-50
% 00°0 00°005 00°0 00°'0 00°00S 00°005 06°9LE 1dag-uoN - @Be3sod 825-065-50
% 05°TT #8°9TL'E 9T €8% 9T €8¥% 00°002’'% 00°00Z'¥% 9L°L8T'S 3deQ@ uoN - swICeITUN SZS-065-50
% 9T°80T (T€°TE9'T) TE'TE9'TT 1€ TE9'TT 00°000'02 00°000°02 ET°902°2T t3exado - sorousburjuo) 3 seTouabrawd T1Z5-065-S0
% SP€ TS SBS'TT 6% ¥T¥ 6% TT¥ 00°000°2ZT 00-oo00'el S9°ELYTT adag-uoN - satrddns Hurjeaado 0¢S5-065-50
% 00°0 00°000°T 00°Q 00°0 00°000'T 00°000°T 857258 tejuswisedsg-uoN - sat7ddns 85TIJO 0TS-065-S0
% $5°98 0S ELT'ST 05°925'66 05°925'66 00°000°STT 00°000'STT 05°625'68 3dsqg-uoN - @dueansul AITTTARTT 05%-065-S0
% 50°L SE'ZTT'S 59 LBE S9°LBE 00°005'S 00°005°S GL E88'S 3deqg-uoN - S9Seaq pue sTeIURY 0¥H-065-50
3 8£°C LL LYS'6S £E2°2ST'T €2°25%'T 00°000'T9 00°000'T9 5 1661V 3jdeqg-uoN - ButiTpny pue BuUTIUNODOY 0ZE-065-S0
% S6°L 00°90S'TT 00766 00" 766 00°005°2T 00°'005°2T G6°T6E’LT 3deQ@-uoON - S®OTAIDS TRUOTSS®30ad 0TE-065-50

Tejuswizedsg-uoN 4F
% TLT 9.°09L'9%8'C T Sv9 6V 2 S¥9'6% 00°90%'968°C 00°90%'968°2C ST pL8'8Y7'T TYLOL INIWIIYIAA
qIZITYEY 139008 TIYAY SESNA4XE ALK EIEINIIXE QIR 1Ipane rav IEDan8 QEIJOqY STYALOV NOILJIdOSIA INOODDY
FOVLNIOUI | 5202 5202 §202 SZ02Z 5202 12414 1/

01 / S2OZ 183\ [e9sld 104 3j8|dwo) JA % €€°8
salnjipuadx3g pun4 asudiajug
NYNNVOr - »3sn 65692 :0N qor/dyd-6d— 105896
81 Jo 9| ebed SL:Sl ¥20Z/TL/LL

ALID M170d 40 ALID




CITY OF POLK CITY
1112/2024 15:11 n Page 4 of 5
gb614_pg.phplJob No: 26557 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK

For Fiscal Year: 2025 thru Month: Oct
Fund: 08 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - GF IMPACT FEES

Account Account Ending Net

Number Title Bal Amount

08-101-100 GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 22,284.53

08-101-101 GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 11,388.84

08-101-102 GF Recreation Impact Fees 34,325.39

08-101-103 GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 57,091.25

08-151-100 Investments - FL SAFE GF Police Public Safety 236,537.90

08-151-101 Investments - FL SAFE GF Fire Public Saf... 150,131.86

08-151-102 Investments - FL SAFE GF Recreation 448,946.81

08-151-103 Investments - FL SAFE GF Facilities 498,617.81
%% TOTAL ASSET** 1,459,324.39
** TOTAL LIABILITY** 0.00
*% TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE** 0.00

08-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 1,453,707.85
*% TOTAL EQUITY** 1,453,707.85
** TOTAL REVENUE** 5,616.54
** TOTAL EXPENSE** 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 1,459,324.39




95°56Z°CLT’T  $5'919°S $5°9T92"S Do 0 No"0 D8 LBLSLT— saanjipuadxg -“sa snuan9d TeRIOL

£00°0 00966 ‘889 000 (115 30] " D0'956 ‘88G— 00°9S56°886- LT'58L"092— Te30l seanjipusdxg pung =ej joedmI Io

356°0 9% "6EE ‘€8S F5'219°S #5219 D0 " 956 ‘885 N0*956°88S LE" 286708 Tel0] SonNuUaIA3Y pung o4 joeduy JO

O —————— e PR SRR S R RS S

% 00°0 00°956°'889 00°0 00" 0 00°956 '88S 00°956'88S 00’0 STYIOL INFWLIYJHA

% 00'0 00°%LL 2T 00°0 00°0 00°%LL'CT 00°%LL'CT 00°'0 SPUSPIATQ/IUL D9y R S)Ied - SSAIIFIY TeL6-ILS-80

% 00°0 00 TCL '¥¥C 00°0 00°0 00°TZL'¥¥T 00°T2L'%¥C 00" 0 s993 joedwl 09y X 9)ABRd - SIBAIDSSY QE6-7LS-80

% 0070 00°88€ %I 00" 0 00°0 00°BBE'FT 00°88E'PT 00°0 SpTATQ/3ul A3T1TIo®Bg OTTqnd - S9OAIISIY TE6-6E5-80

% 00°0 00°2Z9'S¥T 00°0 00°0 00°229°'S%1T 00°229°'S%T 00" 0 994 3oedul AQT[ToBA OTIQnNd - SOAISSSY 0€6-6£5-80

% 00°0 00°50L’'8B 00°0 00" 0 00°S0L'8 00°S0L'8 Q0" 0 ATQ/3Ul A3eJes OTTqnd SITd - S2AIS8SSY TE6-2¢5-80

% 00°0 00°STE’'BY 00°0 00°0 00°STE’'B¥ 00°STE’'8P 00" 0 qoeduy A3sges OTTqnd =IATJ - SSAISSIY 0€6-7Z5-80

% 00°0 00 EET'FT 00" 0 00" 0 00 EET'%T 00 EET'¥T Qo"0 a/3aul Ajages 211qnd SDT[Od - S3AI8S3Y TE6-1ZS-80

% 00°0 00°862°06 00°0 00°0 00°862'06 00°B6C'06 00" 0 oedur A3lsges OTITAnd SOTTOd - SBAIISSY (€6-TIS5-BO
SHINLIANAAXH

N e eemesmm EEEEEEEEEESEEEEESs EEEEEEEEASEESSESSE SAEERSSEESSSSsSsSs SEEEEEEESSSSSSSsSS SEESSSEEEEESSSsss=SS SEEEEEREESSsEsssa

% S6°0 9% "6EE'ERS $5°919°'S $5°919°S 00°956°88S 00°956 885G LE"9686'%8 SIYLOL INIWIIYIHA

% 9e°6 9% " €8E'PS %5°9T9'S ¥5°919°s 00°000'0Q9 00°000°'09 6C ELB'69 HA¥YS Td - SPUSPTATQ/IS8ISIUI 00Z-TI9E-80
% 00°'0 00°TZL PV 00°0 000 00°TZL' PP 00°TZL %% %0°Z66°9 954 3joedur SSTATIIORd OTTANd OTL-%ZE-80
% 00°0 00°229'S¥T 000 00°0 00°229'S¥HT 00°229'S¥%1 $9°09T'% o931 joedw] uoTjedIOdW I SYIBd 0T9-VTE-80
% 0070 00°STE'8BY 00°0 00°0 00"STE'8Y 00°STE'8Y PH 08€'T o4 joedwy A39jes STIqNd - °SNOSSY/eaATI 0TT-HZE-80
% 00°0 00°862'06 00°0 00°0 00°862 06 00°B6Z'06 96°6LS'T o994 joedwr A3s93es DTTANd - IDTTOd 00T-¥2€-80
SHANIATT

qIZITVAY 1IDI49q/ (SSEDXH) A0ONAATE QLA HANIASY INS¥INO qILYIIDOILNY AONIASN QELIVAIDIINY | SANSATY ¥X ¥OI¥d NOXILAIEDEEA LROOODY
HDOVINIDYA] | SZT0Z §T02 §202 rav §202 vezoz /9

01 / SZ0Z :1B9A [e9Sld 104 8)3|dwo) JA % £€°'8
sanuaAay jabpng
SaNuUaAay [e12ads 4149

MYNNVOP :¥3SN 65592 :ON qor/dyd-6dLos8qb
8} jo .| abed ALID M10d 40 ALID G1:G) $TOZ/ZLILL




CITY OF POLK CITY

11/12/2024 15:11 2 Page50f5
gb614_pg.phpidob No: 26557 Simple Balance Sheet USER: JOANNAK
For Fiscal Year: 2025 thru Month: Oct
Fund: 09 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EF IMPACT FEES
Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount

09-101-800 EF Sewer Impact Fee Account 478,140.04

09-101-900 EF Water Impact Fee Account 148,785.57

09-151-800 Investements - Sewer Impact 1,817,826.49

09-151-900 Investements - Water Impact 295,577.66
*% TOTAL ASSET** 2,740,329.76
*% TOTAL LIABILITY** 0.00
*%* TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE™** 0.00

09-271-100 Unreserved Fund Balance 2,727,645.92

*% TOTAL EQUITY**

*% TOTAL REVENUE**

*% TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

2,727,645.92

12,683.84

0.00

2,740,329.76




8 €83 'CT— P8 €82 ‘CT B8 E89'TT [s]elde] 000 €E2°L0OF ‘EB sean] ipusdxg -~ A anuoaey TBICL

$00°0 000892 °22%6— [6 16 R} 00°o 00 089 ‘T%h- NO-0B89 ‘Z96— LGTEET 16— iej3e)] ssanjlpusdxy pund 2394 joedu]l J4d
22T 27966 'KFh F8 €8%°2T 8°€B92 ‘2T NO"08% 296 pDN*089 ‘T9k NZ°THS “‘TLT 1e310] Sonuaszy pung s5J joedm] JA
% 00°0 00°089 ‘296 00°0 00°0 00°089°'296 00°089'296 LS EET'T6 STVYLOL INFWILYYdHA
% 00°0 00°000'SL 00°0 00°0 00°000'SL 00°000°S¢L ao0'o SPUSPTAT(J/3Ul I9M3S - SOAIISSY TE€6-5ES-60
% 00°0C 00" 00T'€0€E 00°0 0Q°0 00°00T'€E0€ 00°00T'€0E 000 saa4 joedwl i9meS - S2AI9SIY Q0E€6-SES-60
% 00°0 00°000'STE 00" 0 00°0 00°000'STE 00°000'STE 000 S JI I=2mBS5 - Ss31b0Id Ul UOTIONIAISUOD 0S59-S£5-60
% 00°0 00°000°'ST 00°0 Q0" 0 00°000°se 00°'000'52 000 SPUSPTATQ/JIUI I9]eM - SOAIDSSY TE6-EES-60
% 00°0 00 9€0°€ST 00°0 00" 0 00 9E0’EST 00 "9€0'€EST 00°0 sos34 3oedwl I93BM - S3AIASS9Y 0E6-EES-60
% 00°0 00 ¥%5'16 00°0 00°0 00 BPS'T6 00 %%5'T6 LS EET'T6 § J4I I93ey - ssoxboxd uIl uUOTIDNAISUCD 059-€££5-60

SHANLIANIIXHE
% 2 T 9T 966 '6%6 ¥8 €89'CT ¥8°€89°2T 00°08B9'Z96 00°089'296 0Z T¥S'PLT SIYLOL INAWILYYdHT
% 68°8 9T 0TIT'T6 ¥8°688°'8 $8°6688°8 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 0Z°'S65°0TT HAYS 'Td - SPUSPTAT(Q/ISS9I®3uIl 00T-T9E-60
% 00°0 00°00T'8T19 Q00 00°0 00°0Q01'819 00°00T'8T19 00 SEL'6E abxeyd UOTIDBUUOD Te3tdep x93eme]seM 02ZZ-%CE-60
% S99°T 00°98L'0%¢ 00 V6L E 00 " %6L'E 00°085'¥¥C 00°0858'%%C 00°'11Z'%¢ abxeyd uoTIDIUUOD ._”muﬂmmu Is1eM 0TZ-%2€-60
% 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 0 ¥Y TYLOL

SHOANTATT
qIAZITVSE LIDIZEA/ (89°IDXH) FIANEATY QLR FOANSIATSE INIFTIOD QEIVITOILNY SONTASY QILYJIOILINY | SONIATY ¥R J0I¥d NOILAI¥OE3IQ INOODOV
HOVINIDYIAL | 202 1424 SZ02 oav k4114 %202 1/
01 / §20Z :1BaA [2oSld 104 9j9jdwo) A % ££°8
SONUIAdY _m_umnm 433
MVNNVOF :¥3sn 65592 :oN qor/dyd-6d—|osgqb

81 o 81 obed ALID X10d 40 ALID S1:Gl pTOCCL/LL




OCTOBER 2024

CIRCULATION
ADULT BOOKS 707
JUVENILE BOOKS 1,001
TOTAL CIRCULATION 1,708
NEW BORROWERS
IN CITY 7
IN COUNTY 9
TOTAL NEW BORROWERS 16
NUMBER OF PROGRAMS
FAMILY
ADULT 1
JUVENILE
YOUNG ADULT
TOTAL PROGRAMS 1
PROGRAM ATTENDANCE
ADULT 5
JUVENILE
YOUNG ADULT
TOTAL ATTENDANCE 5
REFERENCE QUESTIONS
PHONE CALLS 80
NUMBER OF COMPUTER USERS
81
TOTAL PATRONS
539
Prepared by:
Hannah Ulloha

Library Director



POLK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

STATISTICAL DATA

West

Division

ﬁ

District

Date: November 6, 2024 Northwest

To: Patricia Jackson, City Manager

From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376

Subject:  Statistical Report for October 2024

ACTIVITY

FELONY ARREST 1
AFFIDAVITS FELONY 0
MISDEMEANOR ARREST 4
AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR 0
OUT OF COUNTY/STATE 0
WARRANT ARRESTS
PROCAP WARRANT ARREST 0
TOTAL ARRESTS 5
SEARCH WARRANTS 0
FIELD INTERROGATION 0
REPORTS
TRAFFIC CITATIONS 9
INTELLIGENCE REPORTS 0
STOLEN PROPERTY 0
RECOVERED
HRS. TRANSPORTING/ 0
AGENCIES/DIVISIONS
OFFENSE REPORTS 17
NARCOTICS SEIZED 0
ASSETS SEIZED 0
PATROL NOTICES 0
FOXTROT REPORTS 12
TOW-AWAY NOTICES 0
COMMUNITY CONTACTS 625
TRAFFIC STOPS 14
TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS 82
FOR SERVICE

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07)

Page lof 2



In October 2024, there were zero (0) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to zero (0) in
October 2023. In all for 2024 we are sitting at 18 Pro-Cap related crimes compared to 17 Pro-
Cap crimes reported by this time in 2023 In an attempt to eliminate any further increase in
crimes, myself and the Detail Deputies are working hard in identifying suspicious individuals
who are new in the area. Several traffic stops are being conducted on Berkley Rd. North bound,
due to “No Thru Trucks” signs installed, as well as throughout the entire city limits. The amount
of Semi’s utilizing Berkley Rd. heading North bound has drastically reduced.

CASE

CazeNo Inc From IncTo. || DOW Location Marrathve Det  PRINTS  VIDEOQ STATUS
BURGLARY BUSINESS
| | [ 1 | | | 1 I
RETAIL THEFT
| I [ | = | |
UNFOUNDED / RECLASSIFIED CASES
| I | I [ | |
1 | | | | L1 | |
= i) Department of Law Enforcament wZ T
Palk City - 2023 - 2024
Jonuary | Februmry | March Apri! May June ady Auguat mnh_ut October | Movember M YT Tatals | Manthiy | YTD
3074 | 2073 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 3023 | 2024 | 2023 | G024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2004 | 2023 | 2074 | 023 | 2024 | 2073 | 2024 | 2073 [ 2024 | 3023 [ 2024 | 7023 | 2024 | Chiaege § 2023 | 2604
[ [] 1 o [ 0 | 0% 00
1 '] [} [ 4 % 04
a [] 2 ] 1 0% g1
[ ] [ [ o | o% 1
2 |1 ) 6 | -s0o% | 0 T
1| d o 1 0% 1
[F 1 3 ) 0% 4 )
1 4 1 0% 4 1
[ 0 | 0 0 o | o% [ )
2 2 | 1 [ 1 0 4| om 3 )
d -] o o '] 2 1 -100% 1 1
[ ] 5] 41 B 3 | o | B 3 17 [ 18 | 4oo% | 19 | 20 |
200% 50% NIA NIA 400% 5% NIA 0% 0% NIA NI NIA % 8%

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page 1of2



Public Works & Utilities Report

October 2024

Public Works Department- Work Orders: Total 126
Building Maintenance: 11

Custodial Services Bronson Center: 1

Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance: 5

Event Set-Up/Inspection: 2

Landscaping/Mowing: 2 3

Parks and Recreation: 12

Stormwater: 2

Street signs: 9

Trash Parks and Facilities: 7

Trash Roads and Streets: 6

Tech Support: 4

Streets Repair and Maintenance: 1
Hurricane Natural Disaster: 45

Utilities Department- Work Orders: Total 307

Turn-On: 29

Temporary Shut-Off: 23

Turn-Off; 21

Turn Back On From Shut Off List: 21
Install water: 2

Locates: 2

Meter Maintenance: 101

WWTP Repair and Maintenance: 26
WTP Repair Maintenance: 20
Mis-Reads: 258

Water Leaks: Jacob water plant. Woodview Dr.
Sewer Calls: 1

Lift Station Maintenance: 1

Hydrant Maintenance : 1

Hurricane Natural Disaster: 51
Repair Sewer Line 9008 Sarah Dr.
Continue Flushing fire Hydrants



Utility Billing Report
October 2024

New Accounts Established: 24
Final/Terminated Service: 16
Bills Processed: 2,715

Email/ Bill Customers: 2,103
Work Orders Processed:

Lock off for Nonpayment: 23
Nonpayment fees ($50): 40
Billed Consumption: 11,206,000
Billed/Revenue: S 273,620.62
Residential Billing: 2,622
Irrigation Billing: 589
Commercial Billing: 94

Building Rentals Activity/Bronson Center/Freedom Park: 18

On Going Projects
-Process Deposit Refunds

Working with the Utilities Department in Diamond Maps to verify that all meter
information is correct.

-Process monthly Adjustment Reconciliations, Zero Charge Reports and Cycle D
(Debt Consolidation).

-Meter Replacement Program

Staff Objectives

Continuing efforts on changeouts from 3g to 4g, reroute meters into walking order.
Continue to work with staff to write procedures for Utility Billing. Continuing efforts
in auditing accounts. Working with Master Meter to replace meters with issues.

Respectfully Submitted by:
Chasity Guinn
Utility Billing Supervisor



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

CONSENT AGENDA (OTHER) #1: PLANNING ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

INFORMATION ONLY
X __ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Planning Advisory Services Agreement with Central Florida Regional Planning Council (CFRPC)

ATTACHMENT:

e Planning Services Agreement with CFRPC
ANALYSIS:

Staff would like to engage with Central Florida Regional Planning Council to provide professional
planning services for Comprehensive Plan Amendments, Rezoning, large project review, subdivision
review, minor revisions to the Land Development Regulations, Comprehensive mapping services,
update to the Capital Improvements Element and Plan, and Grant writing.

This is a Fixed Fee Agreement amount of $35,000 for FY 2024-25. The fees are to be paid in four (4)
payments as listed below.

Upon Execution of Agreement - $8,750
January 1, 2025 - $8,750

April 1, 2025 - $8,750

July 1, 2025 - $8,750

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is recommending approval of the Planning Advisory Services Agreement with Central Florida
Regional Planning Council in the amount of $35,000.



SERVING THE COUNTIES OF e DESOTO e FHARDEE e HIGHLANDS e OKEECHOBEE

POLK

November 12, 2024

M:s. Patricia Jackson, City Manager Via Email
City of Polk City

123 Broadway Blvd. SE

Polk City, FL 33868

Patricia.Jackson@mypolkcity.org

RE: CFRPC Planning Advisory Services Agreement
Dear Ms. Jackson:

Enclosed please find a Planning Advisory Services (PAS) Agreement for the CFRPC to provide
professional planning services to Polk City for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year.

The PAS Agreement is for $35,000. There is no increase from FY 2023-2024. The PAS includes
continued professional planning services to the City as indicated in Attachment A, I-III of the agreement
including but not limited to assistance with the following:

- Comprehensive plan amendments;

- Rezonings;

- Large project reviews;

- Subdivision reviews;

- Minor revisions to the Code of Ordinances related to land development; and
- Comprehensive GIS mapping services.

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding the enclosed agreement. Please sign
the enclosed agreement and return them to the CFRPC to my attention. We will return the agreement to
your attention following signature of the CFRPC. Please note the signed agreement may be scanned and
emailed to the CFRPC to my attention at jcodosalisbury@cfrpe.org. A hard copy is not necessary.

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Polk City.

7 Ma’oc‘ﬂ?

Jennifer Codo-Salisbury, MPA, AICP
Executive Director

Sincerely,

Attachment: Planning Advisory Services (PAS) Agreement

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
§55 EAST CHURCH STREET. P.O. BOX 2089 BARTOW, FL 33830-3931
(863) 534-7130 ® FAX (803) 534-7138 @ TOLL FREE (800) 297-8041 ® WEBSITE WWW.CFRPC.ORG



PLANNING ADVISORY SERVICES AGREEMENT
with

POLK CITY

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of , 2024,
by and between the Central Florida Regional Planning Council (hereinafter referred to as the
"COUNCIL") and Polk City (hereinafter referred to as the "CITY”).

BACKGROUND

A.

The CITY desires to engage the COUNCIL to provide professional planning services to
assist the CITY in complying with the requirements of growth management laws; to provide
technical assistance to the Planning and Zoning Board, elected officials, and CITY staff
members on the evaluation and processing of land development proposals; and to maintain
the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map, Unified Land Development Code, and
Official Zoning Map; all of which is detailed in Attachment A, I-III — Scope of Work, and is
a part of this Agreement.

The CITY desires to engage the COUNCIL to update the Capital Improvements Element
(CIE) to the Comprehensive Plan as detailed in Attachment A, IV — Scope of Work, and is a
part of this Agreement.

The CITY desires to engage the COUNCIL to assist in the preparation of grants as detailed in
Attachment A, V — Scope of Work, and is a part of this Agreement.

The COUNCIL desires to provide such professional services in accordance with this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein,
the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

I

IL.

GENERAL
The CITY engages the COUNCIL to assist the CITY in fulfilling the requirements of
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes and all relevant amendments to these statutes, and any other

pertinent state law or rule related to Growth Management; and the COUNCIL shall
provide the professional services required under this Agreement with the CITY.

SCOPE OF WORK

The COUNCIL shall perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, the work and services



I1I.

Iv.

VL

detailed in Attachment A - Scope of Work, and shall satisfy all requirements of the
guidelines specified therein.

COMPENSATION

This is a fixed fee agreement. The fixed fee for Planning Services (I-VII in Attachment
A) is $35,000 (thirty-five thousand dollars). As consideration for performance of all
work rendered under this Agreement, the CITY agrees to pay a fixed fee for Planning
Services of $35,000 (thirty-five thousand dollars) to be paid in four (4) payments,
beginning Upon Execution of this Agreement with a final payment due July 1, 2025.
Payment shall be made upon receipt of an acceptable completed invoice from the
COUNCIL, which shall be presented to the CITY. Payments will be due as follows:

Upon execution of Agreement $8,750
January 1, 2025 $8,750
April 1, 2025 $8,750
July 1, 2025 $8,750

All fees and payments for additional Scope of Work, if required, shall be negotiated.

PERIOD OF AGREEMENT

The services of the COUNCIL are to commence upon execution of this agreement.

MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

A. Either party may request changes in the services or Scope of Work to be performed
by the COUNCIL pursuant to this Agreement, including adjustments in the funds
provided under the Agreement if necessary and appropriate. Such changes mutually
agreed upon by and between the CITY and the COUNCIL shall be incorporated in
written amendments to this Agreement signed by both parties.

B. Any extensions of the Agreement shall be mutually agreed upon by and between the
CITY and the COUNCIL and shall be incorporated in written amendments to this
Agreement signed by both parties.

TERMINATION
A. This Agreement may be terminated by the written mutual consent of the parties.
B. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice of thirty (30) days.

Written notice shall be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, or in
person with proof of delivery.



C. In the event the Agreement is terminated, the COUNCIL shall be reimbursed in the
amount commensurate with the work satisfactorily accomplished on the effective
date of termination.

VII. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
The COUNCIL warrants, represents, and agrees that it will comply with all federal,
state, and local laws, rules, and regulations applicable to the fulfillment of the
requirements of this Agreement.

VIII. PERSONNEL

A. The COUNCIL represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, personnel
necessary to perform the services under this Agreement.

B. The COUNCIL shall continuously staff the project with personnel as deemed
necessary by the COUNCIL to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. Qualified
persons may be added, deleted, or substituted at any time during the period of this
Agreement, as the COUNCIL may deem necessary or appropriate.

IX. DATA TO BE FURNISHED TO COUNCIL

Upon reasonable request of the COUNCIL, the CITY shall provide to the COUNCIL, at

no cost, all information, data reports, records, and maps in its possession, or which

become available to it, that are necessary for the execution of work of the COUNCIL
under this Agreement.

X. RIGHT TO WORK PRODUCTS

Copies of all work products shall become the property of the CITY.

XI. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement shall not be assignable.

XII. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Agreement and attachments incorporated by reference constitute all the terms and
conditions agreed upon by the parties.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the COUNCIL have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their undersigned officials as duly authorized.

POLK CITY CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL
PLANNING COUNCIL
By: By:

Jennifer Codo-Salisbury,
Executive Director

Witness Witness

Approved as to legal form and sufficiency:

City Attorney

Council Attorney



Attachment A

Polk City
SCOPE OF WORK FOR FY 2024-2025

GENERAL PLANNING SERVICES

I

I1.

III.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. The COUNCIL shall advise and assist the CITY in the preparation of small scale and

large scale Comprehensive Plan amendments made necessary by annexations, citizen
requests, State statute changes, and CITY initiated requests.

The COUNCIL shall provide technical assistance to the elected officials, Planning
and Zoning Board and CITY staff members on the evaluation and processing of land
development proposals (i.e., comprehensive plan amendments, zoning applications,
subdivision plats, site plans, etc.).

The COUNCIL shall provide technical assistance on occasional and minor revisions
to the Land Development Regulations.

The COUNCIL shall coordinate training sessions on State Statute and rule changes
that effect the CITY’S compliance with Chapter 163, F.S., as necessary and
requested.

ROUTINE MAPPING (ON GIS BASE MAP)

A.

The COUNCIL shall prepare updates to the Map Series for the Comprehensive Plan
made necessary by annexations, land use changes and text amendments.

. The COUNCIL shall prepare updates to the Official Zoning Map made necessary by

annexations, requests for re-zonings and Comprehensive Plan amendments.

LARGE SCALE PLAN REVIEW

The COUNCIL shall advise and assist the CITY on matters concerning the review of
proposed large scale development projects on such subjects as, (a) the contents of
proposed plans, (b) the processes for development review, (c) the integration of the
development and its infrastructure plans into the CITY’S Comprehensive Plan, (d)
coordination of review and (€) consistency with the Land Development Regulations and
Comprehensive Plan.



SPECIALIZED PLANNING SERVICES

Iv.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT (CIE)

The COUNCIL will coordinate the tasks below in order to update the Capital
Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan.

A. Prepare an updated Capital Improvements Element and five-year schedule.
B. Prepare a sample ordinance to be used for adoption of the Capital Improvements
Element.

The COUNCIL will work with the CITY to obtain all necessary information in updating
the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan, and attend public
hearings related to the adoption of the Capital Improvements Element, as requested by
the CITY.

GRANTS: ASSISTANCE

The COUNCIL shall assist the CITY in the preparation and submittal of up to two grant
applications as part of this agreement. Should the applications need to be revised in order
to be resubmitted to another funding source, the COUNCIL will provide any necessary
revisions for a period of up to one year under the terms of this agreement. Typical grants
are those that fund planning studies, transportation improvements, and recreation or other
public amenities.



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #1: Grand Marshal Selection

__ INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Grand Marshal Selection

ATTACHMENT:

N/A

ANALYSIS:

During the September 17, 2024 City Commission Meeting, Dr. Regina Proutsos and Dr.
Rachel Bouton, co-owners of Outback Animal Hospital were nominated to serve as Polk
City’s 2024 Christmas Parade Grand Marshal. The City Commission provided a consensus
for both doctors to serve.

Unfortunately, Drs. Proutsos and Bouton had to decline due to a previous commitment.

Therefore, this item is being brought back to the City Commission to request new names
for the selection of Polk City’s 2024 Christmas Parade Grand Marshal.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the selection as Polk City's 2024 Christmas Parade Grand Marshal.



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #:2 Gametime Playground Equipment

INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Playground Equipment

ATTACHMENT:

Slideshow Presentation (will also be shown during the Meeting)
ANALYSIS:

Brady Ruselink from GameTime Dominica Recreation Products will be at the City Commission Meeting
with a full presentation on a wide variety of playground equipment. Freedom Park and McManigle
Park’s playground equipment have all exceeded their useful life. Therefore, it is necessary that the
equipment be replaced.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

For information purposes at this time



Upaights® Sky Bloe
AccentSky Blue
T bo-ti




ﬂommmwnt
\nstitute

ORE

w .
CORE
Center for Outreach, Research & Education

93,4no0s28

PlAaYCORE

Turning research inro practice.”

PlAYCORE




CORE | RESEARCH INSTITUTE Partnering with the Foremost Authorities to Study & Share Validated Knowledge

@COLLOe0200

Naha Bren Davernaue PhD
D. Botrhwey. Eadre Bressal PND Quiant Broen. MO Trnotny A Brussaau, PhD .Gwﬂo:n?_jmmmnu Paud Chantier, PND Keitn Chyistonsen, PhD Teny Coraay PHD Nilcts Coscn PhD
Ibzg..z.! c.n..ns_.laia T bl et tuto bor Fary Uriverstty of U Miite a...!i e Waret Viginis Univeruity Ulah Stst Unwersty San Dago Siale Uriversity NC Stals Unwersly Universtty of Narthava Colaredo

Geargia Tech University

h L, M Ranee Urnalaiid Meyer Maussaans Mavas, PhD
_,u..asa Stats Univarsity ml.gwﬂup!zﬂ! Baylor Universty Teas Tech University

Kashia Pollack Portec PhD, MPH Alfson. Poulns, D
MBA, PO nc CSPP Jahns Hopiem 8icombony Arirons Slatw L
8-80 Otles. Worid Uroan Parks Schaok of Public Health

Playcore.com/research




_quﬁmmm_o:m_ _um<m_o_o:..m3

mma_:m..m Webinars, CEU .q..m_:_:m




NATIONAL
DEMONSTRATION

SITE NETWORK

Recognizing Communities for

Turning Research Into Practice




NATIONAL DEMONSTRATION SITE BENEFITS

Al

Receive Recognition
NDS Map
Welcome Kit
Project of Excellence Award

Marketing Toolkit

ADVANCING RECREATION THROUGH
RESEARCH BASED BEST PRACTICES

| Congratulations!

Troath yoafon vt GReTTrTen 5 schaicng ey o caciad!

_,Uuum,%no_ﬂ.m

| alimgrearainace

CORE

CORE

Conter for Qutreach. Hesaarch & Education



Automatically
Receive
Before
Opening

WHO can this Site Impact?

Local data points describe the impact
your NDS will have on the area
drawing population.

DEMONSTRATE IMPACT

Receive Customized Data Reports for Your NDS

Request (NI

60+ Days Qutcomes
Post

Opening

cosr
BATE RERVAR 4R

WHAT is Actually Happening at the Site?
Mobility data (60+ days post opening) describes the pre and
post usage outcomes and the estimated health savings.

1} Visitor

50+ Scans _ ,
Post Outcomes
Opening

014 bmvicH Las

HOW are Users Responding?
Self-reported user sentiments and usage
outcomes after reaching 50+ signage scans from
users of your NDS.

CORE

Conter icr Qutraach Research 2 Education




National Demonstration Sites:

ENCOURAGE
REPEAT VISITATIONS

97% of site visitors say
they will return again in
the near future.

PROMOTE
RECOMMENDED
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

96% of site visitors are
active at the site for 30
minutes or longer.

DEMONSTRATE
HEALTH &
WELLNESS

99% of site visitors
were active.

CLAIM VISITOR
SATISFACTION

98% of site visitors
are satisfied with
their visit.

CORE

Conter fcr Qutruach Research & Education



o

o

Best Practice Implementation of a Piay On! National Demonstration Site:

Incorporate six key elements of play that promote your physical activity
— balancing, brachiating, ctimbing, spinning, sliding, and swinging.

Provide a developmentally appropriate progression of skill .l\
opportunities through beginning, intermediate, and advanced elements. C

Design the layout of the space to encourage movement through e i
running, chasing, and exploring. J

Program the environment utilizing Play On! learning activities and
additional loase parts to encourage active play and social interaction.

This

dasignated as 8
meeting best (] §
ns_ﬂocm:a:n__:u.ms___:n_:.u,u
wrachiating. and balancing.

project of excellence for
ractices in youth .._255
pinning. climbing.

3) nce matters.

experie
,__w.”_nr ..hm and tell ushow you

used this space!

1. BALANCING

O Increases understanding of efficient
body positioning and control. principtes
of gravity. equilibrium, base of support.
and counterbalancing

O Promotes muscular strength and
endurance throughout the entire body.

2. SLIDING

O Enhances core stability. dynamic
balance, and leg and hip flexibility.

O Provides body and spatial awareness
experience.

3. BRACHIATING

© Improves muscular strength and
endurance

O Promotes hand-eye coordination and
rhythmic body movement

4. SPINNING

O Develops kinesthetic awareness and
postural control

O Improves understanding of speed. force,
and directional qualities of movement

5. CLIMBING

O Enhances spatial awareness and
coordination

O Fosters whole-body muscular strength,
endurance. and flexibility.

6. SWINGING

O Promotes aerobic fitness, muscular
force, and whole-body awareness

O Emphasizes the importance of timely
energy transfer during movement




-
(M
O
-
-
O
O
(0 o]
<

30g 193.1Q




GameTime manufacturing means every
upright has computer located inserts for
all attachments

During installation clamps must be:

* Measured
* Aligned
* Adjusted



Clamp Catastrophic Failure







F 2
M

ﬁ Freed

i e

[_h..ﬂﬂ..u..u...




City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #:3 Potable Water System Intra-System Interconnect
Improvements

INFORMATION ONLY
X__ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Potable Water System Intra-System Interconnect Improvements

ATTACHMENTS:

-Construction Services Agreement with Odom Contracting, LLC
-Polk City purchase of parts and supplies from Empire Pipe

ANALYSIS:

As part of the Water and Sewer Master Plan, one of the projects is the Potable Water System
Interconnect Improvements Project. The City is a municipal corporation duly organized pursuant to the
laws of the State of Florida with the authority to contract for construction services involving the Water
System Intra-System Interconnect Improvements project, per the Construction Plans and Technical
Specifications, both dated April 1, 2024, which are hereby incorporated reference in this Agreement,
and Polk City desires to have these construction services performed by Contract in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Odom Contracting, LLC, has submitted a signed bid document for this project in the amount of $43,950
on 11/6/2024. The bid form is attached as part of the Construction Services Agreement. Please refer
to the attached contract with bid document.

Polk City will purchase parts and supplies from Empire Pipe for this project in the amount of $33,426.33,
which includes a vault with hatch doors. Please refer to the attached quotes. There was only one
quote that had all of the supplies and parts needed for this project.

Staff is recommending Odom Contracting, LLC, as the contractor, which will be one approval, and the
second approval will be for the City to purchase all parts and supplies for the project. There will be two
motions that need to be made.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

1) Motion to approve Contract with Odom Contracting, LLC, in the amount of $43,950.00
2) Motion to approve the City’s purchase of parts and supplies in the amount of $33,426.33



CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Construction Services Agreement (hereafter “Agreement’”) is effective this ___
day of November, 2024, (“Effective Date”) between Odom Contracting, LLC, a Florida
limited liability company authorized to do business in the State of Florida (hereinafter
“Contractor’) and Polk City, Florida, a municipal corporation created under the laws of the
State of Florida (hereafter “City”). Contractor and the City are collectively referred to as
the “Parties” (or individually as a “Party”).

1. City is a municipal corporation duly organized pursuant to the laws of the
State of Florida with the authority to contract for construction services involving the
provision of all materials, equipment, and labor necessary to complete the City’s Potable
Water System Intra-System Interconnect Improvements project per the Construction
Plans and Technical Specifications, both dated April 1, 2024 which are hereby
incorporated by reference in this Agreement (hereafter “construction services”) , and City
desires to have these construction services performed by Contractor in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2 The City desires to employ Contractor in connection thereof upon the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth, and Contractor is desirous of obtaining such
employment and has represented that it is qualified and competent to perform such
services upon said terms and conditions.

3. Contractor agrees to perform these services for City under the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.

ACCORDINGLY, for and in consideration of the Recitals hereof, the mutual
undertakings and agreements herein contained and assumed, and other good and
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by the
Parties, the Parties hereby covenant and agree as follows:

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The above Recitals are true and correct and form a
material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & DESCRIPTION OF WORK. Contractor
shall perform the construction services within the specified Contract Time of 90 calendar
days to final completion from the effective date of the Agreement. Each Party will promptly
inform the other in writing if facts are discovered that indicate that this Agreement or
Scope of Work may need to be modified. Unless otherwise provided herein, Contractor
shall not be required to perform any additional services unless the Amendment sets forth
the scope of the additional services and any adjustment in compensation for, and/or the
time to perform, such additional services.

SECTION 3. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES. Contractor has
provided the City with a Bid Form, dated 11/6/2024, for a total of $43,950.00. A copy of
the Bid Form is hereby accepted by the City and is incorporated into this Agreement as
Exhibit “A.” Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor will invoice City monthly for services
completed, or expenses incurred, in accordance with the payment basis and markup

1




values set forth in Exhibit “A.” Payment of Contractor invoices shall be due upon receipt
by City. Invoices not paid within 30 calendar days shall be subject to an assessed interest
charge of eighteen percent (18%) per annum.

SECTION 4. INSURANCE. Contractor agrees to carry throughout the term of this
Agreement insurance policies of the following types and with the following limits: Workers'
compensation — statutory; employers’ liability — $1,000,000 per accident/ disease/
employee (US); automobile liability — $1,000,000 combined single limit; commercial
general liability — $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in aggregate; and
professional liability — $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 in aggregate.

SECTION 5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTING. The
Parties acknowledge and agree that Contractor shall be an independent contractor and
shall have responsibility for and control over the means of providing the services.
Contractor shall have the right to use subcontractors as Contractor deems necessary to
assist in the performance of the services.

SECTION 6. PUBLIC RECORDS RETENTION. Contractor has been advised the
City and all its activities are subject to the Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes) and the Sunshine Law (Section 286.011, Florida Statutes), and agrees to
maintain all records necessary to comply with the requirement of such laws, and for the
proper supervision of the services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor
agrees to comply with all City policies and procedures in observing the requirement of
said laws.

SECTION 7. TERMINATION. City will have the right to terminate this Agreement
at any time with or without cause provided that Contractor is provided 30 calendar days
advance written notice of the termination. City shall pay Contractor for all services
performed and expenses incurred prior to the effective date of termination.

SECTION 8. FORCE MAJEURE. If either Party is rendered unable, wholly or in
part, by Force Majeure (as defined below) to carry out its obligations under this
Agreement, other than the obligation to pay funds due, that Party shall give the other
Party prompt written notice of the Force Majeure with reasonably fuli particulars thereof.
Thereupon, the obligations of the Party giving notice, so far as they are affected by the
Force Majeure, shall be suspended during, but not longer than, the continuance of the
Force Majeure. The affected Party shall use all reasonable diligence to remove or remedy
the Force Majeure as quickly as possible, except that this requirement shall not require
the settlement of strikes, lockouts, or other labor difficulty. The term "Force Majeure" as
used in this Agreement shall mean an Act of God, natural events, labor, civil, or industrial
disturbance, pandemic, governmental or legislative actions, or orders of any court or
agency having jurisdiction of the Party’s actions, unavailability of equipment, personnel,
or information, and any other cause which is not reasonably within the control of the Party
claiming suspension.

SECTION 9. SUCCESSORS & ASSIGNMENTS. Neither Party may assign,
sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, monies

2



that are due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the
other Party. The obligations of the Parties under this Agreement will not terminate upon
any attempted assignment that violates this Agreement. Any assignment or attempted
assignment violating this Agreement is void.

SECTION 10. NOTICE. Whenever any notice, demand or consent is required or
permitted under this Agreement, such notice, demand or consent shall be written and
shall be deemed given when sent by certified mail, return receipt requested to the
following address:

To City: Polk City
123 Broadway Blvd., SE
Polk City, FL 33868
Attention: City Manager

To Contractor: Odom Contracting, LLC
4605 County Road 542
Lakeland, FL 33801

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY. The Parties agree that, in the event one or more
of the provisions of this Agreement or a portion thereof should be declared void or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full
force and effect. The Parties also agree that the obligations and representations which by
their nature are intended to survive the termination of this Agreement, including but not
limited to those pertaining to indemnification, limitations of liability, and intellectual
property, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 12. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement does not and is
not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person other than the Parties.

SECTION 13. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws
and statutes of the State of Florida.

SECTION 14. AUTHORITY TO SIGN. Each of the persons signing below on behalf
of any Party hereby represents and warrants that they are signing with full and complete
authority to bind the Party on whose behalf they are signing to every term of this
Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be
deemed an original and which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

SECTION 15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including the attached
Exhibit and documents referenced in the Exhibit, constitute the complete and final
agreement between Contractor and City regarding the subject matter hereof. This
Agreement supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications, representations,
undertakings, or understandings of the Parties, whether oral or written, relating to the
services and subject matter of this Agreement, except to the extent that such prior
communications have explicitly been incorporated into the Agreement or one of the




attached Exhibit. Modifications of this Agreement shall not be binding unless made in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of each Party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Contractor and City have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

POLK CITY, FLORIDA, a municipal
corporation

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Patricia Jackson, City Manager/Clerk Joe LaCascia, Mayor-Commissioner

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY:

By:
Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

ODOM CONTRACTING, LLC, a Florida Corporation

By:

Print Name:

Title:




Polk City

BID FORM
Intra-System Interconnect Improvements

D O Qua 0
1 Potable Water Main

a) 6" DIP LF 26 S 125.00 | $ 3,250.00
2 Fittings

a) 45° Bend EA 4 $ 1,450.00 | 5,800.00

b) 90° Bend EA 2 S 1,450.00 | § 2,900.00
3 Valves and Appurtenances

a) PSV/PRV Vault Assembly EA 1 S 8,500.00 | S 8,500.00
4 Connections

a) Connection to Existing 6" Existing Main EA 2 S 2,750.00 | $ 5,500.00
5 Bollard EA 4 S 400.00 | $ 1,600.00
6 Sodding

a) Sodding - Bahia LS 1 S 1,800.00 | $ 1,800.00
7 Maintenance of Traffic LS 1 S 2,00000 | S 2,000.00
8 Prevention, Control, and Abatement of Erosion/Water Pollution LS 1 S 1,350.00 | S 1,350.00
9 Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1 S 11,250.00 | § 11,250.00

TOTAL $ 43,950.00

Notes:

1. The bid prices shall exclude the material costs of the folowing owner direct purchase items: all pipe, fittings, valves, valve vault and bollard pipes.

Odom Contracting LLC

Kevin Odom

Authorized Representative Name

Contractor

Authorized Representative Signature

Page 1of 1



POLK CITY

123 Broadway Bivd SE
Polk City, Florida 33868
Telephone 863-984-1375
Fax 863-984-2334

TO: Patricia Jackson, City Manager
FROM: Rick Jiles

DATE: November 4, 2024,

RE: Intrasystem-Interconnect

This letter is a request to purchase parts & supplies from Empire Pipe & Supply.

| request authorization to purchase parts & Supplies from Empire Pipe & Supply in amount of
(33,426.33) Bid # 5024869 for the intrasystem-interconnect at Sr.33 and Lake Margaret Blvd. | also have
two other bids they do not include the Vault w/hatch door. Fortiline Water works in the amount of
(20,495.43) Bid # 6491976 and Core & main in the amount of (23,572.23) Bid # 3737104.

Rick Jiles, Public works/Utilities Director

EIEAVAN



BID PROPOSAL
INTERCONNECT PROJECT

EMPIRE

Pipe & Supply
|| esti92]

1 of 1
5/13/24

BID NUMBER: 5024869 PREPARED FOR: 070114

BRANCH LOCATION: 006

CITY OF POLK CITY FL
123 BROADWAY BLVD SOUTH EAST
POLK CITY, FL 33868

Valid Until

Saturday, November 30, 2024

EMPIRE PIPE AND SUPPLY CO
PO BOX 130399
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35213

Telephone: 407-295-2400

LINE QUANTITY DESCRIPTION NET UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE
10 1 EA | 000000 13,000.0000 13,000.00
VAULT W/ HATCH DOORS
20 1 EA | 019496 4,755.3100 4,755.31
6X18 OCTAVE MTR SS FF
30 1 EA | 014386 250.0000 250.00
ENCODER MODULE 5 NIC
40 1 EA | 015970 175.0000 175.00
3G XTR ENCODER W/ 2' NICOR
50 4 EA | 010946 103.8700 415.48 %
6 MJ 45 BEND C153 C/L
60 2 EA | 010935 126.6800 253.36
6 MJ 90 BEND C153 C/L
70 40 FT | 010002 29.9900 1,199.60
6 DI PIPE CL350 TJ C/L T/C
**GASKETS**
80 14 EA | 014322 56.9700 797.58
6" 3000 REST W/ DI KIT
100 1 EA | 000000 5,230.9800 5,230.98
6 PRV ZURN 6-ZW205
CONNECTION FOR PRV AND METER
S0 4 EA | 013097 53.8900 215.56
6 FLANGE ADAPTER DIP
ARV SET UPS
120 2 EA | 020232 114.0200 228.04
6X2 IP SADDLE DBL S8 6.63-6.90
130 2 EA | 013148 3,196.2100 6,392.42
2 AIR RELEASE VALVE
170 2 EA | 015749 256.5000 513.00
2 CORP BV MIP X FIP
R Subtotal: 33,426.33
Tax: .00
: ; Bid Total: 33,426.33
terms;tonditions/ for our terms and conditions.




QUOTE

FORTILINE (.)

WATERWORKS

_ QUOTING BRANCH QUOTE DATE
228171 |[FORTILINE WINTER GARDEN 6491976 5/09/24 1

PROJECT INFORMATION

CITY OF POLK CITY

123 BROADWAY BLVD SE 6" PRV PIPING
attn: MR. RICK JILES

POLK CITY, FL, 33868

LINE QTY | UOM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

20 4 EA 6" MJ 45 C153 111.6300 446 .52
30 2 EA 6" MJ 90 C153 137.7700 275.54
40 14 EA 6" STAR GRIP MJ REST DIP 3000 37.0400 518.56
50 14 EA 6" MJ REGULAR ACC LESS GLAND 25.5200 357.28
70 40 FT 6" TJ DIP PR350 33.1200 1,324.80
90 2 EA 6" FLGXPE DIP 6'00" 724.6400 1,449.28
100 4 EA 6" FLG ACC KIT FF 1/8"RR 3168S 59.0300 236.12
110 2 EA 6" FLGXFLG DIP 2'06" 587.8900 1,175.78
130 1 BEA 6"X18" 4200 ULTRASONIC MTR SS 4,466.6700 4,466.67
02-E-02-G-1-FR-8US
140 1 BEA 6" CLA-VAL 92-G-01BPSVY KC DS 9,032.0000 9,032.00

SSB 150AG 20-105, 20-105 STD
DI, 8S TRIM, SS PILOT SYSTEM
MODEL & MATERIALS

150 2 EA 2" COMBO ARV THD PLAS NSF BLUE 456.3100 912.62
160 2 EA 6X2 IP 402 SDL 6.84-7.60 73.3300 146.66
402-0745X141P JCM

170 2 EA 2" THD BRASS GV NO LEAD 47.8300 95.66
180 2 EA 2"X6" BRASS NIPPLE 28.9700 57.94
Subtotal: 20,495.43

Tax: .00

Bid Total: 20,495.43

ALL STOCK DELIVERIES ARE SUBJECT TO SHIPPING CHARGES
All PVC and HDPE material is quoted for shipment within 7 days of quote/bid date. All other material is quoted for shipment within 30 days of quote/bid date.
After 7 davs for PVC and HDPE or 30 days for all other material. ALL quoted prices are subject to review based on current market conditions.

Ent By CJH 9/19/24 13:56:41

BIDCNEW



1/2-13 UNC

LOCKING DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

85 HEX HEAD BOLT

COVER BOLT DOWN\

SKID RESISTANT

SURFACE, \
P
o

1/2-13 UNC
LIFTING BOLT

4 PLACES \

10 [254] X 10 [254]
MOUSEHOLE 1 CENTERED .~
EACH END ——

AN

Y
P

T

CDR LOGO

e C2A487204K

6
14]

/ E0A4872514

L~

AFTER GROUTING REMOVE

ALl GRADE ADJUSTMENT BOLTS

GRADE
ADJUSTMENT
DETAIL

SCALE: 3"=1"

i CUSTOMER APPROVAL

‘ APPROVED BY: —

NOTES:

DATE:, | |

1. CUSTOMER IS MTS.
1.0GO TO BE SPECIFIED:______ . l

DESIGN LOAD OF 8,000 LBS. (35,548 N]

2. THIS ASSEMBLY IS RATED FOR A STATIC ‘

OVER
MUST

A 10 [254] X 10 [254] AREA AND
PASS A MINIMUM STATIC TEST LOAD

OF 12,000 LBS. [53,376 N].

3, TORSION FRAME MUST BE GROUTED AFTER
IT IS ADJUSTED TO THE PROPER GRADE.

DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES OR MILLIMETERS IN BRACKETS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

FRP SUPPORT CHANNEL Tas0s | R eunmoL o |
8y ATE | b &
INSTALL BELOW CONDUIT ETE R ] ikl gy s |
| BEFORE INSTALLING BOX fom| R |7/1/14 | - [ORAvNG DESCRETION REV |
ot | RT [o/18/14 |
2 PLACES - BOTTOM OPENING £ i QUAZITE® 48 X 72 X 36 ASSEMBLY A
20 8/4 [1797] X o = W/ TORSION ASSIST COVER |
47 3/4(1213] o) E o]
5 ECT el | DMAW D L LOCH
109963 sger 1oy A2A4B72529__ X




2X o7/8 |28] THRU HOLE
W/e1 3/8 [45] X 5/8 (16]

DEEP COUNTERBORE

SKID RESISTANT SURFA

:llig\wa

]

s!]

CE/

3/4 [19] X 4 [102] PULL SLOT
W/1/4 [6] CENTER PIN
2 PLACES

\-CIZSSSSOBA
OLD P/N: C12-3636-23

CDR LOGO

B14363648A
/om P/N: B14-3636-48

|~ BOTTOM OPENING
28 1/8 [714] X
28 1/8 [714]

1/2-13 UNC S.8.
CAPTIVE PENTA
HEAD BOLT

BOLT DOWN DETAIL

1. LOGO TO BE SPECIFIED:

COVER

SELF-CENTERING
CORROSION
RESISTANT NUT

2. THIS ASSEMBLY IS RATED FOR A STATIC |

DESIGN LOAD OF 15,000 LBS, [66,720 N] |
OVER A 10 [254] X 10 [254] AREA AND |
MUST PASS A MINIMUM STATIC LOAD OF
22,500 LBS. [100,080 N]

3. OLD P/N: A14-3636-48 ‘

DIMENSICNS ARE IN INCHES OR MILLIMETERS IN BRACKETS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

TweIGHT

T Loc

S N
v | pare | it ciTy, oB
S| JHP | AN - :ﬁ: Liroglaund st s
L= 1 DRAWING DESCRIPTION T OREV |
e L s CDR™ 36 X 36 ¥ 48 ASSEMBLY |
e ez
e | B STANDARD VERSION el
LEA ON FRAOGT WONITEH T DRAWING NUMBER

e 42 A1436364BA




ﬂ& MAIN §

Bid Proposal for Quote 09-04-24 City of Polk City / Lake Margaret Dr.

TOWN OF POLK CITY
STOCK 573 LAKELAND
123 BROADWAY BLVD SE
POLK CITY, FL 33868

CUSTOMER

Job

Quote 09-04-24 City of Polk City / Lake
Margaret Dr.

Polk City, FL

Bid Date: 09/04/2024

Bid #: 3737104

Sales Representative

Jeffrey Morris

(T) 863-868-8279

(F) 863-606-0002
Jeffrey.Morris@coreandmain.com

CONTACT

Core & Main
3216 Winter Lake Rd
Bays 5-10

Lakeland, FL 33803
(T) 8638688279

09/06/2024 - 2:00 PM

Actual taxes may vary

Page 1 of 2



& MAIN |

Bid Proposal for Quote 09-04-24 City of Polk City / Lake Margaret Dr.

TOWN OF POLK CITY

Job Location: Polk City, FL

Bid Date: 09/04/2024

Core & Main Bid #: 3737104

Core & Main

3216 Winter Lake Rd
Bays 5-10

Lakeland, FL 33803
Phone: 8638688279
Fax: 8636060002

Seq# Qty Description Units Price Ext Price
10 2 6" Mi 90 BEND EA 124.00 1 248.00
20 4 6" MJ 45 BEND EA 100.00 400.00
30 40 6" TJ CL50 PR350 DI PIPE FT 27.85 . 1,114.00
40 4 6 STL GUARD POST 7'0" EA 265.00 1,060.00
50 2 6" X 2"IP 317 SADDLE EA 92.00: 184.00
60 2 2 A2362-8 THRD RW GV OL ON EA 490.00 980.00
70 2 2" ARI D040PO2 AIR RELEASE VLV EA 470.00 940.00
80 4 . 2"X4" GALV NIPPLE EA 4.85 19.40
90 12 6" MJ DI RESTRAINT i EA 32.00 384.00
100 12 ' 6 MJ REG ACC SET L/GLAND IMP EA 23.00: 276.00
110 2 16" X 6'0" FLG X PEDIP PC EA 635.00 1,270.00
120 1 6 FLGXFLG DIPIPEQ'6" IMP EA 410.00 410.00
130 6 6X1/8 FLG ACC RR FF 316SS B&N EA 38.00 228.00
140 1 CLA-VAL 6" FLGXFLG CPR 92-01 EA 13,758.83 13,758.83
150 1 SERVICE CHARGE EA 2,300.00 2,300.00
Sub Total 23,572.23
Tax. 000
Total  23,572.23

_ UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, PRICES QUOTED ARE VALID IF ACCEPTED BY CUSTOMER AND PRODUCTS ARE RELEASED BY
CUSTOMER FOR MANUFACTURE WITHIN THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS FRO
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INCREASE PRICES TO ADDRESS FACTORS, INCLUDI
TARIFFS, TRANSPORTATION, FUEL AND RAW MATERIAL COSTS. DELIVERY WILL

: TIMES. ANY MATERIAL DELIVERIES DELAYED BEYOND MANUFACTURER LEAD TI

1
|

M THE DATE OF THIS QUOTATION. CORE & MAIN LP

NG BUT NOT LIMITED TO, GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS, |
COMMENCE BASED UPON MANUFACTURER LEAD i
MES MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRICE INCREASES AND/OR

APPLICABLE STORAGE FEES. THIS BID PROPOSAL IS CONTINGENT UPON BUYER’S ACCEPTANCE OF SELLER'S TERMS AND

- CONDITIONS OF SALE, AS MODIFIED FROM TIME T

O TIME, WHICH CAN BE FOUND AT: https://coreandmain.com/TandC/

09/06/2024 - 2:00 PM

Actual taxes may vary

Page 2 of 2



City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #:4 Cardinal Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan Proposal from
Stantec Consulting Services

____INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Proposal for the Cardinal Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan

ATTACHMENT:

Stantec Continuing Consulting Services Agreement w/Exhibit A

ANALYSIS:

As directed by the recent Consent Order issued by FDEP, Craig Fuller (CivilSurv) has worked with
Stantec Consulting Services to devise a Facility Plan for Cardinal Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility.
The plan will develop a preliminary Engineering Report to determine the proposed build-out and
estimated cost of a new Wastewater Treatment Facility at the Cardinal Hill Site.

Craig Fuller (CivilSurv) will be at the City Commission Meeting to address any questions or concerns
brought forth.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the Continuing Consulting Services Agreement for Cardinal Hill WWTF with Stantec
Consulting Services.



CONTINUING CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT
(Wastewater Treatment Facilities Report)

THIS AGREEMENT by and between the POLK CITY, FLORIDA, a Florida
municipal corporation (hereafter “City”), and STANTEC CONSULTING
SERVICES INC., a foreign corporation authorized to do business in the State of
Florida (hereafter “Consultant” or “Stantec”), is made and entered into and takes

effect upon this day of October, 2024.
RECITALS
1. City is a municipal corporation duly organized pursuant to the laws

of the State of Florida with the authority to contract for services consulting services
involving consulting, planning, surveying, landscape architecture, environmental
sciences, construction management, emergency response, hazardous materials,
and other services deemed necessary for the City, and City desires to have said
professional services performed by Consultant in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2. The City desires to employ the Consultant in connection thereof upon
the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, and the Consultant is desirous of
obtaining such employment and has represented that it is qualified and competent
to perform such services upon said terms and conditions.

3. Consultant agrees to perform these services for City under the terms
and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

ACCORDINGLY, for and in consideration of the Recitals hereof, the mutual
undertakings and agreements herein contained and assumed, and other good and
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by
the Parties, the Parties hereby covenant and agree as follows:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Agreement, the
following terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto unless otherwise defined
herein or clearly required by the context in which such term is used.

1.1  Agreement. The term “Agreement” shall mean this Professional
Agreement, and any amendments thereto as may be from time to time adopted,
as hereinafter provided.

1.2  Services. The term “Services” shall mean the professional services
as set forth in this Agreement.

1.3 Term. The term “Term” shall mean the contract period provided for
under this Agreement and any extensions thereof.



1.4 Force Majeure. The term "Force Majeure" as used in this Agreement
shall mean an Act of God, natural events, labor, civil, or industrial disturbance,
pandemic, governmental or legislative actions, or orders of any court or agency
having jurisdiction of the party’s actions, unavailability of equipment, personnel, or
information, and any other cause which is not reasonably within the control of the
party claiming suspension.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES & DESCRIPTION OF WORK;
GENERALLY. The scope of this Agreement will consist of various professional
services provided by the Consultant for the City for projects that will be authorized
by individual Work Releases. Prior to the initiation of any service or project, the
Consultant will prepare for the City a Work Release utilizing the form which is
attached and incorporated in this Agreement as Exhibit A. Each Work Release
shall contain a detailed scope of services, compensation, schedule, the
Consultant’s project manager, the authorized representative acting on behalf of
the City for the project, and special provisions or conditions specific to the service
or project being authorized. The City's representative must approve and authorize
each Work Release. All services performed by the Consultant will be in performed
in accordance with applicable governmental regulations and in a manner
consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the
same professional currently practicing under similar circumstances. However, the
Consultant does not warrant or represent that any governmental approval will be
obtained, only that the Consultant will exercise its best efforts to obtain
governmental approvals contemplated under this Agreement.

SECTION 3. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION--GENERALLY.

3.1 ltis understood and agreed that the compensation for services under
this Agreement shall be stipulated in each Work Release. The method for
determining the total amount of compensation for each Work Release shall be
based on the estimated hours for each service class to accomplish the scope of
services times the established unit rate plus estimated reimbursable expenses.
Each Work Release shall clearly specify if the assignment is a lump-sum fee or
hourly/unit rate billings with an established not-to-exceed limit, per the hourly rate
schedule, attached as Exhibit D. At the time of contract execution, the attached
hourly rate schedule will be related to the existing Engineering News-Record and
will be automatically adjusted each year in proportion to the rise of the Index
average over the preceding year period. The Consulting News-Record
Construction Cost Index at the time of this contract’s execution is dated as of March
2024.

3.2 Method of Billing and Payment. Payment by the City for services
rendered shall not exceed the total compensation outlined in each Work Release
unless requested by the Consultant and authorized by the City by means of a
Change Order. Such reasonable requests for additional compensation include
those for unanticipated work items, Force Majeure events resulting in additional
costs, changes in scope, requests for additional services, regulatory agency




requirements, and expert witness services. A sample Change Order is attached as
Exhibit B. In consideration of the services to be performed by the Consultant, the
City agrees to compensate the Consultant for the services rendered in
conformance with the authorized Work Release. The term "compensation” is not
intended to include reimbursable expenses which are provided for separately in
Article IV hereof. The City shall be responsible for all agency processing fees or
assessments required.

3.3 Invoices. Invoices shall be submitted by the Consultant on a four
(4) week cycle based on services rendered and reimbursable expenses incurred.
Payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. All
amounts paid by City to Consultant shall be subject to audit by City.

3.4 Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses are in addition
to hourly rates and shall consist of actual expenditures made by the Consultant,
its employees, or its consultants in the interests of the project for the incidental
expenses listed as follow. Such reasonable expenses of reproduction and
postage, other delivery expense of drawings and specifications, long distance
calls, telegrams, facsimile transmissions, courier service, or other out-of-pocket
expenses as provided for in the applicable Work Release.

3.5 Special Consultants. When authorized by the City additional
special consulting services will be paid for on a reimbursable basis plus such
percent thereof as established in the applicable Work Release.

3.6 Accounting Records. Time Records of the Consultant
pertaining to the services provided hereunder shall be available to the City or its
authorized representative for examination, copying and audit on demand of the
City upon reasonable notice, for up to 12 months after completion of services.

3.7 Initial Scope of Work, Services, & Payment. Notwithstanding
the terms of sections 2 and 3 hereof, the parties are entering into an
agreement for an initial scope of work under the terms and prices of the letter
attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit “E.” All other work
to be performed for the City by Consultant shall be accomplished in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

SECTION 4. TERM. The initial Term of this Agreement shall be for a period
of three (3) years, commencing on the effective date of this Agreement. The
agreement may be extended for additional one (1) year terms upon the mutual
written consent of the parties.

SECTION 5. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. The parties intend that an
independent Consultant relationship will be created by this Agreement. It is
understood that City does not agree to use Consultant exclusively. It is further
understood that Consultant is free to contract for similar services to be performed
for others while under contract with City. The parties expressly acknowledge that




Consultant is an independent Consultant, and nothing contained in this Agreement
will be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture between City
and Consultant or any other relationship between the parties. Additionally, nothing
in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to create an
employer/employee relationship, or to allow City, or its agents, representative, or
employees, to exercise control or direction over the manner or method by which
Consultant performs any services which are the subject of this Agreement.

SECTION 6. TERMINATION.

6.1  City will have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time with
or without cause provided that STANTEC is provided 30 calendar days advance
written notice of the termination. City shall pay STANTEC for all services
performed and expenses incurred prior to the effective date of termination.

6.2 STANTEC may terminate its obligations pursuant to this Agreement
under the following circumstances:

(a) In the event of a breach or default of any obligation by City, except
non-payment of disputed amounts, or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement;

(b) If STANTEC is unable, for any reason beyond its control, including,
without limitation, a Force Majeure event, to perform its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement in a safe, lawful, or professional manner; or

(c) In the event City (i) ceases to do business in the normal course, (ji)
becomes or is declared insolvent or bankrupt, (iii) is the subject of any proceeding
related to its liquidation or insolvency or (iv) makes an assignment for the benefit
of creditors.

6.3 If either circumstance described in Section 6.2(a) or 6.2(b) above
occurs, STANTEC shall notify City of pertinent conditions and recommend
appropriate action. If within 30 calendar days of such notice the circumstances
described in Section 6.2(a) or 6.2(b) above have not been remedied or cured,
STANTEC may terminate this Agreement hereunder. In the event of termination,
STANTEC shall be paid for services performed and expenses incurred prior to
the effective date of termination.

6.4 Effects of Termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement as
hereinabove provided, neither party shall have any further obligation hereunder
except for (i) obligations accruing prior to the date of termination, and (ij)
obligations, promises, or covenants contained herein which are expressly made to
extend beyond the term, including without limitation, indemnities, and professional
insurance coverage. In the event of termination under any of the above provisions,
Consultant shall, within sixty (60) days after termination date, submit a final
statement and report for all services rendered prior to and through the date of
termination. In addition, Consultant’s final report to City shall apprise City of the




status of City’s priorities for which it is responsible, any scheduled meetings City
must attend, and all other matters which may potentially require City’s immediate
attention. In the event this Agreement is terminated prior to the conclusion of any
pay period, the periodic compensation shall be adjusted accordingly.

SECTION 7. ASSIGNMENT. This agreement shall not be assigned by the
Consultant without prior written permission of the City.

SECTION 8. . INDEMNITY AND LIABILITY. STANTEC agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless (but not defend) City from and against losses,
damages, liabilities, and expenses to the proportionate extent caused by: (i) the
failure of STANTEC to comply in material respects with federal, state, provincial
and/or local laws and regulations applicable to the services; or (ii) the negligence
or willful misconduct on the part of STANTEC in performing the services.

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, FOR ANY DAMAGE
RESULTING FROM BREACH OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE IN THE
PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES, INCLUDING ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR
OTHER ACTS, OR ARISING PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER CAUSE OF ACTION,
STANTEC'S LIABILITY, INCLUDING THAT OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND SUBCONTRACTORS, SHALL BE STRICTLY
LIMITED TO THE LESSER OF THE AGREEMENT VALUE OR $250,000.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE PRECEDING SENTENCE, IF THE AGREEMENT
VALUE IS LESS THAN $50,000, STANTEC'S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO
$50,000. FOR ANY CLAIMS ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE
EXISTENCE OF MOLD, ASBESTOS, OR LEAD-BASED PAINT DISCOVERED
DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES, STANTEC’S LIABILITY
SHALL BE LIMITED $50,000, WITH SUCH SUBCAP FALLING WITHIN AND
REDUCING THE OVERALL LIMIT OF LIABILITY. THE LIMITATIONS IN THIS
PARAGRAPH SHALL NOT APPLY TO DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THE
GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE PARTY CAUSING
SUCH DAMAGE. EXCEPT AS EXPLICITLY PROVIDED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT
SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL,
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES. THIS MUTUAL WAIVER IS
APPLICABLE WITHOUT LIMITATION, TO ALL DAMAGES CONTEMPLATED IN
THIS SECTION THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE BE INCLUDED WITHIN A PARTY'S
INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS.

SECTION 9. TAXES. Consultant shall assume full responsibility for
payment of all federal, state, and local taxes or contributions imposed or required
under unemployment insurance, Social Security, and income tax laws, with respect
to Consultant’s performance of this Agreement.

SECTION 10. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement has been executed
and delivered in, and shall be interpreted, construed and enforced pursuant to and
in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. All duties and obligations of




the parties created hereunder are performable in Polk County, Florida and Polk
County, Florida shall be the sole and exclusive venue for any litigation, special
proceeding or other proceedings as between the parties that may be brought or
arise out of or in connection with or by reason of this Agreement.

SECTION 11. INSURANCE.

11.1 Consultant shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will
protect Consultant from the losses or claims set forth below which may arise out
of or result from Consultant's performance or obligations to perform under the
Agreement, whether such performance be by Consultant or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by Consultant, or by anyone for whose acts Consultant may
be liable:

(@) claims under workers’ compensation, disability benefit, and other
similar employee benefit acts;

(b)  claims for damage because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or
disease or death of Consultant’s employees;

(c) claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or
death of any person other than Consultant’s employees;

(d) claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability
coverage;

(e) claims for damages because of injury to or destruction of tangible
property; and,

)] claims for design errors or other violations of professional obligations
as defined in an approved policy of professional errors and omissions liability
insurance.

11.2 The insurance required by the preceding subsection shall be written
for not less than the following limits or as required by law, whichever is greater:

(@) Workers' Compensation — Statutory (with broad form
all states endorsement)

(b) Employers’ Liability -- $300,000 per occurrence

(c) Comprehensive General Liability, including
Contractual:

Bodily Injury: $300,000 per person
$500,000 per occurrence



Property Damage: $500,000 per occurrence
Personal Injury: $500,000 per occurrence

(d)  Automobile, including owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles:

Bodily Injury: $300,000 per person
$500,000 per occurrence

Property Damage: $500,000 per occurrence
(e) Professional: $5,000,000 each claim

11.3 Certificates of insurance acceptable to the City shall be filed with the
City prior to commencement of the work. These certificates shall contain a
provision that coverages afforded under the policies shall not be canceled until

thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given the City.

11.4 Insurance specified herein shall be minimum requirements, and
Consultant is responsible for providing any additional insurance deemed
necessary to protect Consultant’s interests from other hazards or claims in excess
of the minimum coverage. The liability of Consultant to the City is not limited to
Consultant’s insurance coverage.

SECTION 12. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT. The City reserves the right
at its sole discretion to enter into contracts with other consultants to provide similar
services as those identified in the various Scopes of Work.

SECTION 13. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is intended only for the
benefit of City and Consultant and is specifically not intended to benefit any third
parties.

SECTION 14. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT; COMPLIANCE WITH
FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS.

14.1 The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the
Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that he has not paid or agreed
to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm other than a bona fide
employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift,
or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award of this
Agreement.

14.2 The Consultant covenants that it or any of its employees presently
has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, financial or
otherwise, that would conflict in any manner or degree with performance of
services hereunder.



14.3 Standards of Conduct-Conflict of Interest — The Consultant agrees
that it and its employees shall be bound by the Standards of Conduct provided in
Section 112.313, Florida Statutes, as it relates to services performed under this
Agreement, which standards will by reference be made a part of this Agreement
as though set forth in full. The Consultant agrees to incorporate the provisions of
this paragraph in any subcontract into which it might enter with reference to the
services performed.

14.4 The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws
and ordinances applicable to the work or payment for work thereof, and shall not
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin in the
performance of work under this Agreement.

SECTION 15. BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heir, legal representatives,
successors and assigns, but neither this Agreement nor any of the rights
hereunder shall be assignable by Consultant.

SECTION 16. WAIVER. A waiver by any party of any of the terms and
conditions hereof shall not be construed as a general waiver by such party and
such party shall be free to reinstate any such term or condition, with or without
notice to the other party.

SECTION 17. NOTICE. Whenever any notice, demand or consent is
required or permitted under this Agreement, such notice, demand or consent shall
be written and shall be deemed given when sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested to the following address with a courtesy copy sent via email:

To City: Polk City
123 Broadway Blvd., SE
Polk City, FL 33868
Attention: City Manager

To Consultant: Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
4798 New Broad Street, Suite 100
Orlando, FL 32814
c/o: Harold Schmidt, Jr., PE, BCEE

SECTION 18. CHANGES IN LAW.

18.1 In the event that there is a change in a statute, regulation or the
application or interpretation thereof, or the adoption of new legislation which may
otherwise make this Agreement illegal or unenforceablie, the parties agree to use
their best efforts to agree upon modifications to this Agreement which will make it
legal and enforceable. If after using best efforts, the parties are unable to reach
any such agreement, then either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty
(30) days written notice to the other party.



18.2 In the event there is a change in a statute, regulation or the
application of interpretation thereof, or the adoption of new legislation which
materially affects employer’s health care delivery system, the parties agree to use
their best efforts to agree upon modifications to this Agreement which will allow a
health care delivery system by the employer which is consistent with new trends
and beneficial to the community. If, after using best efforts, the parties are unable
to reach any such agreement, then either party may terminate this Agreement
upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

SECTION 19. CONSTRUCTION. Nothing in this Agreement is intended,
nor shall be construed or interpreted, to waive or modify the immunities and
limitations on liability provided for in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as may be
amended from time to time, or any successor statute thereof. To the contrary, all
terms and provisions contained in this Agreement, or any disagreement or dispute
concerning it, shall be construed, or resolved so as to ensure City of the limitation
from liability provided to the State's subdivisions by state law.

SECTION 20. AUDIT AND PUBLIC RECORDS RETENTION.

20.1 Consuitant has been advised the City and all its activities are subject
to the Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes) and the Sunshine Law
(Section 286.011, Florida Statutes), and agrees to maintain all records necessary
to comply with the requirement of such laws, and for the proper supervision of the
services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Consultant agrees to comply with
all City policies and procedures in observing the requirement of said laws.

20.2 City shall have the right to audit the books, records, and accounts of
Consultant that are related to the performance of Services pursuant to this
Agreement. Consultant shall keep such books, records and accounts as may be
necessary to record complete and correct entries related to this Agreement.
Consultant shall preserve and make available, at reasonable times for examination
and audit by City, all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records,
and any other documents pertinent to this Agreement for the required retention
period of the Florida Public Records Act (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), if
applicable, or if the Florida Public Records Act is not applicable for a minimum
period of three (3) years after termination of this Agreement. If any audit has been
initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of the retention period
or three (3) years, whichever is longer, the books, records and accounts shall be
retained until resolution of the audit findings If the Florida Public Records Act is
determined by City to be applicable to Consultant’s records, Consultant shall
comply with all requirements thereof; however, no confidentiality or non-disclosure
requirement of either federal or state law shall be violated by Consultant. Any
incomplete or incorrect entry in such books, records and accounts shall be a basis
for City disallowance and/or recovery of any payment upon such entry.

SECTION 21. NONDISCRIMINATION; EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT.




21.1 Without limitation of any provision herein, Consultant expressly
agrees to abide by any and all applicable federal and/or state equal employment
opportunity statutes, rules, and regulations, including, without limitation, Title 7 of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972, the
Age Discrimination and Employment Act of 1967, the Equal Pay Act of 1963, the
National Labor Relations Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, and the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, and as may be from
time to time modified or amended. Consultant further agrees to hold harmless and
indemnify City from any and all liability arising from any breach of this covenant.

21.2 Consultant’s decisions regarding the delivery of services under this
Agreement shall be made without regard to or consideration of race, age, religion,
color, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, marital status, physical or mental
disability, political affiliation, or any other factor which cannot be lawfully or
appropriately used as a basis for Service delivery.

21.3 Consultant shall comply with Title 1 of the Americans with Disabilities
Act regarding nondiscrimination on the basis of disability in employment and
further shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation, national origin,
marital status, political affiliation, or physical or mental disability.

SECTION 22. MODIFICATION. No modification of any of the provisions
of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by both parties to
this Agreement.

SECTION 23. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

23.1 Consultant agrees that it will avoid activities, investments and other
situations which may conflict with its duties to City as described herein. In
providing services under this Agreement, the Consultant expressly agrees that:

(a) Consultant does not have any personal financial interest, direct or
indirect, with any member of City’s Commission, or any person who is employed
by City.

(b)  As of the date of this Agreement, Consultant does not represent any
client whose interest is currently adverse to the interest of the City.

23.2 Consultant further agrees that if, during the term of this Agreement,
it determines that a client represented by Consultant has or may potentially have
an interest adverse to the interest of City, Consultant shall immediately disclose
such conflict of interest as required by Section 24.4. Additionally, before
proposing, advocating, or otherwise advancing any legislation, administrative rule,
regulation, or policy that may potentially impact City and its operations, Consultant
shall, consistent with Section 24.4, disclose the representation and provide a copy
of the legislation, administrative rule, regulation, or policy to the City.

10



23.3 Consultant agrees that it shall not, and that its employees shall not,
have or hold any continuing or frequently recurring employment or contractual
relationship that is substantially antagonistic or incompatible with Consultant’s
loyal and conscientious exercise of judgment related to its performance under this
Agreement.

23.4 Consultant further agrees that if a conflict of interest arises during the
performance of this Agreement, Consultant shall disclose, in writing, the existence
and nature of such conflict to City. Such disclosure shall occur immediately upon
discovery of the conflict, but in no event shall disclosure be made more than three
(3) days after Consultant’s discovery of the conflict. Consultant's written disclosure
shall provide sufficient information concerning the conflict including, but not limited
to, name of the client presenting the conflicting position, the nature of the conflict,
and the extent to which Consultant is unable to provide the services described.
Upon receipt of such disclosure, the City, in its sole discretion, shall take any
appropriate action, up to and including termination of this Agreement.

23.5 In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 6 or
Section 23, the Consultant agrees to, upon request, assist City in its efforts to
contact and engage qualified individuals to perform the services identified in
Section 2.

SECTION 24. AUTHORIZATION. Consultant shall not, without
authorization first being given by City: a) Use or pledge money or credit of the City,
except in the usual and regular course of business and on account of or for the
benefit of the City; b) Release or discharge any debt due to City without receiving
the full amount thereof; ¢) Commit any act causing seizure or attachment of the
City’s property; or d) Cause City to become a guarantor, surety, or endorser, or
give any note which obligates the City.

SECTION 25. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. On behalf of
its employees, agents, servants and contractors, Consultant represents and
warrants to the City each of the following:

(@) None of Consultant’s principals or the immediate family of
Consultant’s principals has a compensation arrangement of any kind with City. For
purposes of this subsection, the term “immediate family” shall include a spouse,
natural or adoptive parent, child or sibling, stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother or
stepsister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandparent, grandchild or spouse of a
grandparent or grandchild. For purposes of this subsection, compensation shall
be defined as any type of remuneration directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly,
paid in cash or in kind.

(b)  None of Consultant’s principals has ever been convicted of a criminal
offense, has not been and currently is not under investigation by any public or
private, state or federal regulatory body.

11



(c) Consultant is not undergoing any type of audit by a public or private,
state or regulatory body or auditing entity.

(d) Consultant and its principals have not engaged in, and during the
term of this Agreement agree not to engage in, any activities prohibited under the
federal anti-kickback laws (42 U.S.C. 1320a-7, 1320a-7a, 1320a-7b), the
regulations promulgated pursuant to such federal statutes, related state or local
statutes or regulations, or rules of professional conduct.

(e) Consultant has not employed or retained any company or person,
other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure
this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company,
corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for
Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other consideration
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. For a
breach or violation of this provision, City shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement without liability at its discretion, or to deduct from the Agreement price
or otherwise recover the fully amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or
consideration.

SECTION 26. SEVERABILITY. In the event any provision of this
Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the unenforceability thereof
shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall remain in force and
effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

SECTION 27. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. Upon the City’'s payment
to Consultant, all deliverables provided or created in connection with this
Agreement will and shall remain the property of City. The use of deliverables is
restricted to City, its designers and contractors for the specific project for which
Consultant was engaged. The use of Consultant’s deliverables, including
intellectual property contained therein, on other projects by other parties is strictly
prohibited. In the event of termination of this Agreement, any reports,
photographs, surveys, and other data and documents prepared by Consultant,
whether finished or unfinished provided or created in connection with this
Agreement, shall become the property of City upon payment and shall be delivered
by Consultant to the City within seven (7) days of termination of this Agreement by
either party. The use of such information shall be restricted as noted above. .

City acknowledges that inventions, works, products, software, copyrights, patents,
and any other materials which were created, conceived, or reduced to practice
prior to or independently of this Agreement by Consultant, and trade secrets, know
how, methodology, and processes of Consultant related to the services under this
Agreement (hereinafter the “STANTEC IP”) shall remain the property of
Consultant. To the extent that any STANTEC IP is incorporated into the Work
Product and on the condition that City has fully paid Consultant for the Work
Product, Consultant hereby grants City a limited, nonexclusive, nontransferable,

12



perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, paid-up, license to utilize the STANTEC IP
solely with respect to the project.

SECTION 28. JOINT PREPARATION. Preparation of this Agreement has
been a joint effort of City and Consultant and the resulting document shall not,
solely as a matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against one
of the parties than any other.

SECTION 29. WARRANTY. Consultant shall perform services for City in
a professional manner, using that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by
and consistent with the standards of competent consultants practicing in the same
or a similar locality as the project. In the event any portion of the services fails to
comply with this warranty obligation and Consultant is promptly notified in writing
prior to one year after completion of such portion of the services, Consultant will
re-perform such portion of the services, or if re-performance is impracticable,
Consultant will refund the amount of compensation paid to Consultant for such
portion of the services. This warranty is in lieu of all other warranties. No other
warranty, expressed or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness
for a particular purpose is made or intended by the proposal for consulting
services, by furnishing an oral response of the findings made or by any
representations made regarding the services included in this agreement. In no
event shall Consultant be liable for any special, indirect, incidental, or
consequential loss or delay or time-related damages. City may, upon written
request received within five days of City’s acceptance hereof, increase the limit of
Consultant’s liability by agreeing to pay Consultant an additional sum as agreed in
writing prior to the commencement of Consultant’s services. This charge is not to
be construed as being a charge for insurance of any type but is increased
consideration for the greater liability involved. PURSUANT TO §558.0035,
FLORIDA STATUTES, CONSULTANT'S INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEES AND/OR
AGENTS MAY NOT BE HELD INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR NEGLIGENCE
ARISING OUT OF, CONNECTED WITH, OR RESULTING FROM THEIR
SERVICES PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.

SECTION 30. FORCE MAJEURE. If either party is rendered unable,
wholly or in part, by Force Majeure to carry out its obligations under this
Agreement, other than the obligation to pay funds due, that party shall give the
other party prompt written notice of the Force Majeure with reasonably full
particulars thereof. Such notice shall include the cost and/or schedule impacts so
that an adjustment to the costs/schedule shall be made accordingly. Thereupon,
the obligations of the party giving notice, so far as they are affected by the Force
Majeure, shall be suspended during, but not longer than, the continuance of the
Force Majeure. The affected party shall use all reasonable diligence to remove or
remedy the Force Majeure as quickly as possible, except that this requirement
shall not require the settlement of strikes, lockouts, or other labor difficulty.

13



SECTION 31. RIGHT TO RELY. The City shall furnish to Consultant
all applicable information and technical data in the City's possession or control
reasonably required for the proper performance of the Services. Consultant shall
be entitled to reasonably rely upon the accuracy and completeness of information
and data provided by the City, its consultants, or obtained from generally
acceptable sources within the industry without independent verification except to
the extent such verification is expressly included in the Services. Where such
information or data originates either with the City, its consultants, or generally
acceptable sources within the industry, then Consultant shall not be responsible to
the City for the consequences of any error or omission contained therein.

POLK CITY, FLORIDA, a municipal
corporation

APPROVED:
ATTEST:

Patricia Jackson, City Clerk Joseph L. LaCascia , Mayor—
Commissioner

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

Thomas A. Cloud, City Attorney

Signed, sealed and delivered in the STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES
presence of: INC., a foreign corporation

By:

Print Name:

Title:
Print Name:

Date;

14



Print Name:

[CORPORATE SEAL]

EXHIBIT A
WORK RELEASE

CIVILSURV (CONSULTANT) is hereby authorized to perform the services
outlined hereon pursuant to the provisions of the Professional Services Agreement

with The City of Polk City (CITY) dated , 2022.
CITYP.O. # WORK RELEASE #
CONSULTANT FILE # DATE

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

SCHEDULE SUMMARY::

COMPENSATION: In accordance with the terms and conditions of the above-
referenced Professional Services Agreement, CONSULTANT will provide the
services outlined heron for:

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS:

15



AUTHORIZATIONS:

This work release is hereby approved and CONSULTANT is authorized to
proceed. Receipt of a fully executed copy of this Work Release shall constitute
written notice to proceed.

CONSULTANT'S Project Manager CITY'S Project Representative
EXHIBIT B
CHANGE ORDER
WORK RELEASE # DATE:
ORIGINAL P.O. # NEWP.O. #

CONSULTANT FILE#

The existing work release referenced above is hereby revised as outlined
hereon. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN SCOPE OF SERVICES:

SCHEDULE CHANGES:

FEE CHANGES:

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS:

16



AUTHORIZATIONS:

This change order is hereby approved and CONSULTANT is authorized to
proceed. Receipt of a fully executed copy of this change order shall constitute
written notice to proceed.

CONSULTANT'S Project Manager CITY'S Project Representative

17



EXHIBIT C
SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSABLE COST

18



EXHIBIT D
SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES

19



EXHIBIT E
ATTACHED LETTER OF OCTOBER 15, 2024

20



@ Stantec

EXHIBIT A

Cardinal Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility - Facility Plan

Stantec Consulting Services is pleased to submit the following Letter Proposal to provide
professional services for the above-referenced project to perform an evaluation of the Cardinal
Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Facility Plan. The proposal has been structured to
identify the scope of services that Stantec will provide, our fee for these services, and a preliminary
schedule. Any additional services that may be required outside of this scope can be discussed
and added by amendment.

Project Background

The City of Polk City owns and operates the Cardinal Hill WWTF, which has a permifted tfreatment
capacity of 0.30 million galions per day (MGD) based on an Annual Average Daily Flow {AADF)
basis. The facility is operated to provide secondary freatment with basic disinfection. The WWTF is
an extended aeration domestic wastewater treatment facility consisting of: one aerated surge
tank, one aeration basin, two clarifiers, two chlorine contact chambers, and one aerated biosolids
holding tank. The with treated effluent disposed of by a 0.07 MGD AADF 9.5 acre spray field, a
0.100 MGD AADF Part IV rapid-rate land application system consisting of a two-cell Rapid
Infiltration Basin (RIB), and a 0.300 MGD AADF Part IV rapid-rate land application system consisting
of a two-cell RIB (Facility).

The Cardinal Hill WWTF is operated under Wastewater Permit No. FLA489093, which will expire on
April 07, 2027. The Facility is located on Steven Drive in Polk City, Florida. On September 19, 2024
the City executed the First Amended Consent Order OGC File No.: 24-1381, which documented
the failure to meet permit limits in the:
e Effluent quality on numerous occasions for Total Suspended Solids (TSS).
e Groundwater for the following parameters: cadmium, chlorides, fecal coliforms, lead,
nitrates as nitrogen, pH, tofal dissolved solids (TDS),

The Consent Order identifies various requirements to bring the facility into compliance by
December 31, 2029. One such task is the development of a Facility Plan that will outline the steps
necessary to plan, design and construct the necessary improvements to meet the intent of the
Consent Order.

Project Overview
As part of this effort, Stantec will perform the following main elements:

s Document the existing conditions and prepare technical evaluations
e Develop a list of future improvements
e Prioritize and recommend allocations for capital improvement plan (CIP) expenditures

» Compile the evaluations and recommendations into a comprehensive Facility Plan

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal =10/15/2024 Page 1 of 8



These work items are further discussed and detailed in the items below which will function as the
scope and fee proposal for this project.

Task 1. Project Management
Task 1.1. General Project Management Activities

Stantec will be responsible for project management through its assigned Project Manager {PM)
for the duration of the Project. Stantec's PM will coordinate the execution of all work activities to
be completed by Stantec’s project team. This will include the management of internal staff,
monitoring of project financials, and ensuring timely submittal of deliverables. Project
management will be provided for all phases until project completion. This task includes the
assistance of other technical and administrative staff that support the PM's efforts. As part of
project management, Stantec will:

e Prepare a baseline project schedule to be presented and reviewed at the kickoff meeting;
the kickoff meeting will mark the official start of the project schedule.

» Perform project setup and closeout the project at completion.

e Coordinate the execution of all work activities and ensure timely submittal of deliverables.

e Conduct bi-weekly internal team coordination meetings to coordinate status and identify
challenges and risks as well as issues or questions that need fo be communicated or
coordinated with City.

e Prepare and implement a quality management plan (QMP) and facilitate internal quality
and independent reviews of all deliverables prior to issuance.

e Manage Stantec resources and staffing in the execution of all work activities.
» Monitor project financials and perform monthly estimates to complete.

e Maintain regular contact with City’s assigned project manager and other support staff
throughout the life of the project via phone and email corespondence.

e Include monthly progress meetings with City and Stantec's subconsultants to review and
document task by task status, identify risks, action items, change of conditions, schedule
updates, and financial status.

o Prepare monthly invoices and progress reports.
Deliverables:

e Monthly invoices including progress reports, budgeting projections (PDF).
Task 1.2. Workshop 1 Project Kickoff and Definition

To initiate the project, Stantec will facilitate a project kickoff and definition workshop with City. The
workshop will be conducted and attended in-person. The two (2) hour workshop to review the
scope of work, project requirements, deliverables, schedule, and to identify information needed
by Stantec to initiate the engineering evaluations. Stantec will facilifate a framing exercise to
obtain a clear understanding of the City's expectations and vision for the Cardinal Hill WWTF

City of Polk City Cardinai Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal -10/15/2024 Page 2 of 8



Facility Plan. In addition, City will identify capital projects cunently underway or already planned
for inclusion or consideration in the Project.

Deliverables:

s« Meeting agenda for all attendees.

«  Meeting minutes (PDF).

Assumptions:

e Project Kickoff and Definition Workshop to take place within 2 weeks of the Nofice 1o
Proceed.

e City to arrange kickoff meeting and workshop location at City facilities. Stantec to arrange
virtual meeting over MS Teams for team members attending virfually.

Task 2. Information Gathering

Task 2.1. Data Collection and Review

Stantec will request information from City staff in the form of written requests for information (RF)
and perform investigations of the Cardinal Hill WWTF data as conditions, gaps, and information
warrants. The requested information will include, but not be limited fo record drawings, process
flow diagrams, past 5-years of flow and load data, previous reports, monthly operating reports,
and discharge monitoring reports. Stantec will develop and maintain a data collection summary
log that will include any analysis, gaps identified in plant data and any notes on operator
discussions on the existing data.

Deliverables:

e Requests for Information (RFI) for plant data information (PDF)

e Data Collection Summary Log (PDF)

Assumptions:

« City fo review Data Collection Summary Log and provide comments fo Stantec within 10
working days of submittal.

Task 2.2. Staff Interviews and Site Visit

As part of the Kickoff meeting Stantec will visit the Cardinal Hill WWTF. During this subtask, Stantec
will prepare for and conduct interviews with Cardinal Hill WWTF personnel {i.e., operations and
maintenance personnel) to identify known system deficiencies and/or concems for each process
area. Information developed from this subtask will be documented in a memorandum and
incorporated into the Final Facility Plan (see Task 4). This memorandum will include any analysis,
gaps identified in plant data and any notes on operator discussions on the existing data.

Deliverables:

« Data Collection and Review and Staff Interviews Memorandum 1 (PDF).

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal —10/15/2024 Page 3 of 8



Assumptions:

« City to review and provide comments within 5 working days of submittal.

Task 3. Engineering Evaluations

The following evaluations and studies will be performed and documented through technical
memoranda {TM), or other methods as described below.

Task 3.1. Flow and Load Projections

Stantec will review and incorporate the Cardinal Hill WWTF service area definition, historical flows
and loadings characteristics (2019-2024), trends, customer growth projections over the next 20
years as provided by others. Stantec willincorporate the growth values and expectations over the
near term (2025 - 2030}, for the Cardinal Hill WWTF service area, every 5 years through year 2045.
A preliminary growth, flows, and loads forecasting virtual workshop will be held with the City.

Stantec will incorporate the flow and loading projections that will be provided by the City's
consultant for average, average day maximum month, peak day, and peak hour conditions for
flow, BOD, TSS, ammonia, total nitrogen, and total phosphorus through the planning horizon as
appropriate for the specific constituents. The information will be compiled for review by the City
and incorporated info the Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan (see Task 4).

Task 3.2. Regulatory Drivers

Stantec will review and summarize cument, pending and anficioated future regulatory
requirements and planning criteria, and the potential impact, that may influence operation,
maintenance, and capital improvements of the existing wastewater treatment system. The
evaluation is expected to focus on the existing permits. One virtual meeting will be held with the
City to discuss understanding of future permitting requirements. The information captured during
this task will be included in the Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan (see Task 4).

Task 3.3. Process Capacity Analysis

Stantec will summarize the existing facility, provide detailed descriptions for each unit process
area, evaluate treatment alternatives, and recommend proposed improvements o address the
Consent Order, the projected flows and loads, and findings, and regulatory drivers identified in
Subfasks 3.1. Alternatives will be developed and process improvements and/or opfimization
options to accommodate future conditions will be recommended.

A process model will be developed for a range of effluent quality parameters, to reflect changes
in regulatory requirements and reflect up to up to three alternative freatment processes to reduce
nitrogen to levels acceptable for the current effluent disposal methods used (non-public access
sites). No calibration or validation of the process model will be performed. Each of the freatment
alternatives will be reviewed for reliability, capacity, and operation and maintenance (O&M)
requirements. In addition, a conceptual capital cost estimating for the recommended
improvements. The cost estimates or opinions of probable construction costs (OPCC) will be based
upon AACE Class 5 estimating. These capital cost estimates will be bundled with operation and
maintenance costs to generate life cycle costs to assist with altermnatives decision making. No
cdlibration or validation of the process model will be performed. A draft technical memorandum

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal -10/15/2024 Page 4 of 8



will be prepared and submitted for City review and incorporated into the Cardinal Hill WWTF
Facility Plan (see Task 4).

A draft technical memorandum will be prepared and submitted for City review and incorporated
into the Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan {see Task 4).

Deliverables:

«  Draft Technical Memorandum — Cardinal Hill WWTF Process Capacity Analysis (PDF).

Assumptions:

« City to review and provide comments within 5 working days of submittal.
Task 3.4. Workshop Flow and Load Projections, Capacity Analysis, and Regulatory Drivers.

stantec will facilitate a workshop with City. A presentation will be prepared to describe the findings
of tasks 3.1 through 3.3. This Workshop is anticipated to be conducted in-person. Topics of
discussion may include historical flows and loading, customer projections, and anticipated
developments, projected flows and loads for planning period., the capacity established for each
major process area, and regulafory requirements and considerations. Stantec will provide
responses to all City comments in the comment log. Those comments which require revisions to
the Technical Memorandum will be incorporated into the Cardinal Hilt WWTF Facility Plan (see Task
4).

Deliverables:

*  Meeting agendas for all attendees.
= PowerPoint presentation.
* Aftendance record (sign-in sheet).

*  Meeting minutes.
Assumptions:
- Workshop fo take place within one week after submittal to City.

Task 4 Draft and Final Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan

The information will be compiled and documented in the Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan as noted
below.

Task 4.1 Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan

Stantec will compile information contained in the Technical Memorandums for the various
planning elements outlined in the previous tasks into a Cardinal Hill WWTF Faclility Plan that also
addresses comments received from City staff from Tasks 2 through 3. An Executive Summary will
also be prepared. Appendices will be created that include pertinent supporting documentation.
The draft report will be provided to the City for review.

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal —-10/15/2024 Page 50f8



Deliverables:
+ Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan one (1) electronic copy (PDF)

Assumptions:

» City to review the Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan reporf and provide comments
within 5 working days of submittal.

Task 4.2 Workshop Facility Plan Update Review

Stantec will hold a review workshop after the submittal of the Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan
and is anticipated to be conducted in-person. City's comments which require revisions to the draft
report will be addressed in the Final Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan

Deliverables:

= Meeting agendas for all atfendees.
* PowerPoint presentation.
e Attendance record {sign-in sheet}.

*  Meeting minutes.

Assumptions:

«  Workshop to take place within two weeks after submittal of Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility
Plan o City.

« City to arange workshop location at City facilities. Stantec to arrange virtually meeting
over MS Teams for tfeam members attending virtually.

Task 4.3 Final Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan

Stantec will address City review comments and finalize the document. A Final Cardinal Hill WWTF
Facility Plan will be submitted to the City and FDEP in accordance with the reguirements of the
Consent Order. One (1) electronic copy (PDF format) of the final report will be provided to the
City.

Deliverabiles:
«  Final Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan one electronic copy (PDF).

Assumptions:

s The City wil forward one electronic copy be provided fo FDEP.

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF - Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal —10/15/2024 Page 6 of 8



Assumptions

1. City will provide to Stantec existing record drawings, ufility as-builts, technical data, and
other record applicable information pertinent to the project available to City. Stantec will
be entitled to reasonably rely upon the information and data provided by City or obtained
from generally acceptable sources within the indusiry wifhout independent verification
except to the extent such verification is expressly included in the Services. The parties
agree that Stantec will be entitled to additional fees in the event additional services or
reperformance of services are required as a result of any error or omission that may be
contained in any such information.

2. Stantec will maintain and update the project schedule as the project progresses and will
alert City if the any tasks are expected to extend beyond the originally scheduled dates.

3. City will review Stantec deliverables and return comments within the timeframes identified
and agreed in the Baseline Project Schedule.

4. The effort for Draft Technical Memoranda preparation within Tasks 2 and 3 includes review
by Independent Technical Reviewers (ITR) prior to submittal to City. The IR members will
be Stantec employees and selected based on TM content.

5. The site visit will be limited to visual observation (non-invasive) and it is not infended to be
a condition assessment and/or comprehensive inspection.

6. The site visit and staff interviews will be conducted during normal plant operations. Stantec
will not enter confined spaces.

7. Invasive structural and electrical engineering reviews are not included in the scope of work
and can be provided as an additional service.

8. The Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan within Task 4 will be the compilation of each T™M
that incorporates City comments from the Draft TM review. The effort for Draft Cardinal Hill
WWTF Facility Plan includes review by two ITR members prior to submittal fo City. The TR
members will be Stantec employees.

9. Stantec will submit draft meeting minutes fo City within 5 business days of a meeting.
Stantec will allow 5 business days forreceipt of comments from City on draft minutes before
proceeding to issue final meeting minutes.

10. Opinions of Probable Construction Costs [OPCCs) are good faith consfruction cost
estimates representing Stantec's best judgement as design professionals. Stantec
develops OPCCs based on AACE standards and classification for cost estimates. OPCCs
are developed based on Stantec's understanding of costs at the time of developing the
estimates. Actual contractor pricing will vary from OPCC estimates, and significant
variations may occur due to unknown site conditions orincomplete information at the time
of the estimates, changing labor market and material costs, high degree of construction
activity in the region, procurement method used, among other reasons.

11. It is anticipated a project duration of 4 months, assuming City will provide information in a
timely manner to maintain project schedule as noted herein. Delays or challenges in

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF — Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal —=10/15/2024 Page 7 of 8



Project Schedule

obtaining data are needed for Stantec as early as practical to allow adjustment fo
schedule and planning alternafives fo be considered.

A preliminary project schedule is included below assuming an NTP date to Stantec in August 2024,

== =N BB e —— ===
Task Description Start Date End Date Dirgtion
(Days)

1 Project Management 10/28/2024 2/25/2025 120

2 Data Acquisition 10/28/2024 11/27/2024 30

3 Engineering Evaluations/Draft Technical Memo/Workshop 11/12/2024 12/12/2024 30

4 Draft and Final Facility Plan 12/12/2024 2/10/2025 60

4.1 Draft Facility Plan 12/12/2024 1/26/2025 45

4.2  |Final Facility Plan 1/26/2025 2/25/2025 30

Project Fee

The total project not-to-exceed fee for the services described in this proposal is $54,923.00. The
project will be billed on a lump sum basis.

Tasks Fee
Task 1 Project Management and Workshop 1 $9.042.00
Task 2 Information Gathering $9.672.00
Task 3 Engineering Evaluations $12,184.00
Task 4.1 Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan $15,350.00
Task 4.2 Draft Cardinal Hill WWTF Facility Plan $8,675.00
TOTAL $54,923.00

City of Polk City Cardinal Hill WWTF - Facility Plan
Stantec Proposal -10/15/2024

Page 8 of 8



00'005'L$
00°005'L$ 00'S1 00°00L$ sasuadx3 joafold

894 [gjoL-qns sHun il [ Sjeg Bujiig ‘esuodxg -
00'€2Y'ESS 00°€22
00°094'8% 00'8¥ 00'0218 80 [2A37 ue|s|Ssy 198/0ld auuog ‘apeyds
00'86'5$ 00'v€ 009215 60 [9As7 198UIbU 108l0id eljog 'ziuely
00'6L2'ELS 00°LS 00'692% 9l [9A97 1aBeuely 1o8l01d olb1ag 'SOAOH
00°095'62$ 00°06 00'v9z$ g} [8Ae7 BANOSX3 JusllD ploJeH Ir IPILLOS
| 904 |#oi-qng sinol siey Buljlg. J 1oAE Bulliig L ooy is . : ; slweN

8¢-20-5202

ajeq pu3 pauueld

82-0}-7202
aleq Uelg pauueld

D0'EZ6'YSS

00'08

00'008'LS

00'EZP'ESS
@94 |ejo]

1ejol
sqng
asuadx3y
inogqeT
Aiewuwng 3o3foad

140d3d AHVINNNS

e|jelse uowey

SOAOH "y olbiag

ELLL

A0 lod

Ue|d Al[10e4 - AJI0E] JUBUIIEa] | ISjemalsen IIiH leulpied

[ELaIBly B OWIL

Jejlog sn

dnolo ssauisng SN o9UelS

13malnay Ju adapu| joafolg
13heue(y 3193fo1g

a1jua) ssauisng
BWEN Juald
aweN 329foid

1aquinp joaloid

adA] 10ENUCY
Aauaung 3oafoig

Auedwo 10afoay




City Commission Meeting
November 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM #5: Request for Proposal of an Independent Auditor

___ INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Request for Proposal of an Independent Auditor
ATTACHMENTS:

-Template/sample packet of the RFP to be advertised
-Florida Statutes, Section 218.391

ANALYSIS:

Polk City’s Auditor of many years, Mike Brynjulfson, Brynjulfson CPA, has notified Polk City that he
would no longer be Polk City’s Independent Auditor. Brynjulfson’s contract expired on September 30,
2024, and he has chosen not to renew his contract with the City.

Per Section 218.391, Florida Statutes:

1. Committee must be at least 3 members and one of these members must be a member of the
governing body that will serve as chair of the committee.

2. An employee of the City may not serve as a member of the Auditor Selection Committee.
a. However, an employee may serve in an advisory capacity.
3 The Committee will:
a. Establish factors to use for evaluation.
b. Publicly announce request for proposals including a brief description of the audit

and how firms can apply.

C. Provide interested firms with a request for proposal.
d. Evaluate proposals.
e. Rank and recommend in order of preference.
4. The Governing Board (City Commission) will then select one of the firms recommended by the

Auditor Selection Committee and negotiate a contract.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting approval of the RFP for an Independent Auditor.



COVER PAGE

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS - FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES

RFP#2024-XX

Mail or deliver to XOXXXXXXXXXX



Request for Proposal (RFP) for Professional Auditing Services
Issued by: Polk City, Florida
State of Florida

l. Introduction

Polk City, Florida is requesting proposals from qualified independent certified public accounting firms to provide
professional auditing services for fiscal years ending September 30, 2025, 2026 and 2027. This audit shall be
performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS), Government Auditing Standards (the
“Yellow Book”), applicable Florida statutes, and regulations.

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 218, Part Ill, audits of local governmental entities are required to be
conducted in accordance with the Rules of the Florida Auditor General (Chapter 10.550). In addition, if the Polk
City, Florida meets the current applicable federal or state single audit threshold, the auditor may also be required
to perform a Single Audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act and Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, which
incorporates the requirements of Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federat Awards ("Uniform Guidance").

The auditor will also be required to perform an examination engagement in accordance with AICPA Professional
Standards Section AT-C 315, to determine compliance with the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 218.415
(Local Government Investment Policies), as required by the Rules of the Florida Auditor General (Chapter
10.550).

Il. General Information
1. Issuing Entity
o Name of the Local Government: Polk City, Florida
e Address: [Insert Address]
¢ Contact Person: [Insert Name and Title]
e Phone Number: [Insert Phone Number]
¢ Email Address: [Insert Email]
2. General Description of Polk City, Florida

Polk City, Florida is a small city located in Polk County, Florida, with a population of approximately 3,000. The City
provides a wide range of services to its residents, including:

e General Government: Administrative, legislative, and financial management, including budgeting, and
planning.

e Transportation: Maintenance of local streets, sidewalks, traffic control systems, and other public
infrastructure.

e Public Safety: Law enforcement and code enforcement. Law enforcement services are provided by the Polk
County Sheriff’s office pursuant to an interlocal agreement.

e Sanitation: Solid waste collection and disposal. Solid waste services are provided by a private contractor.

e Water and Wastewater: Operation and maintenance of the water supply, distribution system, wastewater
treatment facilities, and stormwater management.



The City's primary sources of revenue include ad valorem property taxes, utility service fees, state revenue-sharing
funds, and various other local revenues such as franchise fees and permits.

The City has engaged a CPA as a financial statement preparer and the auditor will be provided with an adjusted trial
balance and documentation supporting financial statement amounts and disclosures as soon as possible after the
end of the year and once auditing has been substantially completed, will prepare a complete set of basic financial
statements under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board financial reporting framework.

2. Purpose

The purpose of this RFP is to obtain the services of a qualified firm to perform an independent audit of the financial
statements of the Polk City, Florida in accordance with applicable auditing standards for fiscal years ending
September 30, 2025, 2026 and 2027 including Florida Statutes Chapter 21 8, Part lll, the Rules of the Florida
Auditor General, and an examination engagement under AICPA Professional Standards Section AT-C 315 for
compliance with Florida Statutes Section 218.415.

llIl. Scope of Services
1. Financial Audit
The auditor shall conduct an examination and prepare an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with:
¢ Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS),
e Government Auditing Standards (Yellow Book),
e Florida Statutes Chapter 218, Part I,
¢ Rules of the Florida Auditor General, Chapter 10.550,
e Any other applicable local, state, or federal regulations.
The audit shall cover all funds, account groups, and component units of Polk City, Florida.
2. Single Audit (As-Needed Basis)

If Polk City, Florida meets the current applicable federal or state single audit threshold, a Single Audit shall be
required in accordance with:

e The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996,
e Section 215.97, Florida Statutes,
e Subpart F of 2 CFR Part 200 (Uniform Guidance),
e Government Auditing Standards, and
e Any additional applicable requirements.
3. Examination Engagement - Compliance with Florida Statutes Section 218.415

The auditor shall conduct an examination engagement in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards
Section AT-C 315 to determine compliance with the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 218.415 (Local
Government Investment Policies). This engagement is required by the Rules of the Florida Auditor General,
Chapter 10.550, which mandates that auditors verify compliance with state law governing the investment of public
funds.



4. Reporting

The selected firm will be responsible for:

Providing an independent auditor’s report,

Preparing the report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,

Issuing a management letter in accordance with Section 218.39(4), Florida Statutes, and the Rules of the
Florida Auditor General, Chapter 10.550,

Communicating any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal controls,

Preparing and submitting a report on the examination engagement for compliance with Florida Statutes
Section 218.415, as required by the Rules of the Auditor General,

Attending meetings with local government officials as necessary to present audit and examination
engagement findings.

IV. Proposal Submission Requirements

Proposals must include the following information:

1.

2.

Firm Background and Experience

O

O

Provide an overview of the firm’s experience in governmental audits, particularly with local
governments in Florida.

List any Yellow Book, Single Audit, and examination engagement experience, including examples of
prior engagements.

Provide firm’s organizational structure and philosophy for rotating staff.

Independence

)

The proposer should provide an affirmative statement that all key supervisory personnet assigned to
the engagement are independent of the City, as defined by generally accepted auditing standards
and the U.S. General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards. In addition, the proposer
should have no conflict of interest regarding any other work performed by the firm for the City.

3. License Requirements, CPE

(@)

The firm and assigned key professional staff must be properly registered and licensed to practice in
the State of Florida. The firm must be Certified and Registered with the Florida Department of
Professional Regulation, AICPA, and FICPA.

Provide all applicable licenses, inctuding license name, license numbers and contact information
for the Firm and for the assigned key professional staff. The Town assumes a current CPA licensefor
key staff is a valid proxy for proof of maintaining annuat CPE requirements.

4. Staff Qualifications

(e}

List the key personnel who will be assigned to this engagement, including their resumes and relevant
certifications (e.g., CPA, CFE).

Confirm compliance with Government Auditing Standards and Florida-specific continuing
professional education (CPE) requirements.



5. Audit Approach
o Describe your firm’s audit approach and methodology.

o Indicate how your firm will comply with the provisions of Government Auditing Standards, the Single
Audit Act, Florida Statutes Chapter 218, Part 1, the Rules of the Florida Auditor General, and the
AICPA Professional Standards Section AT-C 315 for compliance with Florida Statutes Section
218.415.

6. References

o Provide at least three references from local government clients in Florida where similar audit and
examination engagement services have been performed.

7. CostProposat

o Provide a detailed not-to-exceed fee proposal for each year that includes the fee structure
(estimated blended hourly rates and projected hours) for the financial audit, Single Audit (if
required), and the examination engagement. The fee structure should be shown separately for each
of the above segments (financial audit, single audit and examination engagement).

o Include any additional charges that may apply (e.g., out-of-pocket expenses).
o Hourly rates for additional professional services.
8. Timeline

o Outline the expected timeline for conducting and completing the audit, Single Audit, and
examination engagement, including key milestones.

V. Evaluation Criteria
Proposals will be evaluated based on the following factors:
1. Experience and qualifications of the firm and assigned personnel.

2. Knowledge of Florida-specific governmental auditing requirements, including Chapter 218, Part lll, Florida
Statutes, Section 218.415, and the Rules of the Florida Auditor General.

3. Demonstrated understanding of Government Auditing Standards (Yellow Book), the Single Audit process,
and the examination engagement requirements.

4. Quality and clarity of the proposed audit approach and methodology.
5. Cost proposal and overall value.

6. References and reputation in providing audit and examination engagement services to similar local
governments.

The criteria are itemized with their respective weights for a maximum total of 100 points per Selection
Committee member.

EVALUATION CRITERIA MAX POINTS
Experience and qualifications 30
Knowledge of Auditing Requirements 30
Quality and clarity of the audit approach 20
Pricing 20




VI. Evaluation Committee

The Evaluation Committee shall review all Proposals for compliance with the specifications and selecta vendor(s)
for recommendation. The City may, as it deems necessary, conduct discussions with responsible Proposers
determined to be in contention for being selected for award for the purpose of clarification to assure full
understanding of, and responsiveness to solicitation requirements.

Contingent upon successful ranking of Proposals and negotiation of contracts, nothing shall preclude the from
selecting a single, qualified firm to provide the services.

An Evaluation Committee meeting will be held at a date and time to be determined.

VIl. Agreement Terms and Renewals

The initial contract term shall be for a period of three (3) years. The City reserves the right to renew the contract for
two (2) additional one (1) year periods. The option of renewal shall only be exercised upon mutual written agreement
by both parties and upon approval by the City Commission. All terms and conditions and unit prices shall remain
the same as the original agreement, unless mutually agreed upon in writing. The agreement contract shall be in
writing and must include, at minimum, the following provisions as required by Florida Statute 218.391(7):

(a) A provision specifying the services to be provided and the fees for such services.
(b) A provision requiring that the invoices for fees be submitted in sufficient detail to
demonstrate compliance with the terms of the contract.

(c) A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and conditions under which the contract
may be terminated or renewed.

VIil. Submission of Proposals
Proposals must be received by [Insert Deadline Date] at the following address:

[Insert Local Government Address]
[Insert City, State, Zip Code]
Attention: [Insert Name and Title]

Proposals may also be submitted electronically via email to: [Insert Email Address]

While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the information in this RFP, we
recognize that the information may not be complete in every detail and that all work may not be expressly mentioned
herein. It is the responsibility of the proposing company to include in their proposal all pertinent information.

Late submissions will not be considered.
IX. Rights Reserved by the Polk City, Florida
The Polk City, Florida reserves the right to:
¢ Rejectany orall proposals,
e Waive any informalities in the proposals,
e Request additional information from any proposing firm,

e Modify the terms, conditions, and scope of the RFP as needed.



X. Inquiries
For additional information or questions regarding this RFP, please contact:

[Insert Contact Person Name and Title]
[Insert Phone Number]
[Insert Email Address]

XI. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS
Please provide the following attachments for all proposals

e Fee proposal.

e References.

e Copies of CPA licenses for all key professional staff.

e Copy of most recent peer review report.

e Affirmative statement of independence and no conflict of interest.
e Noncollusion Affidavit

We look forward to receiving your proposal.
Sincerely,

[insert Name]

[Insert Title]

Polk City, Florida



NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

State of Florida
County of

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared (affiant), who, being first
duly sworn, deposes and says that:

1.

He/She is the (namettitle) of (name of firm)
hereinafter referred to as the "Bidder," and that he/she has the authority to make this affidavit on behalf of

the Bidder.

2. The Bidder is submitting a proposal to Polk City, Florida, in response to a Request for Proposal (RFP) for
Auditing Services.

3. The Bidder certifies that the proposal is genuine, and the prices quoted therein have been arrived at
independently, without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement with any other bidder or
with any competitor with the intent of restricting competition.

4. The Bidder further certifies that:

o No attempt has been made, or will be made, by the Bidder to induce any other person, partnership,
or corporation to submit or not to submit a proposal for the purpose of limiting competition.

o The prices in the proposal have not been knowingly disclosed by the Bidder and will not knowingly
be disclosed by the Bidder before the opening of proposals to any other bidder or competitor.

5. The Bidder certifies that neither it nor its officers, directors, partners, owners, agents, representatives,
employees, or parties in interest have in any way colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with
any other bidder, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham proposal in connection with the Contract
for which the attached proposal has been submitted.

6. The Bidder understands that false statements made in this affidavit are subject to the penalties of perjury,
and that providing false, misleading, or fraudulent information may result in disqualification from the
bidding process or nullification of any contract awarded based on the proposal.

7. The Bidder acknowledges that this affidavit is made for the purpose of inducing Polk City, Florida to award
a contract for auditing services.

Name:

Title:

Firm:

Address:

City: State: ZIP:
Phone: Email:

Signature of Affiant:

Date:




Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this day of , 20, by who is

personally known to me or has produced as identification.

Notary Public, State of Florida

Print Name:

My commission expires:

Commission Number:




Statutes & Constitution : View Statutes : Online Sunshine hitp://www.leg state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Stat...

Select Year: ‘_20_2? fv’jl ggj

The 2024 Florida Statutes

Title XIV Chapter 218 View Entire
TAXATION AND FINANCIAL MATTERS PERTAINING TO POLITICAL Chapter
FINANCE SUBDIVISIONS

218.391 Auditor selection procedures.—

(1) Each local governmental entity, district school board, charter school, or charter technical career center,
prior to entering into a written contract pursuant to subsection (7), except as provided in subsection (8), shall
use auditor selection procedures when selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial audit required in s.
218.39.

(2) The governing body of a county, municipality, special district, district school board, charter school, or
charter technical career center shall establish an auditor selection committee.

(a) The auditor selection committee for a county must, at a minimum, consist of each of the county officers
elected pursuant to the county charter or s. 1(d), Art. VIil of the State Constitution or their respective
designees and one member of the board of county commissioners or its designee.

(b) The auditor selection committee for a municipality, special district, district school board, charter
school, or charter technical career center must consist of at least three members. One member of the auditor
selection committee must be a member of the governing body of an entity specified in this paragraph, who shall
serve as the chair of the committee.

(c) An employee, a chief executive officer, or a chief financial officer of the county, municipality, special
district, district school board, charter school, or charter technical career center may not serve as a member of
an auditor selection committee established under this subsection; however, an employee, a chief executive
officer, or a chief financial officer of the county, municipality, special district, district school board, charter
school, or charter technical career center may serve in an advisory capacity.

(d) The primary purpose of the auditor selection committee is to assist the governing body in selecting an
auditor to conduct the annual financial audit required in s. 218.39; however, the committee may serve other
audit oversight purposes as determined by the entity’s governing body. The public may not be excluded from
the proceedings under this section.

(3) The auditor setection committee shall:

(@) Establish factors to use for the evaluation of audit services to be provided by a certified public
accounting firm duly licensed under chapter 473 and qualified to conduct audits in accordance with government
auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of Accountancy. Such factors shall include, but are not
limited to, ability of personnel, experience, ability to furnish the required services, and such other factors as
may be determined by the committee to be applicable to its particular requirements.

(b) Publicly announce requests for proposals. Public announcements must include, at a minimum, a brief
description of the audit and indicate how interested firms can apply for consideration.

(c) Provide interested firms with a request for proposal. The request for proposal shall include information
on how proposals are to be evaluated and such other information the committee determines is necessary for the
firm to prepare a proposal.

(d) Evaluate proposals provided by qualified firms. If compensation is one of the factors established
pursuant to paragraph (a), it shall not be the sole or predominant factor used to evaluate proposals.

10of2 9/16/2024, 3:24 PM



Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine hitp://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Stat...

(e) Rank and recommend in order of preference no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly
qualified to perform the required services after considering the factors established pursuant to paragraph (a). If
fewer than three firms respond to the request for proposal, the committee shall recommend such firms as it
deems to be the most highly qualified.

(4) The governing body shall inquire of qualified firms as to the basis of compensation, select one of the
firms recommended by the auditor selection committee, and negotiate a contract, using one of the following
methods:

(@) If compensation is not one of the factors established pursuant to paragraph (3)(a) and not used to
evaluate firms pursuant to paragraph (3)(e), the governing body shall negotiate a contract with the firm ranked
first. If the governing body is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with that firm, negotiations with that
firm shall be formally terminated, and the governing body shall then undertake negotiations with the second-
ranked firm. Failing accord with the second-ranked firm, negotiations shall then be terminated with that firm
and undertaken with the third-ranked firm. Negotiations with the other ranked firms shall be undertaken in the
same manner. The governing body, in negotiating with firms, may reopen formal negotiations with any one of
the three top-ranked firms, but it may not negotiate with more than one firm at a time.

(b) If compensation is one of the factors established pursuant to paragraph (3)(a) and used in the evaluation
of proposals pursuant to paragraph (3)(d), the governing body shall select the highest-ranked qualified firm or
must document in its public records the reason for not selecting the highest-ranked qualified firm.

(c) The governing body may select a firm recommended by the audit committee and negotiate a contract
with one of the recommended firms using an appropriate alternative negotiation method for which
compensation is not the sole or predominant factor used to select the firm.

(d) In negotiations with firms under this section, the governing body may allow a designee to conduct
negotiations on its behalf.

(5) The method used by the governing body to select a firm recommended by the audit committee and
negotiate a contract with such firm must ensure that the agreed-upon compensation is reasonable to satisfy the
requirements of s. 218.39 and the needs of the governing body.

(6) If the governing body is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the recommended firms,
the committee shall recommend additionat firms, and negotiations shall continue in accordance with this
section until an agreement is reached.

(7) Every procurement of audit services shall be evidenced by a written contract embodying all provisions
and conditions of the procurement of such services. For purposes of this section, an engagement letter signed
and executed by both parties shall constitute a written contract. The written contract shall, at a minimum,
include the following:

(@) A provision specifying the services to be provided and fees or other compensation for such services.

(b) A provision requiring that invoices for fees or other compensation be submitted in sufficient detail to
demonstrate compliance with the terms of the contract.

(c) A provision specifying the contract period, including renewals, and conditions under which the contract
may be terminated or renewed.

(8) Written contracts entered into pursuant to subsection (7) may be renewed. Such renewals may be done
without the use of the auditor selection procedures provided in this section. Renewal of a contract shall be in
writing.

(9) If the entity fails to select the auditor in accordance with the requirements of subsections (3)-(6), the
entity must again perform the auditor selection process in accordance with this section to select an auditor to

conduct audits for subsequent fiscal years.
History.—s. 65, ch. 2001-266; s. 1, ch. 2005-32; s. 15, ch. 2019-15.

Copyright © 1995-2024 The Florida Legislature « Privacy Statement « Contact Us

20f2 9/16/2024, 3:24 PM



